
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY 
COUNCIL MEETING 

PACKET 
 
 
 

Thursday, April 18, 2019 

 

5:30 p.m. 

U--~-)4~ 

City of 
Wunberley 



City of Wimberley 
  221 Stillwater, P.O. Box 2027, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

 
 

      REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
WIMBERLEY CITY HALL – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
        221 STILLWATER, WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 78676 

THURSDAY, APRIL 18, 2019 – 5:30 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  April 18, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
2. CALL OF ROLL   City Secretary   
 
3. INVOCATION 
 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/SALUTE TO THE TEXAS FLAG 

 
5. CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS 

The City Council welcomes comments from citizens who have a direct stake in the business 
of the city, such as a landowner, resident, vendor or business owner on issues and items of 
concern, not on this agenda. Those wishing to speak must sign-in before the meeting begins 
and observe a three-minute time limit when addressing Council. Speakers will have one 
opportunity to speak during the time period. Speakers desiring to speak on an agenda item 
will be allowed to speak when the agenda item is called. Inquiries about matters not listed on 
the agenda will either be directed to staff or placed on a future agenda for Council 
consideration. Comments from speakers should not be directed towards any specific 
member of City Council or City staff. Comments should not be accusatory, derogatory or 
threatening in nature. 
 

6. PRESENTATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
Presentation and consider possible action regarding the draft Cypress Creek Nature Trail and 
Preserve Master Plan. (Wimberley Valley Watershed Association Executive Director David 
Baker) 
 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, Subchapter D, the City Council 
may convene in a closed session.  After the Executive Session, discussion on any of the 
following items, any final action or vote taken will be in public. 
A. Executive Session pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.071 (Consultation 

with Attorney) to receive legal advice regarding an Aqua Texas contract. 
 

B. Executive Session pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.071 (Consultation 
with Attorney) to receive legal advice regarding the issuance of City of Wimberley Series 
2019 bonds. 

 

1



8. OPEN SESSION 
A. Discuss and consider possible action to authorize the City of Wimberley to execute an 

agreement with Aqua Texas. 
 
B. Discuss and consider possible action to approve Ordinance No. 2019-09, authorizing the 

issuance of “City of Wimberley, Texas exchange refunding bonds, Series 2019”; 
providing for the payment of said bonds by the levy of an ad valorem tax upon all taxable 
property within the City and further securing said bonds by a lien on and pledge of the 
pledged revenues of the system; providing the terms and conditions of said bonds and 
resolving other matters incident and relating to the issuance, payment, security, sale, and 
delivery of said bonds; authorizing the execution of a paying agent/registrar agreement; 
authorizing the execution of any necessary documents to effectuate the issuance of the 
bonds; complying with the requirements of the letter of representations on file with the 
depository trust company; and providing an effective date. 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council Meeting held March 21, 2019. 

 
B. Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council Meeting held April 4, 2019. 

 
10. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Updates regarding the status of the Central Wimberley Wastewater Project and Wimberley 
Community Center signage (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
A. Hold a public hearing and consider approval regarding case CUP-19-001, an application 

for a Conditional Use Permit to allow for the operation of a vacation rental on property 
zoned Single-Family Residential 2 (R-2) for property located at 13301 Ranch Road 12, 
Wimberley, Hays County, Texas; and providing for the following: delineation on zoning 
map; findings of fact; severability; effective date and proper notice and meeting. (Mystic 
Hill, LLC, Applicant) 

 
B. Hold a public hearing and consider approval regarding case ZA-19-002, an application to 

change the zoning from Single-Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Commercial-Moderate Impact 
(C-2) for property located at 151 Oldham Street, Wimberley, Hays County, Texas; and 
providing for the following: delineation on zoning map; findings of fact; severability; effective 
date and proper notice and meeting.  (Mike Oldmixon, Applicant) 

 
C. Hold a public hearing and consider approval of the first reading of Ordinance No. 2019-08 

of the City of Wimberley, Texas amending Chapter 9 (Planning & Development 
Regulations) Article 9.03 (Zoning), Division 4, (Use Requirements and Restrictions) 
Section 9.03.141 (Bed and Breakfast Lodging Requirements) of the City of Wimberley 
Code of Ordinances; and providing for the following:  findings of fact, a savings clause, a 
repealing clause, a severability clause, effective date, and proper notice and meeting. 

 
12. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

A. Discuss and consider possible action to utilize Specialized Public Finance, Inc. as financial 
advisors for the City of Wimberley. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
 

2



B. Discuss and consider possible action regarding an ordinance adding Article 4.12, 
Landscaping and Tree Preservation to Chapter 4, Building Regulations of the City of 
Wimberley Code of Ordinances. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
 

C. Discuss and consider possible action to declare the items in the storage unit for surplus. 
(City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
 

D. Discuss and consider possible action regarding a fence variance for Pedernales Electric 
Cooperative (PEC) for the PEC Wimberley Substation. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
 

E. Discuss and consider possible action to approve Hays County’s estimate in the amount of 
$36,337 for the paving of and the replacement of a drainage culvert at Rocky Springs Road. 
(City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
 

F. Discuss and consider possible action to approve authorization of payment in the amount 
of $13,380 to BEFCO for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) surveys. (City 
Administrator Shawn Cox) 
 

G. Discuss an consider possible action to authorize an expenditure to the Texas General Land 
Office of an amount not to exceed $2,350 for the application for and use of a State 
Miscellaneous Easement/Right-of-Way. (Place Four Council Member Gary Barchfeld) 
 

H. Discuss and consider possible action to support the completion of Friends of Blue Hole’s 
playscape shade canopy project. (City Administrator Shawn Cox and Parks Director 
Rebecca Manning) 
 

I. Discuss and consider possible action to approve Ordinance No. 2019-10, disannexing an 
area of approximately 90 acres contiguous to the City Limits, generally known as 801 
Wayside Drive, and providing for the following: findings of fact, savings, severability, 
repealer, effective date, and proper notice and meeting. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
 

13. CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  
A. Announcements 

 
B. Future agenda items 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council may retire into Executive Session at any time between the meeting’s opening 
and adjournment for the purpose of discussing any matters listed on the agenda as authorized 
by the Texas Government Code including, but not limited to, homeland security pursuant to 
Chapter 418.183 of the Texas Government Code; consultation with legal counsel pursuant to 
Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code; discussion about real estate acquisition 
pursuant to Chapter 551.072 of the Texas Government Code; discussion of personnel matters 
pursuant to Chapter 551.074 of the Texas Government Code; deliberations about gifts and 
donations pursuant to Chapter 551.076 of the Texas Government Code; discussion of 
economic development pursuant to Chapter 551.087 of the Texas Government Code; action, 
if any, will be taken in open session. 
 
 

3



CERTIFICATION 
I hereby certify the above Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board at Wimberley City 
Hall, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s 
website, www.cityofwimberley.com, in compliance with Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, 
on Monday, April 15, 2019, by 5:30 p.m., and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours 
preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 

__________________________________________________ 
Laura J. Calcote, MPA, TRMC  

City Secretary 
 
The City of Wimberley is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  
Reasonable modifications and equal access to communications will be provided upon request.  
Please contact City Secretary Laura Calcote at (512) 847-0025 two business days in advance of 
the meeting for appropriate arrangements. 
 

4



74193047.7  

DRAFT 4/11/2019 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-___ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF “CITY OF 
WIMBERLEY, TEXAS EXCHANGE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 
2019”; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS BY THE 
LEVY OF AN AD VALOREM TAX UPON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE CITY AND FURTHER SECURING SAID BONDS BY A 
LIEN ON AND PLEDGE OF THE PLEDGED REVENUES OF THE 
SYSTEM; PROVIDING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SAID 
BONDS AND RESOLVING OTHER MATTERS INCIDENT AND 
RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE, PAYMENT, SECURITY, SALE, AND 
DELIVERY OF SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO EFFECTUATE 
THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS; COMPLYING WITH THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS ON FILE 
WITH THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

5



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

 

74193047.7  i 

SECTION 1. AUTHORIZATION - DESIGNATION - PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT - PURPOSE ................................................................................... 2 

SECTION 2. FULLY REGISTERED OBLIGATIONS - AUTHORIZED 
DENOMINATIONS - STATED MATURITIES - INTEREST RATES – 
BOND DATE ................................................................................................... 2 

SECTION 3. PAYMENT OF BONDS - PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR .......................... 3 

SECTION 4. REDEMPTION ................................................................................................ 5 

SECTION 5. EXECUTION - REGISTRATION ................................................................... 7 

SECTION 6. REGISTRATION - TRANSFER - EXCHANGE OF 
BONDS - PREDECESSOR BONDS ............................................................... 7 

SECTION 7. INITIAL BOND ............................................................................................... 8 

SECTION 8. FORMS ............................................................................................................ 8 

SECTION 9. DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................... 17 

SECTION 10. BOND FUND, INVESTMENTS ................................................................... 21 

SECTION 11. TAX LEVY .................................................................................................... 22 

SECTION 12. PLEDGE OF PLEDGED REVENUES ......................................................... 23 

SECTION 13. SYSTEM FUND ............................................................................................ 23 

SECTION 14. DEPOSITS TO BOND FUND; SURPLUS BOND PROCEEDS ................. 24 

SECTION 15. RESERVE FUND .......................................................................................... 25 

SECTION 16. SECURITY OF FUNDS ................................................................................ 26 

SECTION 17. MAINTENANCE OF SYSTEM - INSURANCE ......................................... 26 

SECTION 18. RATES AND CHARGES .............................................................................. 27 

SECTION 19. RECORDS AND ACCOUNTS - ANNUAL AUDIT .................................... 27 

SECTION 20. REMEDIES IN EVENT OF DEFAULT ....................................................... 28 

SECTION 21. ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL PRIOR LIEN OBLIGATIONS, JUNIOR 
LIEN OBLIGATIONS, SUBORDINATE LIEN OBLIGATIONS, AND 
LIMITED PLEDGE OBLIGATIONS ........................................................... 28 

SECTION 22. SPECIAL COVENANTS .............................................................................. 29 

SECTION 23. APPLICATION OF THE COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS OF 
ANY ADDITIONAL PRIOR LIEN OBLIGATIONS, JUNIOR LIEN 
OBLIGATIONS, OR SUBORDINATE LIEN OBLIGATIONS .................. 29 

SECTION 24. NOTICES TO HOLDERS, WAIVER ........................................................... 30 

SECTION 25. CANCELLATION ......................................................................................... 30 

6



 

74193047.7  ii 

SECTION 26. MUTILATED, DESTROYED, LOST, AND STOLEN BONDS ................. 30 

SECTION 27. EXCHANGE OF BONDS ............................................................................. 31 

SECTION 28. COVENANTS TO MAINTAIN TAX-EXEMPT STATUS ......................... 31 

SECTION 29. CONTROL AND CUSTODY OF BONDS ................................................... 35 

SECTION 30. SATISFACTION OF OBLIGATION OF CITY ........................................... 35 

SECTION 31. PRINTED OPINION ...................................................................................... 36 

SECTION 32. CUSIP NUMBERS ........................................................................................ 36 

SECTION 33. EFFECT OF HEADINGS .............................................................................. 36 

SECTION 34. REQUEST FOR SCOPE MODIFICATION TO TEXAS WATER 
DEVELOPMENT BOARD ........................................................................... 36 

SECTION 35. COMPLIANCE WITH PURCHASERS’ RULES AND REGULATIONS .. 37 

SECTION 36. AUTHORIZATION OF ESCROW AGREEMENT ...................................... 37 

SECTION 37. ORDINANCE A CONTRACT, AMENDMENTS – OUTSTANDING 
BONDS .......................................................................................................... 37 

SECTION 38. BENEFITS OF ORDINANCE ....................................................................... 37 

SECTION 39. INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS ................................................................... 37 

SECTION 40. GOVERNING LAW ...................................................................................... 38 

SECTION 41. SEVERABILITY ........................................................................................... 38 

SECTION 42. CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS ..................................................................... 38 

SECTION 43. INCORPORATION OF PREAMBLE RECITALS ....................................... 38 

SECTION 44. AUTHORIZATION OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT . 38 

SECTION 45. PUBLIC MEETING ....................................................................................... 38 

SECTION 46. UNAVAILABILITY OF AUTHORIZED PUBLICATION ......................... 38 

SECTION 47. NO RECOURSE AGAINST CITY OFFICIALS .......................................... 38 

SECTION 48. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING ....................................... 39 

SECTION 49. BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM ................................................................. 43 

SECTION 50. FURTHER PROCEDURES ........................................................................... 44 

SECTION 51. EFFECTIVE DATE ....................................................................................... 44 

7



 

74193047.7   

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-___ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF “CITY OF 
WIMBERLEY, TEXAS EXCHANGE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 
2019”; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS BY THE 
LEVY OF AN AD VALOREM TAX UPON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE CITY AND FURTHER SECURING SAID BONDS BY A 
LIEN ON AND PLEDGE OF THE PLEDGED REVENUES OF THE 
SYSTEM; PROVIDING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SAID 
BONDS AND RESOLVING OTHER MATTERS INCIDENT AND 
RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE, PAYMENT, SECURITY, SALE, AND 
DELIVERY OF SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO EFFECTUATE 
THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS; COMPLYING WITH THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS ON FILE 
WITH THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the City Council) of the City of Wimberley, Texas (the City) 
has heretofore issued, sold, and delivered, and there are currently outstanding obligations in the 
aggregate original principal amount of $5,255,000, being the obligations set forth on Schedule I 
hereto which is incorporated by reference for all purposes to this ordinance (the Exchanged 
Obligations); and 

WHEREAS, the Exchanged Obligations were issued for the purposes of funding: (i) the 
construction of a collection system to provide wastewater service to the central Wimberley area; 
(ii) the upgrading and expansion of the existing wastewater treatment plant; (iii) a reasonably 
required reserve fund for the Exchanged Obligations; and (iv) professional services and costs of 
issuance related to the Exchanged Obligations (items (i) and (ii) are, together, referred to herein as 
the Original Project Scope); and 

WHEREAS, the Exchanged Obligations, which were delivered to and are currently held 
by the Texas Water Development Board (the Board), are payable and secured by an irrevocable 
first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues (defined herein) of the System (defined herein) 
and an annual transfer of funds into the System’s revenue stream as designated in the 
Intradepartmental Agreement Regarding the Purchase of Reclaimed Water; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has requested of the Board that the Original Project Scope 
be amended to remove item (ii) of the Original Project Scope pertaining to the upgrading and 
expansion of the existing wastewater treatment plant; and 

WHEREAS, the Board, through Resolution No. _______, dated March 28, 2019, agreed 
to the requested amendment to the Original Project Scope, on the condition that the City Council 
exchange the Exchanged Obligations with the Bonds (hereinafter defined), which will be secured 
by the proceeds of an annual ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed by law, on all 

8



 

74193047.7  -2- 

taxable property in the City and additionally by a lien on and a pledge of the Pledged Revenues of 
the System; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council intends to issue combination general obligation and revenue 
refunding bonds in an aggregate principal amount of $5,255,000 which will be utilized to provide 
for the exchange of the Exchanged Obligations; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 1207, as amended, Texas Government 
Code (the Act), the City Council is authorized to issue refunding bonds to be exchanged for, and 
on the surrender and cancellation of, obligations to be refunded (which may be an issue of 
obligations in whole or, upon the City’s demonstration of adequate resources to pay the un-
refunded balance of the obligations, in part); and 

WHEREAS, on the Closing Date (defined herein), the City will deliver to the Board and 
the Board will accept from the City the Bonds in exchange for, and the Board will surrender to the 
City and the City will accept from the Board and cancel, the bonds evidencing the Exchanged 
Obligations (which acceptance and cancellation will be accomplished by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar at the City’s written direction); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that the issuance of combination 
general obligation and revenue refunding bonds for the purpose of refunding and exchanging the 
Exchanged Obligations is in the best interests of the residents of the City, now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WIMBERLEY, 
TEXAS THAT: 

SECTION 1. Authorization - Designation - Principal Amount - Purpose.  The 
combination general obligation and revenue refunding bonds of the City shall be and are hereby 
authorized to be issued in the aggregate principal amount of FIVE MILLION TWO HUNDRED 
FIFTY FIVE THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($5,255,000), to be designated and bear the 
title of “CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS EXCHANGE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2019” 
(the Bonds), for the purpose of providing for the exchange of the Exchanged Obligations, pursuant 
to the authority conferred by and in conformity with the laws of the State of Texas, particularly 
the Act.  The Bonds will have substantially the same terms as the Exchanged Obligations, except 
for the actual security for the payment of the Bonds.   

SECTION 2. Fully Registered Obligations - Authorized Denominations - Stated 
Maturities - Interest Rates – Bond Date.  The Bonds are issuable in fully registered form only; 
shall be dated April 1, 2019 (the Bond Date) and shall be issued in denominations of $5,000 or 
any integral (within a Stated Maturity) thereof, shall be lettered “R-” and numbered consecutively 
from One (1) upward, and the Bonds shall become due and payable on August 1 in each of the 
years and in principal amounts (the Stated Maturities) and bear interest on the unpaid principal 
amounts as provided in Section 3, to the earlier of redemption or Stated Maturity, while 
Outstanding from the Closing Date (anticipated to occur on or about April __, 2019), from the 
most recent Interest Payment Date (hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly 
provided for, to the earlier of redemption or Stated Maturity, at the per annum rates, while 
Outstanding, in accordance with the following schedule: 

9



 

74193047.7  -3- 

Years of 
Stated Maturity 

Principal 
Amounts ($) 

Interest 
Rates (%) 

2019 155,000 0.070 
2020 160,000 0.230 
2021 160,000 0.370 
2022 160,000 0.490 
2023 160,000 0.710 
2024 160,000 0.850 
2025 165,000 1.030 
2026 165,000 1.210 
2027 165,000 1.390 
2028 170,000 1.520 
2029 170,000 1.620 
2030 175,000 1.710 
2031 175,000 1.780 
2032 180,000 1.850 
2033 185,000 1.910 
2034 185,000 1.950 
2035 190,000 1.980 
2036 195,000 2.000 
2037 200,000 2.010 
2038 200,000 2.030 
2039 205,000 2.050 
2040 210,000 2.070 
2041 215,000 2.090 
2042 220,000 2.110 
2043 225,000 2.120 
2044 230,000 2.130 
2045 235,000 2.140 
2046 240,000 2.150 

 
SECTION 3. Payment of Bonds - Paying Agent/Registrar.  The principal of, premium, if 

any, and interest on the Bonds, due and payable by reason of Stated Maturity, redemption, or 
otherwise, shall be payable, without exchange or collection charges to the registered owners of the 
Bonds (the Holder or Holders), appearing on the Security Register (hereinafter defined) 
maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar (hereinafter defined), in any coin or currency of the 
United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public 
and private debts, and such payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be without 
exchange or collection charges to the Holder (hereinafter defined) of the Bonds.  Interest on each 
Bond issued and delivered to a Holder shall accrue from the latest Interest Payment Date that 
interest on such Bond (or its Predecessor Bond) has been paid that precedes the registration date 
appearing on such Bond in the “Registration Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar” (Section 8D 
hereof), unless the registration date appearing thereon is an Interest Payment Date for which 
interest is being paid, in which case interest on such Bond shall accrue from the registration date 
appearing thereon and provided further that with respect to the initial payment of interest on a 

10



 

74193047.7  -4- 

Bond, such interest shall accrue from the date of initial delivery of the Bonds (or its Predecessor 
Bond) to the Purchasers (hereinafter defined). 

The Bonds shall bear interest at the per annum rates shown above in Section 2, computed 
on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, and interest thereon shall be payable 
semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year (each an Interest Payment Date) 
commencing August 1, 2019, while the Bonds are Outstanding. 

The selection and appointment of BOKF, NA, Dallas, Texas (the Paying Agent/Registrar), 
to serve as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is hereby approved and confirmed, and 
the City agrees and covenants to cause to be kept and maintained at the corporate trust office of 
the Paying Agent/Registrar books and records (the Security Register) for the registration, payment 
and transfer of the Bonds, all as provided herein, in accordance with the terms and provisions of a 
Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, attached, in substantially final form, as Exhibit A hereto, and 
such reasonable rules and regulations as the Paying Agent/Registrar and City may prescribe.  The 
City covenants to maintain and provide a Paying Agent/Registrar at all times while the Bonds are 
Outstanding, and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be (i) a national or state banking 
institution or (ii) an association or a corporation organized and doing business under the laws of 
the United States of America or of any state, authorized under such laws to exercise trust powers.  
Such Paying Agent/Registrar shall be subject to supervision or examination by federal or state 
authority and authorized by law to serve as a Paying Agent/Registrar. 

The City reserves the right to appoint a successor Paying Agent/Registrar upon providing 
the previous Paying Agent/Registrar with a certified copy of a resolution or ordinance terminating 
such agency.  Additionally, the City agrees to promptly cause a written notice of this substitution 
to be sent to each Holder of the Bonds by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, which 
notice shall also give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, due and payable by reason of 
Stated Maturity, redemption, or otherwise, shall be payable only to the registered owner of the 
Bonds appearing on the Security Register (the Holder or Holders) maintained on behalf of the City 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar as hereinafter provided (i) on the Record Date (hereinafter defined) 
for purposes of payment of interest thereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of the Bonds for purposes 
of receiving payment of principal thereof upon redemption of the Bonds or at the Bonds’ Stated 
Maturity, and (iii) on any other date for any other purpose.  The City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the Holder as the owner of a Bond for purposes 
of receiving payment and all other purposes whatsoever, and neither the City nor the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, or any agent of either, shall be affected by notice to the contrary. 

Principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable only upon presentation 
and surrender of the Bonds to the Paying Agent/Registrar at its corporate trust office.  Interest on 
the Bonds shall be paid to the Holder whose name appears in the Security Register at the close of 
business on the fifteenth day of the month next preceding an Interest Payment Date for the Bonds 
(the Record Date) and shall be paid (i) by check sent on or prior to the appropriate date of payment 
by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar, to the address of 
the Holder appearing in the Security Register or (ii) by such other method, acceptable to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, requested in writing by the Holder at the Holder’s risk and expense.  While the 

11



 

74193047.7  -5- 

Bonds are held by the Purchasers (as defined in Section 27 hereof), payment of principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be made by federal funds wire transfer, at no cost 
to the Purchasers, to an account at a financial institution located in the United States designated by 
the Purchasers. 

If the date for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds 
shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the city 
where the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or 
executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is 
not such a day.  The payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the 
original date any such payment on the Bonds was due. 

In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for thirty (30) 
days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a Special Record Date) will be 
established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have 
been received from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment 
date of the past due interest (the Special Payment Date - which shall be fifteen (15) days after the 
Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date 
by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each Holder appearing on the 
Security Register at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing 
of such notice. 

SECTION 4. Redemption. 

A. Optional Redemption.  The Bonds having Stated Maturities on and after August 1, 
2028, shall be subject to redemption prior to Stated Maturity, at the option of the City, in inverse 
order of Stated Maturity, in whole or in part, in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple 
thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity selected at random and by lot by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar), on August 1, 2027, or on any date thereafter at the redemption price of par plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

B. Special Mandatory Redemption.  In the event that the Purchasers at such time 
remains the sole holder of the Bonds and the final accounting delivered by the City to the 
Purchasers in the form and manner specified in, and in compliance with the provisions of, Section 
35 of this Ordinance evidences that the total cost of the project to be financed with Bond proceeds 
is less than the amount of Bond proceeds available for paying such costs, then the City shall, as 
soon as practicable (but in no event later than six months after the Purchasers’ acceptance of the 
aforementioned accounting), at the direction of the City Administrator, and without the 
requirement of the approval of the City Council of the City, redeem Bonds in the amount of such 
excess to the nearest multiple of the authorized denomination for the Bonds.  Bonds redeemed 
pursuant to this provision shall be redeemable on any date, in inverse order of Stated Maturity, as 
a whole or in part, in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (and if within a 
Stated Maturity, selected at random and by lot by the Paying Agent/Registrar), at the redemption 
price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

C. Exercise of Redemption Option.  At least forty-five (45) days prior to a date set for 
the redemption of Bonds (unless a shorter notification period shall be satisfactory to the Paying 

12



 

74193047.7  -6- 

Agent/Registrar), the City shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of its decision to exercise the 
right to redeem Bonds, the principal amount of each Stated Maturity to be redeemed, and the date 
set for the redemption thereof.  The decision of the City to exercise the right to redeem Bonds shall 
be entered in the minutes of the governing body of the City. 

D. Selection of Bonds for Redemption.  If less than all Outstanding Bonds of the same 
Stated Maturity are to be redeemed on a redemption date, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select 
at random and by lot the Bonds to be redeemed, provided that if less than the entire principal 
amount of a Bond is to be redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat such Bond then subject 
to redemption as representing the number of Bonds Outstanding which is obtained by dividing the 
principal amount of such Bond by $5,000. 

E. Notice of Redemption.  Not less than thirty (30) days prior to a redemption date for 
the Bonds, a notice of redemption shall be sent by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, 
in the name of the City and at the City’s expense, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Holder of 
a Bond to be redeemed, in whole or in part, at the address of the Holder appearing on the Security 
Register at the close of business on the business day next preceding the date of mailing such notice, 
and any notice of redemption so mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given 
irrespective of whether received by the Holder.  This notice may also be published once in a 
financial publication, journal, or reporter of general circulation among securities dealers in the City 
of New York, New York (including, but not limited to, The Bond Buyer and The Wall Street 
Journal), or in the State of Texas (including, but not limited to, The Texas Bond Reporter). 

All notices of redemption shall (i) specify the date of redemption for the Bonds, (ii) identify 
the Bonds to be redeemed and, in the case of a portion of the principal amount to be redeemed, the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed, (iii) state the redemption price, (iv) state that the Bonds, 
or the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, shall become due and payable on 
the redemption date specified, and the interest thereon, or on the portion of the principal amount 
thereof to be redeemed, shall cease to accrue from and after the redemption date, and (v) specify 
that payment of the redemption price for the Bonds, or the principal amount thereof to be 
redeemed, shall be made at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar only upon 
presentation and surrender thereof by the Holder. 

If a Bond is subject by its terms to redemption and has been called for redemption and 
notice of redemption thereof has been duly given or waived as herein provided, such Bond (or the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed) so called for redemption shall become due and payable, 
and if money sufficient for the payment of such Bonds (or of the principal amount thereof to be 
redeemed) at the then applicable redemption price is held for the purpose of such payment by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, then on the redemption date designated in such notice, interest on the 
Bonds (or the principal amount thereof to be redeemed) called for redemption shall cease to accrue 
and such Bonds shall not be deemed to be Outstanding in accordance with the provisions of this 
Ordinance. 

F. Transfer/Exchange of Bonds.  Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
be required (1) to transfer or exchange any Bond during a period beginning forty-five (45) days 
prior to the date fixed for redemption of the Bonds or (2) to transfer or exchange any Bond selected 
for redemption, provided, however, such limitation of transfer shall not be applicable to an 

13



 

74193047.7  -7- 

exchange by the Holder of the unredeemed balance of a Bond which is subject to redemption in 
part. 

SECTION 5. Execution - Registration.  The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City 
by its Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem under its seal reproduced or impressed thereon and attested by its 
City Secretary.  The signature of either of said officers on the Bonds may be manual or facsimile.  
Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of individuals who were, at the time of the Bond 
Date, the proper officers of the City shall bind the City, notwithstanding that such individuals or 
either of them shall cease to hold such offices prior to the delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers, 
all as authorized and provided in Chapter 1201, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

No Bond shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Ordinance, or be valid or 
obligatory for any purpose, unless there appears on such Bond either a certificate of registration 
substantially in the form provided in Section 8C, executed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts 
of the State of Texas or his duly authorized agent by manual signature, or a certificate of 
registration substantially in the form provided in Section 8D, executed by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar by manual signature, and either such certificate upon any Bond shall be conclusive 
evidence, and the only evidence, that such Bond has been duly certified or registered and delivered. 

SECTION 6. Registration - Transfer - Exchange of Bonds - Predecessor Bonds.  The 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain, record, and maintain in the Security Register the name and 
address of every owner of the Bonds, or if appropriate, the nominee thereof.  Any Bond may, in 
accordance with its terms and the terms hereof, be transferred or exchanged for Bonds of other 
authorized denominations upon the Security Register by the Holder, in person or by his duly 
authorized agent, upon surrender of such Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, 
accompanied by a written instrument of transfer or request for exchange duly executed by the 
Holder or by his duly authorized agent, in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, the City shall execute and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver, 
in the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Bonds of authorized 
denomination and having the same Stated Maturity and of a like interest rate and aggregate 
principal amount as the Bond or Bonds surrendered for transfer. 

At the option of the Holder, Bonds may be exchanged for other Bonds of authorized 
denominations and having the same Stated Maturity, bearing the same rate of interest and of like 
aggregate principal amount as the Bonds surrendered for exchange upon surrender of the Bonds 
to be exchanged at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.  Whenever any Bonds 
are so surrendered for exchange, the City shall execute, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
register and deliver, the Bonds to the Holder requesting the exchange. 

All Bonds issued upon any transfer or exchange of Bonds shall be delivered at the corporate 
trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, or be sent by registered mail to the Holder at his request, 
risk, and expense, and upon the delivery thereof, the same shall be the valid and binding obligations 
of the City, evidencing the same obligation to pay, and entitled to the same benefits under this 
Ordinance, as the Bonds surrendered upon such transfer or exchange. 

14



 

74193047.7  -8- 

All transfers or exchanges of Bonds pursuant to this Section shall be made without expense 
or service charge to the Holder, except as otherwise herein provided, and except that the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall require payment by the Holder requesting such transfer or exchange of any 
tax or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange. 

Bonds canceled by reason of an exchange or transfer pursuant to the provisions hereof are 
hereby defined to be Predecessor Bonds, evidencing all or a portion, as the case may be, of the 
same debt evidenced by the new Bond or Bonds registered and delivered in the exchange or 
transfer therefor.  Additionally, the term Predecessor Bonds shall include any Bond registered and 
delivered pursuant to Section 26 in lieu of a mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Bond which shall 
be deemed to evidence the same obligation as the mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Bond. 

SECTION 7. Initial Bond.  The Bonds herein authorized shall be issued initially either (i) 
as a single fully registered Bond in the total principal amount of $5,255,000 with principal 
installments to become due and payable as provided in Section 2 and numbered T-1, or (ii) as one 
(1) fully registered Bond for each year of a Stated Maturity in the applicable principal amount and 
denomination purchased thereby and to be numbered consecutively from T-1 and upward (the 
Initial Bonds) and, in either case, the Initial Bonds shall be registered in the name of the Purchasers 
or the designee thereof.  The Initial Bond shall be the Bond submitted to the Office of the Attorney 
General of the State of Texas for approval, certified and registered by the Office of the Comptroller 
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas and delivered to the Purchasers.  Any time after the 
delivery of the Initial Bond to the Purchasers, the Paying Agent/Registrar, upon written 
instructions from the Purchasers or their designee, shall cancel the Initial Bond delivered hereunder 
and exchange therefor definitive Bonds of authorized denominations, Stated Maturities, principal 
amounts and bearing applicable interest rates, and shall be lettered “R” and numbered 
consecutively from one (1) upward for transfer and delivery to the Holders named at the addresses 
identified therefor; all pursuant to and in accordance with such written instructions from the 
Purchasers, or the designee thereof, and such other information and documentation as the Paying 
Agent/Registrar may reasonably require. 

SECTION 8. Forms. 

A. Forms Generally.  The Bonds, the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Registration Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar, and 
the form of Assignment to be printed on each of the Bonds shall be substantially in the forms set 
forth in this Section with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations 
as are permitted or required by this Ordinance and may have such letters, numbers, or other marks 
of identification (including insurance legends in the event the Bonds, or any Stated Maturities 
thereof, are insured, and any reproduction of an opinion of Bond Counsel) and identifying numbers 
and letters of the Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures of the American 
Bankers Association) and such legends and endorsements (including any reproduction of an 
opinion of Bond Counsel (hereinafter referenced)) thereon as may, consistent herewith, be 
established by the City or determined by the officers executing the Bonds as evidenced by their 
execution thereof.  Any portion of the text of any Bond may be set forth on the reverse thereof, 
with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Bond. 

15



 

74193047.7  -9- 

The definitive Bonds shall be typewritten, printed, lithographed, or engraved, produced by 
any combination of these methods, or produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by 
the officers executing the Bonds as evidenced by their execution thereof, but the Initial Bond 
submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be typewritten or photocopied or 
otherwise reproduced. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
 

16



 

74193047.7  -10- 

B. Form of Definitive Bond. 

 REGISTERED 
REGISTERED PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
NO. _________ $_____________ 

United States of America 
State of Texas 

County of Hays 
CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 

EXCHANGE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2019 

Bond Date: Interest Rate: Stated Maturity: CUSIP No. 

April 1, 2019    

REGISTERED OWNER: _________________________________________________________ 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _________________________________________________________ 

The City of Wimberley, Texas (the City), a body corporate and municipal corporation in 
the County of Hays, State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby 
promises to pay to the order of the Registered Owner specified above, or the registered assigns 
thereof, on the Stated Maturity date specified above, the Principal Amount specified above (or so 
much thereof as shall not have been paid upon prior redemption) and to pay interest on the unpaid 
Principal Amount hereof from the Closing Date (anticipated to occur on or about April __, 2019), 
or from the most recent Interest Payment Date (hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid 
or duly provided for until such Principal Amount has become due and payment thereof has been 
made or duly provided for, to the earlier of redemption or Stated Maturity while Outstanding, at 
the per annum rate of interest specified above computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months; such interest being payable on February 1 and August 1 of each year (each, an 
Interest Payment Date) commencing August 1, 2019. 

Principal and premium, if any, of this Bond shall be payable to the Registered Owner hereof 
(the Holder), upon presentation and surrender, at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar executing the registration certificate appearing hereon or a successor thereof. 
Interest shall be payable to the Holder of this Bond (or one or more Predecessor Bonds, as defined 
in the Ordinance hereinafter referenced) whose name appears on the Security Register maintained 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date, which is the fifteenth 
day of the month next preceding each Interest Payment Date.  All payments of principal of and 
interest on this Bond shall be in any coin or currency of the United States of America which at the 
time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.  Interest shall be paid 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent on or prior to the appropriate date of payment by 
United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Holder hereof at the address appearing in the 
Security Register or by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by 
the Holder hereof at the Holder’s risk and expense.  While the Bonds are held by the Purchasers 
payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be made by federal funds 

17



 

74193047.7  -11- 

wire transfer, at no cost to the Purchasers, to an account at a financial institution located in the 
United States designated by the Purchasers. 

This Bond is one of the series specified in its title issued in the aggregate principal amount 
of $5,255,000 (the Bonds) pursuant to an Ordinance adopted by the governing body of the City 
(the Ordinance), for the purpose of providing for the exchange of the Exchanged Obligations, 
under and in strict conformity with the laws of the State of Texas, particularly Chapter 1207, as 
amended, Texas Government Code. 

As set forth in the Ordinance, the Bonds stated to mature on and after August 1, 2028 may 
be redeemed prior to their Stated Maturities, at the option of the City, in inverse order of Stated 
Maturity, in whole or in part, in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (and 
if within a Stated Maturity selected at random and by lot by the Paying Agent/Registrar), on August 
1, 2027, or on any date thereafter at the redemption price of par, together with accrued interest to 
the date of redemption and upon 30 days prior written notice being sent by United States Mail, 
first class postage prepaid, to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed, and subject to 
the terms and provisions relating thereto contained in the Ordinance.  If this Bond (or any portion 
of the principal sum hereof) shall have been duly called for redemption and notice of such 
redemption duly given, then upon such redemption date this Bond (or the portion of the principal 
sum hereof to be redeemed) shall become due and payable, and interest thereon shall cease to 
accrue from and after the redemption date therefor, provided moneys for the payment of the 
redemption price and the interest on the principal amount to be redeemed to the date of redemption 
are held for the purpose of such payment by the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

In addition to the foregoing right to optional redemption, in the event that the Purchasers 
at such time remains the sole holder of the Bonds and the final accounting delivered by the City to 
the Purchasers in the form and manner specified in the Ordinance (and in compliance with the 
provisions of Section 35 of the Ordinance) evidences that the total cost of the project to be financed 
with Bond proceeds is less than the amount of Bond proceeds available for paying such costs, then 
the City shall, as soon as practicable (but in no event later than six months after the Purchasers’ 
acceptance of the aforementioned accounting) redeem Bonds in the amount of such excess to the 
nearest multiple of the authorized denomination for the Bonds.  Bonds redeemed pursuant to this 
provision shall be redeemable on any date, in inverse order of Stated Maturity, as a whole or in 
part, in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (and if within a Stated 
Maturity, selected at random and by lot by the Paying Agent/Registrar), at the redemption price of 
par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

In the event that the Purchasers at such time remains the sole holder of the Bonds and the 
final accounting delivered by the City to the Purchasers in the form and manner specified in the 
Ordinance (and in compliance with the provisions of Section 35 of the Ordinance) evidences that 
the total cost of the project to be financed with Bond proceeds is less than the amount of Bond 
proceeds available for paying such costs, then the City shall, as soon as practicable (but in no event 
later than six months after the Purchasers’ acceptance of the aforementioned accounting), at the 
direction of the City Administrator without the requirement of the approval of the City Council of 
the City, redeem Bonds in the amount of such excess to the nearest multiple of the authorized 
denomination for the Bonds.  Bonds redeemed pursuant to this provision shall be redeemable on 
any date, in inverse order of Stated Maturity, as a whole or in part, in principal amounts of $5,000 

18



 

74193047.7  -12- 

or any integral multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity, selected at random and by lot by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar), at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption. 

If this Bond (or any portion of the principal sum hereof) shall have been duly called for 
redemption and notice of such redemption has been duly given, then upon such redemption date 
this Bond (or the portion of the principal sum hereof to be redeemed) shall become due and 
payable, and, if the money for the payment of the redemption price and the interest accrued on the 
principal amount to be redeemed to the date of redemption is held for the purpose of such payment 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar, interest shall cease to accrue and be payable hereon from and after 
the redemption date on the principal amount hereof to be redeemed.  If this Bond is called for 
redemption, in whole or in part, the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to 
issue, transfer, or exchange this Bond within forty-five (45) days of the date fixed for redemption; 
provided, however, such limitation of transfer shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Holder 
of the unredeemed balance hereof in the event of its redemption in part. 

The Bonds of this series are payable from the proceeds of an ad valorem tax levied upon 
all taxable property within the City, within the limitations prescribed by law, and are further 
payable from and secured by a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues (identified and 
defined in the Ordinance), which includes a first lien on and pledge of Net Revenues derived by 
the City from its ownership and operation of the City’s wastewater and sewer utility system (the 
System), such lien on and pledge of Net Revenues being on parity with the lien on and pledge of 
such Net Revenues securing the payment of any Additional Prior Lien Obligations and superior to 
the lien on and pledge of such Net Revenues securing payment of any Junior Lien Obligations, or 
Limited Pledge Obligations hereafter issued by the City.  In the Ordinance, the City reserves and 
retains the right to issue Additional Prior Lien Obligations, Junior Lien Obligations, Subordinate 
Lien Obligations, and Limited Pledge Obligations (all as identified and defined in the Ordinance), 
while the Bonds are Outstanding, without limitation as to principal amount but subject to any 
terms, conditions or restrictions as may be applicable thereto under law or otherwise. 

Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance, a copy of which is on file in the corporate trust 
office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and to all of the provisions of which the Holder by his 
acceptance hereof hereby assents, for definitions of terms; the description of and the nature and 
extent of the tax levied and the revenues pledged for the payment of the Bonds; the terms and 
conditions under which the City may issue Additional Prior Lien Obligations, Junior Lien 
Obligations, Subordinate Lien Obligations, and Limited Pledge Obligations; the terms and 
conditions relating to the transfer or exchange of the Bonds; the conditions upon which the 
Ordinance may be amended or supplemented with or without the consent of the Holder; the rights, 
duties, and obligations of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar; the terms and provisions upon 
which this Bond may be redeemed or discharged at or prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, and 
deemed to be no longer Outstanding thereunder; and for the other terms and provisions specified 
in the Ordinance. Capitalized terms used herein have the same meanings assigned in the 
Ordinance. 

This Bond, subject to certain limitations contained in the Ordinance, may be transferred on 
the Security Register upon presentation and surrender at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form 

19



 

74193047.7  -13- 

satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar duly executed by the Holder hereof, or his duly 
authorized agent, and thereupon one or more new fully registered Bonds of the same Stated 
Maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and of the same aggregate 
principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. 

The City and the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the Holder 
hereof whose name appears on the Security Register (i) on the Record Date as the owner hereof 
for purposes of receiving payment of interest hereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of this Bond as 
the owner hereof for purposes of receiving payment of principal hereof at its Stated Maturity or its 
redemption, in whole or in part, and (iii) on any other date as the owner hereof for all other 
purposes, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any such agent of either, shall be 
affected by notice to the contrary.  In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled 
payment date, and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a 
Special Record Date) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the 
payment of such interest have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and 
of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the Special Payment Date - which shall be 
fifteen (15) days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior 
to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each 
Holder appearing on the Security Register at the close of business on the last business day next 
preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

It is hereby certified, covenanted, and represented that all acts, conditions, and things 
required to be performed, exist, and be done precedent to the issuance of this Bond in order to 
render the same a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the City have been performed, exist, and 
have been done, in regular and due time, form, and manner, as required by the laws of the State of 
Texas and the Ordinance, and that issuance of the Bonds does not exceed any constitutional or 
statutory limitation; and that due provision has been made for the payment of the principal of, 
premium if any, and interest on the Bonds by the levy of a tax and collection of Pledged Revenues 
as aforestated.  In case any provision in this Bond or any application thereof shall be deemed 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions and applications shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. The terms and 
provisions of this Bond and the Ordinance shall be construed in accordance with and shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

  

20



 

74193047.7  -14- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be duly executed under its 
official seal. 

CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 
 
 
 
By _________________________________ 
      Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
(CITY SEAL) 

C. *Form of Registration Certificate of Comptroller of Public Accounts to Appear on 
Initial Bond Only. 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF 
COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER OF 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS 

§
§
§
§ 

 
 
REGISTER NO.    

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

WITNESS my signature and seal of office this ____________________ 

____________________________________ 
Comptroller of Public Accounts 

of the State of Texas 

(SEAL) 

*NOTE TO PRINTER:  Not to appear on printed Bonds. 

 

21



 

74193047.7  -15- 

D. Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar to Appear on Definitive Bonds Only. 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

This Bond has been duly issued under the provisions of the within-mentioned Ordinance; 
the Bond or Bonds of the above-entitled and designated series originally delivered having been 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts, as shown by the records of the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Registered this date: 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________  

BOKF, NA, Dallas, Texas, as Paying 
Agent/Registrar 
 
 
By:  _______________________________  

Authorized Signature 

*NOTE TO PRINTER:  Print on Definitive Bonds. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 

22



 

74193047.7  -16- 

E. Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto  (Print 
or typewrite name, address, and zip code of transferee): _________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other identifying number):  ________________________________________ 
the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
____________________attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration 
thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

DATED: ____________________________ 

________________________________________________ 
 NOTICE:  The signature on this assignment must  
 correspond with the name of the registered owner as it  
 appears on the face of the within Bond in every  
 particular. 

Signature guaranteed: 
 
 
____________________________________ 

F. The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in paragraph B of this Section, except 
that the form of a single fully registered Initial Bond shall be modified as follows: 

(i)  immediately under the name of the Bond(s) the headings “Interest Rate” and “Stated 
Maturity” shall both be completed “As Shown Below”; 

(ii)  the first two paragraphs shall read as follows: 

Registered Owner:  ______________________________________________________________ 

Principal Amount:  ______________________________________________________________ 

The City of Wimberley, Texas (the City), a body corporate and municipal corporation in 
the County of Hays, State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby 
promises to pay to the order of the Registered Owner named above, or the registered assigns 
thereof, the Principal Amount specified above stated to mature on the first day of August each of 
the years and in principal amounts and bearing interest at per annum rates in accordance with the 
following schedule: 

23



 

74193047.7  -17- 

Years of 
Stated Maturity 

Principal 
Amounts ($) 

Interest 
Rates (%) 

(Information to be inserted 
from schedule in Section 2 hereof) 

(or so much thereof as shall not have been paid upon prior redemption) and to pay interest on the 
unpaid Principal Amounts hereof from the Closing Date (anticipated to occur on or about April 
__, 2019), or from the most recent Interest Payment Date (defined below) to which interest has 
been paid or duly provided for, to the earlier of redemption or Stated Maturity, at the per annum 
rates of interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months; 
such interest being payable on February 1 and August 1 of each year (each, an Interest Payment 
Date), commencing August 1, 2019. 

Principal of this Bond shall be payable to the Registered Owner hereof (the Holder), upon 
its presentation and surrender to Stated Maturity or prior redemption, while Outstanding, at the 
corporate trust office of BOKF, NA, Dallas, Texas (the Paying Agent/Registrar).  Interest shall be 
payable to the Holder of this Bond whose name appears on the Security Register maintained by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date, which is the fifteenth day 
of the month next preceding each Interest Payment Date.  All payments of principal of and interest 
on this Bond shall be in any coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of 
payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.  Interest shall be paid by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent on or prior to the appropriate date of payment by United 
States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Holder hereof at the address appearing in the Security 
Register or by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at 
the risk and expense of, the Holder hereof. 

G. Insurance Legend.  If bond insurance is obtained by the City or the Purchasers for 
the Bonds, the Definitive Bonds and the Initial Bond shall bear an appropriate legend as provided 
by the insurer to appear under the following header: 

[BOND INSURANCE] 

SECTION 9. Definitions.  For all purposes of this Ordinance (as defined below), except 
as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires: (i) the terms defined in 
this Section have the meanings assigned to them in this Section, and certain terms used in 
Sections 28 and 48 of this Ordinance have the meanings assigned to them in Sections 28 and 48 
of this Ordinance, and all such terms, include the plural as well as the singular; (ii) all references 
in this Ordinance to designated “Sections” and other subdivisions are to the designated Sections 
and other subdivisions of this Ordinance as originally adopted; and (iii) the words “herein”, 
“hereof’, and “hereunder” and other words of similar import refer to this Ordinance as a whole and 
not to any particular Section or other subdivision. 

A. The term Additional Prior Lien Obligations shall mean (i) the Bonds and any 
bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of obligation, or other evidences of indebtedness which the City 
reserves the right to issue or enter into, as the case may be, in the future under the terms and 
conditions provided by the City Council and which are equally and ratably secured solely by a first 

24



 

74193047.7  -18- 

and prior lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues of the System and (ii) any obligations 
hereafter issued to refund any of the foregoing if issued in a manner so as to be payable from and 
secured by a first and prior lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues as determined by the City 
Council in accordance with applicable law 

B. The term Authorized Officials shall mean the Mayor, the Mayor Pro Tem, the City 
Administrator, and/or the City Secretary. 

C. The term Bonds shall mean the $5,255,000 “CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 
EXCHANGE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2019” authorized by this Ordinance. 

D. The term Bond Fund shall mean the special Fund created and established by the 
provisions of Section 10 of this Ordinance. 

E. The term City shall mean the City of Wimberley, located in Hays County, Texas 
and, where appropriate, the City Council of the City. 

F. The term Closing Date shall mean the date of physical delivery of the Initial Bonds 
in exchange for the Exchanged Obligations. 

G. The term Collection Date shall mean, when reference is being made to the levy and 
collection of annual ad valorem taxes, the date the annual ad valorem taxes levied each year by the 
City become delinquent. 

H. The term Debt Service Requirements shall mean, as of any particular date of 
computation, with respect to any obligations and with respect to any period, the aggregate of the 
amounts to be paid or set aside by the City as of such date or in such period for the payment of the 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest (to the extent not capitalized) on such obligations; 
assuming, in the case of obligations without a fixed numerical rate, that such obligations bear 
interest at the maximum rate permitted by the terms thereof and further assuming in the case of 
obligations required to be redeemed or prepaid as to principal prior to Stated Maturity, the principal 
amounts thereof will be redeemed prior to Stated Maturity in accordance with the mandatory 
redemption provisions applicable thereto. 

I. The term Depository shall mean an official depository bank of the City. 

J. The term Fiscal Year shall mean the annual financial accounting period for the 
System now ending on September 30th of each year; provided, however, the City Council may 
change such annual financial accounting period to end on another date if such change is found and 
determined to be necessary for accounting purposes or is required by applicable law. 

K. The term Government Securities, as used herein, shall mean (i) direct noncallable 
obligations of the United States, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by, the 
United States of America; (ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United 
States, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or 
instrumentality and that, on the date the governing body of the issuer adopts or approves the 
proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by a 
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA” or its equivalent; 

25



 

74193047.7  -19- 

(iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political 
subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date the governing body of the issuer 
adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to 
investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA” or its 
equivalent, or (iv) any additional securities and obligations hereafter authorized by the laws of the 
State of Texas as eligible for use to accomplish the discharge of obligations such as the 
Obligations. 

L. The term Gross Revenues shall mean all income, receipts, and revenues of every 
nature derived or received from the operation or ownership of the System, excluding refundable 
meter deposits, restricted gifts, and grants in aid of construction, but including earnings and income 
derived from the investment or deposit of money in any special fund or account (except the Bond 
Fund) created and established for the payment or security of the Bonds. 

M. The term Holder or Holders shall mean the registered owner, whose name appears 
in the Security Register, for any Bond. 

N. The term Interest Payment Date shall mean the date semiannual interest is payable 
on the Bonds, being February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing August 1, 2019, while 
any of the Bonds remain Outstanding. 

O. The term Junior Lien Obligations shall mean (i) any bonds, notes, warrants, 
certificates of obligation or any similar obligations hereafter issued by the City that are payable 
wholly or in part from and equally and ratably secured by a lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues 
of the System, such pledge being junior and inferior to the lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues 
of the System that are pledged to the Bonds and any Additional Prior Lien Obligations hereafter 
issued by the City, but prior and superior to the lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of the 
System that may be pledged to the payment of any Subordinate Lien Obligations or the Limited 
Pledge Obligations, all as further provided in Section 21 of this Ordinance and (ii) obligations 
hereafter issued to refund any of the foregoing that are payable from and equally and ratably 
secured by a junior and inferior lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues as determined by the City 
Council in accordance with any applicable law. 

P. The term Limited Pledge Obligations shall mean (i) any bonds, notes, warrants, 
certificates of obligation, or other evidences of indebtedness hereafter issued by the City payable 
wholly or in part from a pledge of and lien on Net Revenues of the System which pledge of 
revenues is limited pursuant to Section 1502.052, as amended, Texas Government Code, all as 
further provided in Section 21 of this Ordinance, and (ii) any obligations hereafter issued to refund 
any of the foregoing as determined by the City Council in accordance with any applicable law. 

Q. The term Maintenance and Operating Expenses shall mean all current expenses of 
operating and maintaining the System as authorized by the provisions of Chapter 1502, as 
amended, Texas Government Code, including, but not limited to, all salaries, labor, materials, 
repairs and extensions necessary to render efficient service; provided, however, that only such 
repairs and extensions, as in the judgment of the City Council, reasonably and fairly exercised, are 
necessary to maintain the operations and render adequate service to the City and the inhabitants 
thereof, or such as might be necessary to meet some physical accident or condition which would 

26



 

74193047.7  -20- 

otherwise impair obligations payable from Net Revenues shall be deducted in determining Net 
Revenues.  Depreciation, amortization, or other expenditures which, under standard accounting 
practice, should be charged to capital expenditures shall not constitute or be regarded as 
Maintenance and Operating Expenses of the System.  Payments required to be made by the City 
for water supply or water facilities, sewer services or sewer facilities, or fuel supply which 
payments under law constitute operation and maintenance expenses of any part of the System, 
shall constitute and be regarded as Maintenance and Operating Expenses of the System under this 
Ordinance.  

R. The term Net Revenues for any period shall mean the Gross Revenues of the System 
less the Maintenance and Operating Expenses of the System. 

S. The term Ordinance shall mean this ordinance as finally passed and adopted by the 
City Council of the City. 

T. The term Outstanding when used in this Ordinance with respect to Bonds shall 
mean, as of the date of determination, all Bonds issued and delivered under this Ordinance, except: 

(1) those Bonds canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar or delivered to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation; 

(2) those Bonds for which payment has been duly provided by the City in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 30 of this Ordinance; and 

(3) those Bonds that have been mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen and 
replacement Bonds have been registered and delivered in lieu thereof as provided in 
Section 26 of this Ordinance. 

U. The term Pledged Revenues shall mean, while the Bonds remain Outstanding, (1) 
the Net Revenues plus (2) any additional revenues, income, receipts, or other resources, including, 
without limitation, any grants, donations, or income received or to be received from the United 
States Government, or any other public or private source, whether pursuant to an agreement or 
otherwise, which hereafter are pledged by the City to the payment of the Bonds or any Additional 
Prior Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City, and excluding those revenues excluded from 
Gross Revenues.  The Pledged Revenues shall be deposited, allocated, and expended in accordance 
with Section 10 of this Ordinance. 

V. The term Purchasers shall mean the initial purchaser or purchasers of the Bonds 
named in Section 27 of this Ordinance. 

W. The term Stated Maturity shall mean the annual principal payments of the Bonds 
payable on August 1 of each year the Bonds are Outstanding as set forth in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance. 

X. The term Subordinate Lien Obligations shall mean (i) any bonds, notes, warrants, 
certificates of obligation, or any similar obligations hereafter issued by the City that are payable, 
in whole or in part, from and equally and ratably secured by a lien on and pledge of the Net 
Revenues of the System, such pledge being subordinate and inferior to the lien on and pledge of 

27



 

74193047.7  -21- 

the Net Revenues of the System that are or may be pledged to the payment of the Bonds or any 
Additional Prior Lien Obligations or Junior Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City, but prior 
and superior to the lien on and pledge of the limited amount of the Net Revenues securing, in part, 
any Limited Pledge Obligations hereafter issued by the City, all as further provided in Section 21 
of this Ordinance and (ii) obligations hereafter issued to refund any of the foregoing that are 
payable from and equally and ratably secured by a subordinate and inferior lien on and pledge of 
the Net Revenues as determined by the City Council in accordance with any applicable law. 

Y. The term System shall mean the City’s wastewater and sewer utility system and all 
land, buildings, structures, equipment, and facilities pertaining thereto, together will all future 
improvements, extensions, enlargements, and additions thereto, and replacements thereof, and all 
other wastewater and sewer utility facilities of the City acquired or constructed with funds from 
any source, including the issuance of the Bonds, and any Additional Prior Lien Obligations, Junior 
Lien Obligations, or Subordinate Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City; provided, however, 
that notwithstanding the foregoing, and to the extent now or hereafter authorized or permitted by 
law, the term System shall not include facilities of any kind declared by the City Council not to be 
part of the System and which are acquired and constructed by or on behalf of the City with the 
proceeds from the issuance of Special Facilities Bonds, which are hereby defined to be special 
revenue obligations of the City which are not payable from a first lien on and pledge of any Net 
Revenues but which are payable from and secured by other liens on and pledges of any revenues, 
sources, lease or other payments, not pledged to the payment of the Bonds, or any Additional Prior 
Lien Obligations, Junior Lien Obligations, or Subordinate Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the 
City including, but not limited to, special contract revenues or payments received from any other 
legal entity in connection with such facilities. 

SECTION 10. Bond Fund, Investments.  For the purpose of paying the interest on and to 
provide a sinking fund for the payment, redemption, and retirement of the Bonds, there shall be 
and is hereby created a special fund to be designated “CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 
EXCHANGE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2019, INTEREST AND SINKING FUND” (the 
Bond Fund), which fund shall be kept and maintained at the Depository, and money deposited in 
such fund shall be used for no other purpose and shall be maintained as provided in Section 29.  
Authorized Officials of the City are hereby authorized and directed to make withdrawals from said 
fund sufficient to pay the purchase price or the amount of principal of and interest on the Bonds 
as the same become due and payable and shall cause to be transferred to the Paying Agent/Registrar 
from money on deposit in the Bond Fund an amount sufficient to pay the amount of principal 
and/or interest stated to mature on the Bonds, such transfer of funds to the Paying Agent/Registrar 
to be made in such manner as will cause immediately available funds to be deposited with the 
Paying Agent/Registrar on or before the last business day next preceding each interest and 
principal payment date for the Bonds. 

Pending the transfer of funds to the Paying Agent/Registrar, money deposited in any fund 
created and established by this Ordinance may, at the option of the City, be placed in time deposits, 
certificates of deposit, guaranteed investment contracts, or similar contractual agreements, as 
permitted by the provisions of the Public Funds Investment Act, as amended, Chapter 2256, Texas 
Government Code, secured (to the extent not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation) by obligations of the type hereinafter described, or be invested, as authorized by any 
law, including investments held in book-entry form, in securities, including, but not limited to, 

28



 

74193047.7  -22- 

direct obligations of the United States of America, obligations guaranteed or insured by the United 
States of America, which, in the opinion of the Attorney General of the United States, are backed 
by its full faith and credit or represent its general obligations, or invested in indirect obligations of 
the United States of America, including, but not limited to, evidences of indebtedness issued, 
insured or guaranteed by such governmental agencies as the Federal Land Banks, Federal 
Intermediate Credit Banks, Banks for Cooperatives, Federal Home Loan Banks, Government 
National Mortgage Association, Farmers Home Administration, Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Association, or Federal Housing Association; provided that all such deposits and investments shall 
be made in such a manner that the money required to be expended from such fund will be available 
at the proper time or times. All interest and income derived from deposits and investments in any 
fund established pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance shall be credited to, and any losses 
debited to, such fund. All such investments shall be sold promptly when necessary to prevent any 
default in connection with the Bonds. 

SECTION 11. Tax Levy.  To provide for the payment of the Debt Service Requirements 
on the Bonds being (i) the interest on the Bonds and (ii) a sinking fund for their redemption at 
Stated Maturity or a sinking fund of 2% (whichever amount shall be the greater), there shall be 
and there is hereby levied for the current year and each succeeding year thereafter while the Bonds 
or any interest thereon shall remain Outstanding, a sufficient tax, within the limitations prescribed 
by law, on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property in the City, adequate to pay such 
Debt Service Requirements, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of collection; 
said tax shall be assessed and collected each year and applied to the payment of the Debt Service 
Requirements, and the same shall not be diverted to any other purpose. The taxes so levied and 
collected shall be paid into the Bond Fund and are thereafter pledged to the payment of the Bonds.  
The City Council hereby declares its purpose and intent to provide and levy a tax legally and fully 
sufficient to pay such Debt Service Requirements, it having been determined that the existing and 
available taxing authority of the City for such purpose is adequate to permit a legally sufficient tax 
in consideration of all other outstanding indebtedness and other obligations of the City. 

The amount of taxes to be provided annually for the payment of the principal of and interest 
on the Bonds shall be determined and accomplished in the following manner: 

A. Prior to the date the City Council establishes the annual tax rate and passes an 
ordinance levying ad valorem taxes each year, the City Council shall determine: 

(1) the amount of Debt Service Requirements to become due and payable on 
the Bonds between the Collection Date for the taxes then to be levied and the Collection 
Date for the taxes to be levied during the next succeeding calendar year; 

(2) the amount on deposit in the Bond Fund after (a) deducting therefrom the 
total amount of Debt Service Requirements to become due on Bonds prior to the Collection 
Date for the ad valorem taxes to be levied and (b) adding thereto the amount of the Pledged 
Revenues to be appropriated and allocated during such year to pay such Debt Service 
Requirements, if any, prior to the Collection Date for the ad valorem taxes to be levied; 
and 

29



 

74193047.7  -23- 

(3) the amount of Pledged Revenues to be appropriated and to be set aside for 
the payment of the Debt Service Requirements on the Bonds between the Collection Date 
for the taxes then to be levied and the Collection Date for the taxes to be levied during the 
next succeeding Fiscal Year. 

B. The amount of taxes to be levied annually each year to pay the Debt Service 
Requirements on the Bonds shall be the amount established in paragraph (1) above less the sum 
total of the amounts established in paragraphs (2) and (3), after taking into consideration 
delinquencies and costs of collecting such annual taxes. 

SECTION 12. Pledge of Pledged Revenues.  (a) The City hereby covenants and agrees 
that, on parity with any lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of the System to the payment and 
security of any Additional Prior Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City and superior to any 
lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of the System to the payment and security of (i) any Junior 
Lien Obligations or Subordinate Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City or (ii) the lien on 
and pledge of a limited amount of the Net Revenues to the payment and security of any Limited 
Pledge Obligations hereafter issued by the City, the Pledged Revenues are hereby irrevocably 
pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, and the pledge of Pledged 
Revenues herein made for the payment of the Bonds shall constitute a lien on the Pledged 
Revenues in accordance with the terms and provisions hereof and be valid and binding without 
any physical delivery thereof or further act by the City. 

(b) Chapter 1208, as amended, Texas Government Code, applies to the issuance of the 
Bonds and the pledge of Pledged Revenues granted by the City under subsection (a) of this Section, 
and such pledge is therefore valid, effective, and perfected.  If Texas law is amended at any time 
while the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid such that the pledge of the Net Revenues granted by 
the City is to be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Texas Business & Commerce 
Code, then in order to preserve to the registered owners of the Bonds the perfection of the security 
interest in this pledge, the City Council agrees to take such measures as it determines are 
reasonable and necessary under Texas law to comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 9, 
as amended, Texas Business & Commerce Code and enable a filing to perfect the security interest 
in this pledge to occur. 

SECTION 13. System Fund.  The City hereby covenants and agrees that all Gross 
Revenues derived from the operation of the System shall be kept separate and apart from all other 
funds, accounts and money of the City and shall be deposited as collected into the “CITY OF 
WIMBERLEY, TEXAS WASTEWATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND” (the System Fund).  
All money deposited in the System Fund shall be pledged and appropriated to the extent required 
for the following purposes and in the order of priority shown: 

 First:  to the payment of the reasonable and proper Maintenance and Operating 
Expenses of the System required by statute or ordinances authorizing the issuance 
of any indebtedness of the City to be a first charge on and claim against the Gross 
Revenues of the System; 

 Second:  To the payment of the amounts that must be deposited in the special funds 
and accounts created and established for the payment, security, and benefit of the 

30



 

74193047.7  -24- 

Bonds, and any Additional Prior Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City in 
accordance with the terms and provisions of any ordinances authorizing their 
issuance; 

 Third:  To the payment of the amounts that must be deposited in the special funds 
and accounts created and established for the payment, security, and benefit of any 
Junior Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City in accordance with the terms 
and provisions of any ordinances authorizing their issuance;  

 Fourth:  To the payment of the amounts that must be deposited in the special funds 
and accounts created and established for the payment, security, and benefit of any 
Subordinate Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City in accordance with the 
terms and provisions of any ordinances authorizing their issuance; and 

 Fifth:  To the payment of the amounts that may be deposited in the special funds 
and accounts established for the payment of any Limited Pledge Obligations 
hereafter issued by the City in accordance with the terms and provisions of any 
ordinances authorizing their issuance. 

Any Net Revenues remaining in the System Fund after satisfying the foregoing payments, 
or making adequate and sufficient provision for the payment, security and benefit  thereof, may be 
appropriated and used for any other City purpose now or hereafter permitted by law. 

SECTION 14. Deposits to Bond Fund; Surplus Bond Proceeds.  The City hereby covenants 
and agrees to cause to be deposited in the Bond Fund prior to a principal and interest payment date 
for the Bonds, from the Net Revenues in the System Fund, any amounts budgeted to be paid 
therefrom in such Fiscal Year. 

Accrued interest, if any, received from the Purchasers of the Bonds shall be deposited to 
the Bond Fund and ad valorem taxes levied and collected for the benefit of the Bonds shall be 
deposited to the Bond Fund.  In addition, any surplus proceeds, including investment income 
therefrom, from the sale of the Bonds not expended for authorized purposes shall be deposited in 
the Bond Fund, and such amounts so deposited shall reduce the sums otherwise required to be 
deposited in said fund from ad valorem taxes.  As interest accrues from the date of initial delivery 
of the Bonds to the Purchasers, there will be no accrued interest. 

SECTION 15. Reserve Fund.  The City previously created, established, and currently 
maintains a separate and special fund or account known as the “City of Wimberley, Texas Sewer 
System Revenue Bond Reserve Fund” (the Reserve Fund), which fund or account is maintained at 
the Depository.  Upon the issuance of the Exchanged Obligations, the City shall transfer all 
amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund to the escrow account maintained pursuant to the terms 
of the Escrow Agreement (as defined herein) and the Reserve Fund shall be closed as soon as 
practicable thereafter.  

SECTION 16. Security of Funds.  All money on deposit in the funds for which this 
Ordinance makes provision (except any portion thereof as may be at any time properly invested as 
provided herein) shall be secured in the manner and to the fullest extent required by the laws of 

31



 

74193047.7  -25- 

Texas for the security of public funds (including as required by and in accordance with the Texas 
Public Funds Collateral Act, codified at Chapter 2257, as amended, Texas Government Code), and 
money on deposit in such funds shall be used only for the purposes permitted by this Ordinance. 

SECTION 17. Maintenance of System - Insurance.  The City covenants and agrees that 
while the Bonds remain Outstanding it will maintain and operate the System with all possible 
efficiency and maintain casualty and other insurance (including a system of self-insurance) on the 
properties of the System and its operations of a kind and in such amounts customarily carried by 
municipal corporations in the State of Texas engaged in a similar type of business and that it will 
faithfully and punctually perform all duties with reference to the System required by the laws of 
the State of Texas, but in no event shall the amount of insurance maintained on the projects 
financed with the proceeds of the Bonds be less than the amount necessary to protect the 
Purchasers’ interest.  All money received from losses under such insurance policies, other than 
public liability policies, are held for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds until and unless the 
proceeds are paid out in making good the loss or damage in respect of which such proceeds are 
received, either by replacing the property destroyed or repairing the property damaged, and 
adequate provision for making good such loss or damage must be made within ninety (90) days 
after the date of loss.  The payment of premiums for all insurance policies required under the 
provisions hereof shall be considered Maintenance and Operating Expenses.  Nothing in this 
Ordinance shall be construed as requiring the City to expend any funds which are derived from 
sources other than the operation of the System but nothing herein shall be construed as preventing 
the City from doing so. 

SECTION 18. Rates and Charges.  The City hereby covenants and agrees with the Holders 
of the Bonds that rates and charges for utility services afforded by the System will be established 
and maintained to provide Gross Revenues sufficient at all times: 

A. to pay, together with any other lawfully available funds, all operating, maintenance, 
depreciation, replacement, betterment, and other costs incurred in the maintenance and operation 
of the System, including, but not limited to, Maintenance and Operating Expenses; provided, 
however, that the City expressly reserves the right to utilize other lawfully available funds to pay 
the Maintenance and Operating Expenses; 

B. to produce Net Revenues sufficient, together with any other lawfully available 
funds, to pay (i) the principal of and interest on the Bonds and any Additional Prior Lien 
Obligations hereafter issued by the City as the same becomes due and payable and the amounts 
required to be deposited in any special fund created and established for the payment, security, and 
benefit thereof; (ii) the interest on and principal of any Junior Lien Obligations hereafter issued by 
the City as the same becomes due and payable and the amounts required to be deposited in any 
special fund created and established for the payment, security, and benefit thereof; (iii) the interest 
on and principal of any Subordinate Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City as the same 
becomes due and payable and the amounts required to be deposited in any special fund created 
and established for the payment, security, and benefit thereof; and (iv) the amounts that may be 
deposited in the special funds established for the payment of any Limited Pledge Obligations 
hereafter issued by the City; and 

32



 

74193047.7  -26- 

C. to pay other legally incurred indebtedness payable from the Net Revenues of the 
System and/or secured by a lien on the System or the Net Revenues thereof. 

SECTION 19. Records and Accounts - Annual Audit.  The City further covenants and 
agrees that so long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding it will keep and maintain separate and 
complete records and accounts pertaining to the operations of the System in which complete and 
correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating thereto, as provided by Chapter 1502, as 
amended, Texas Government Code, or other applicable law.  The Holders of the Bonds or any duly 
authorized agent or agents of the Holders shall have the right to inspect the System and all 
properties comprising the same.  The City further agrees that, following the close of each Fiscal 
Year, it will cause an audit of such books and accounts to be made by an independent firm of 
certified public accountants, which annual audit shall be prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards (as required by and in accordance with the provisions of 31 TAC § 
375.91(a)(2)(L)).  Copies of each annual audit shall be furnished within 180 days after the end of 
the City’s fiscal year end, without charge, to (i) the Texas Water Development Board, Attention:  
Executive Administrator and (ii) upon written request, and at the expense of such Holder, to any 
subsequent Holder thereof.  Expenses incurred in making the annual audit of the operations of the 
System are to be regarded as Maintenance and Operating Expenses. 

SECTION 20. Remedies in Event of Default.  In addition to all the rights and remedies 
provided by the laws of the State of Texas, the City covenants and agrees particularly that in the 
event the City (a) defaults in the payments to be made to the Bond Fund, or (b) defaults in the 
observance or performance of any other of the covenants, conditions, or obligations set forth in 
this Ordinance, the Holders of any of the Bonds shall be entitled to seek a writ of mandamus issued 
by a court of proper jurisdiction compelling and requiring the governing body of the City and other 
officers of the City to observe and perform any covenant, condition, or obligation prescribed in 
this Ordinance. 

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair 
any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence 
therein, and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may 
be deemed expedient. The specific remedies herein provided shall be cumulative of all other 
existing remedies and the specification of such remedies shall not be deemed to be exclusive. 

For the avoidance of doubt, for so long as the Purchasers are Holders of the Bonds, the 
Purchasers may exercise all remedies available to it at law or in equity, and any provision of this 
Ordinance or the Bonds that attempts to restrict or limit this right to exercise remedies shall be of 
no force or effect. 

SECTION 21. Issuance of Additional Prior Lien Obligations, Junior Lien Obligations, 
Subordinate Lien Obligations, and Limited Pledge Obligations.  The City hereby expressly 
reserves the right to hereafter issue bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of obligation, or similar 
obligations, payable, wholly or in part, as appropriate, from and secured by a pledge of and lien 
on the Net Revenues of the System with the following priorities, without limitation as to principal 
amount, but subject to any terms, conditions, or restrictions applicable thereto under existing 
ordinances, laws, or otherwise: 

33



 

74193047.7  -27- 

A. Additional Prior Lien Obligations payable from and equally and ratably secured by 
a first and prior lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues of the System; 

B. Junior Lien Obligations payable from and equally and ratably secured by a lien on 
and pledge of the Net Revenues that is junior and inferior to the lien on and pledge thereof securing 
the payment of the Bonds and any Additional Prior Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City, 
but prior and superior to the lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues securing the payment of any 
Subordinate Lien Obligations and any Limited Pledge Obligations hereafter issued by the City; 
and 

C. Subordinate Lien Obligations payable from and equally and ratably secured by a 
lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues that is subordinate and inferior to the lien on and pledge 
thereof securing the payment of the Bonds and any Additional Prior Lien Obligations or Junior 
Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City, but prior and superior to the lien on and pledge of 
the Net Revenues securing, in part, the payment of any Limited Pledge Obligations hereafter issued 
by the City; and 

D. Limited Pledge Obligations secured by a lien on and pledge of a limited amount of 
the Net Revenues in accordance with the provisions of the following paragraph. 

Additional Prior Lien Obligations, Junior Lien Obligations, or Subordinate Lien 
Obligations, if issued, may be payable, in whole or in part, from Net Revenues upon such terms 
and conditions as the City Council may determine.  Limited Pledge Obligations, if issued and 
payable, in whole or in part, from a limited pledge of available Net Revenues, shall not in any 
event be construed to be payable from the Pledged Revenues authorized by this Ordinance to be 
budgeted and appropriated for the payment of the Bonds.  However, the lien on and pledge of the 
limited amount of Net Revenues securing, in part, the payment of any Limited Pledge Obligations 
shall be subordinate and inferior to the pledge of and lien on the Net Revenues securing the 
payment of the Bonds and any Additional Prior Lien Obligations, Junior Lien Obligations, or 
Subordinate Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City. 

SECTION 22. Special Covenants.  The City hereby further covenants that: 

A. it has the lawful power to pledge the Pledged Revenues supporting the Bonds and 
has lawfully exercised said powers under the laws of the State of Texas, including power existing 
under Chapter 1502, as amended, Texas Government Code; 

B. other than for the payment of the Bonds, the Net Revenues of the System have not 
in any manner been pledged to the payment of any debt or obligation of the City or of the System; 

C. as long as any Bonds or any interest thereon remain Outstanding, the City will not 
sell, lease or encumber (except in the manner provided in Section 21 of this Ordinance) the System 
or any substantial part thereof, provided that this covenant shall not be construed to prohibit the 
sale of such machinery, or other properties or equipment which has become obsolete or otherwise 
unsuited to the efficient operation of the System;  

D. to the extent that it legally may, the City further covenants and agrees that, so long 
as any of the Bonds, or any interest thereon, are Outstanding, no franchise shall be granted for the 

34



 

74193047.7  -28- 

installation or operation of any competing utility systems other than those owned by the City, and 
the operation of any such systems by anyone other than the City is hereby prohibited; and 

E. no free service of the System shall be allowed, and should the City or any of its 
agents or instrumentalities make use of the services and facilities of the System, payment of the 
reasonable value thereof shall be made by the City out of funds from sources other than the 
revenues and income of the System. 

SECTION 23. Application of the Covenants and Agreements of any Additional Prior Lien 
Obligations, Junior Lien Obligations, Subordinate Lien Obligations, or Limited Pledge 
Pbligations.  It is the intention of the City Council and accordingly hereby recognized and 
stipulated that the provisions, agreements, and covenants contained herein bearing upon the 
management and operations of the System, and the administration and application of Gross 
Revenues derived from the operation thereof, shall to the extent possible be harmonized with like 
provisions, agreements, and covenants contained in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the 
Bonds and any Additional Prior Lien Obligations, Junior Lien Obligations, or Subordinate Lien 
Obligations hereafter issued by the City, and to the extent of any irreconcilable conflict between 
the provisions contained herein and in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and 
any Additional Prior Lien Obligations hereafter issued, the provisions, agreements and covenants 
contained therein shall prevail to the extent of such conflict and be applicable to this Ordinance, 
especially the priority of rights and benefits conferred thereby to the holders of the Bonds and any 
Additional Prior Lien Obligations hereafter issued by the City.  It is expressly recognized that prior 
to the issuance of any Additional Prior Lien Obligations, Junior Lien Obligations, Subordinate 
Lien Obligations, or Limited Pledge Obligations, the City must comply with each of the conditions 
precedent contained in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and any Additional 
Prior Lien Obligations, Junior Lien Obligations, Subordinate Lien Obligations, or Limited Pledge 
Obligations, as appropriate. 

SECTION 24. Notices to Holders, Waiver.  Wherever this Ordinance provides for notice 
to Holders of any event, such notice shall be sufficiently given (unless otherwise herein expressly 
provided) if in writing and sent by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address 
of each Holder as it appears in the Security Register. 

In any case where notice to Holders is given by mail, neither the failure to mail such notice 
to any particular Holders, nor any defect in any notice so mailed, shall affect the sufficiency of 
such notice with respect to all other Holders.  Where this Ordinance provides for notice in any 
manner, such notice may be waived in writing by the Holder entitled to receive such notice, either 
before or after the event with respect to which such notice is given, and such waiver shall be the 
equivalent of such notice. Waivers of notice by Holders shall be filed with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, but such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the validity of any action 
taken in reliance upon such waiver. 

SECTION 25. Cancellation.  All Bonds surrendered for payment, redemption, transfer, 
exchange, or replacement, if surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall be promptly canceled 
by it and, if surrendered to the City, shall be delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar and, if not 
already canceled, shall be promptly canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The City may at any 
time deliver to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation any Bonds previously certified or 

35



 

74193047.7  -29- 

registered and delivered which the City may have acquired in any manner whatsoever, and all 
Bonds so delivered shall be promptly canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar.  All canceled Bonds 
held by the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be destroyed as directed by the City. 

SECTION 26. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost, and Stolen Bonds.  If (1) any mutilated Bond is 
surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, or the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar receive 
evidence to their satisfaction of the destruction, loss, or theft of any Bond, and (2) there is delivered 
to the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar such security or indemnity as may be required to save 
each of them harmless, then, in the absence of notice to the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar that 
such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the City shall execute and, upon its request, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of any such 
mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bond, a new Bond of the same Stated Maturity and interest 
rate and of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously Outstanding. 

In case any such mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bond has become or is about to 
become due and payable, the City in its discretion may, instead of issuing a new Bond, pay such 
Bond. 

Upon the issuance of any new Bond or payment in lieu thereof, under this Section, the City 
may require payment by the Holder of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental 
charge imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses and charges (including attorney’s fees 
and the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent/Registrar) connected therewith. 

Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section in lieu of any mutilated, destroyed, lost, 
or stolen Bond shall constitute a replacement of the prior obligation of the City, whether or not the 
mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bond shall be at any time enforceable by anyone, and shall be 
entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and ratably with all other Outstanding Bonds. 

The provisions of this Section are exclusive and shall preclude (to the extent lawful) all 
other rights and remedies with respect to the replacement and payment of mutilated, destroyed, 
lost, or stolen Bonds. 

SECTION 27. Exchange of the Bonds.  The Bonds will be delivered to the Texas Water 
Development Board (the Purchasers and having all the rights, benefits, and obligations of a 
Holder) in consideration for and the exchange and cancellation of the Exchanged Obligations.  
Delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers shall occur as soon as practicable after the adoption of this 
Ordinance and in conjunction with the cancellation of the Exchanged Obligations. 

SECTION 28. Covenants to Maintain Tax-Exempt Status. 

A. Definitions.  When used in this Section, the following terms have the following 
meanings: 

“Closing Date” means the date on which the Bonds are first authenticated and 
delivered to the initial purchasers again in exchange for the Exchanged Obligations. 

“Code”  means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by all legislation, 
if any, effective on or before the Closing Date. 

36



 

74193047.7  -30- 

“Computation Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the 
Regulations. 

“Gross Proceeds” means any proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-1(b) of the 
Regulations, and any replacement proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-1(c) of the 
Regulations, of the Bonds. 

“Investment” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations. 

“Nonpurpose Investment” means any investment property, as defined in 
section 148(b) of the Code, in which Gross Proceeds of the Bonds are invested and which 
is not acquired to carry out the governmental purposes of the Bonds. 

“Rebate Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the 
Regulations. 

“Regulations” means any proposed, temporary, or final Income Tax Regulations 
issued pursuant to sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code, and 103 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1954, which are applicable to the Bonds.  Any reference to any specific 
Regulation shall also mean, as appropriate, any proposed, temporary or final Income Tax 
Regulation designed to supplement, amend or replace the specific Regulation referenced. 

“Yield” of 

(1) any Investment has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-5 of the 
Regulations; and 

(2) the Bonds has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-4 of the 
Regulations. 

B. Not to Cause Interest to Become Taxable. The City shall not use, permit the use of, 
or omit to use Gross Proceeds or any other amounts (or any property the acquisition, construction 
or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced directly or indirectly with Gross Proceeds) 
in a manner which if made or omitted, respectively, would cause the interest on any Bond to 
become includable in the gross income, as defined in section 61 of the Code, of the owner thereof 
for federal income tax purposes. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, unless and until 
the City receives a written opinion of counsel nationally recognized in the field of municipal bond 
law to the effect that failure to comply with such covenant will not adversely affect the exemption 
from federal income tax of the interest on any Bond, the City shall comply with each of the specific 
covenants in this Section. 

C. No Private Use or Private Payments. Except to the extent that it will not cause the 
Bonds to become “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the 
Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall at all times prior to the last Stated Maturity of 
Bonds: 

(1) exclusively own, operate and possess all property the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced directly or indirectly 

37



 

74193047.7  -31- 

with Gross Proceeds of the Bonds, and not use or permit the use of such Gross Proceeds 
(including all contractual arrangements with terms different than those applicable to the 
general public) or any property acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross 
Proceeds in any activity carried on by any person or entity (including the United States or 
any agency, department and instrumentality thereof) other than a state or local government, 
unless such use is solely as a member of the general public; and 

(2) not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or other payment by 
any person or entity who is treated as using Gross Proceeds of the Bonds or any property 
the acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced 
directly or indirectly with such Gross Proceeds, other than taxes of general application 
within the City or interest earned on investments acquired with such Gross Proceeds 
pending application for their intended purposes. 

D. No Private Loan. Except as would not cause the Bonds to become “private activity 
bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, 
the City shall not use Gross Proceeds of the Bonds to make or finance loans to any person or entity 
other than a state or local government. For purposes of the foregoing covenant, such Gross 
Proceeds are considered to be “loaned” to a person or entity if- (1) property acquired, constructed 
or improved with such Gross Proceeds is sold or leased to such person or entity in a transaction 
which creates a debt for federal income tax purposes; (2) capacity in or service from such property 
is committed to such person or entity under a take-or-pay, output or similar contract or 
arrangement; or (3) indirect benefits, or burdens and benefits of ownership, of such Gross Proceeds 
or any property acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds are otherwise 
transferred in a transaction which is the economic equivalent of a loan. 

E. Not to Invest at Higher Yield. Except as would not cause the Bonds to become 
“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148 of the Code and the Regulations and rulings 
thereunder, the City shall not at any time prior to the final Stated Maturity of the Bonds directly or 
indirectly invest Gross Proceeds in any Investment, if as a result of such investment the Yield of 
any Investment acquired with Gross Proceeds, whether then held or previously disposed of, 
materially exceeds the Yield of the Bonds. 

F. Not Federally Guaranteed. Except to the extent permitted by section 149(b) of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not take or omit to take any action 
which would cause the Bonds to be federally guaranteed within the meaning of section 149(b) of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder. 

G. Information Report. The City shall timely file the information required by section 
149(e) of the Code with the Secretary of the Treasury on Form 8038-G or such other form and in 
such place as the Secretary may prescribe. 

H. Rebate of Arbitrage Profits. Except to the extent otherwise provided in section 
148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder: 

(1) The City shall account for all Gross Proceeds (including all receipts, 
expenditures and investments thereof) on its books of account separately and apart from 

38



 

74193047.7  -32- 

all other funds (and receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) and shall retain all 
records of accounting for at least six years after the day on which the last Outstanding Bond 
is discharged. However, to the extent permitted by law, the City may commingle Gross 
Proceeds of the Bonds with other money of the City, provided that the City separately 
accounts for each receipt and expenditure of Gross Proceeds and the obligations acquired 
therewith. 

(2) Not less frequently than each Computation Date, the City shall calculate the 
Rebate Amount in accordance with rules set forth in section 148(f) of the Code and the 
Regulations and rulings thereunder. The City shall maintain such calculations with its 
official transcript of proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds until six years after 
the final Computation Date. 

(3) As additional consideration for the purchase of the Bonds by the Purchasers 
and the loan of the money represented thereby and in order to induce such purchase by 
measures designed to insure the excludability of the interest thereon from the gross income 
of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, the City shall pay to the United 
States out of the Bond Fund or its general fund, as permitted by applicable Texas statute, 
regulation or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, the amount that when 
added to the future value of previous rebate payments made for the Bonds equals (i) in the 
case of a Final Computation Date as defined in Section 1.148-3(e)(2) of the Regulations, 
one hundred percent (100%) of the Rebate Amount on such date; and (ii) in the case of any 
other Computation Date, ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount on such date. In all 
cases, the rebate payments shall be made at the times, in the installments, to the place and 
in the manner as is or may be required by section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations 
and rulings thereunder, and shall be accompanied by Form 8038-T or such other forms and 
information as is or may be required by section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and 
rulings thereunder. 

(4) The City shall exercise reasonable diligence to assure that no errors are 
made in the calculations and payments required by paragraphs (2) and (3), and if an error 
is made, to discover and promptly correct such error within a reasonable amount of time 
thereafter (and in all events within one hundred eighty (180) days after discovery of the 
error), including payment to the United States of any additional Rebate Amount owed to 
it, interest thereon, and any penalty imposed under Section 1.148-3(h) of the Regulations. 

I. Not to Divert Arbitrage Profits. Except to the extent permitted by section 148 of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not, at any time prior to the 
earlier of the Stated Maturity or final payment of the Bonds, enter into any transaction that reduces 
the amount required to be paid to the United States pursuant to Subsection H of this Section 
because such transaction results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if the 
transaction had been at arm’s length and had the Yield of the Bonds not been relevant to either 
party. 

39



 

74193047.7  -33- 

J. Bonds Not Hedge Bonds. 

(1) The City reasonably expects to spend at least 85% of the spendable proceeds 
of the Bonds within three years after such Bonds are issued. 

(2) Not more than 50% of the proceeds of the Bonds will be invested in 
Nonpurpose Investments having a substantially guaranteed Yield for a period of 4 years or 
more. 

K. Current Refunding of the Exchanged Obligations.  The Bonds are being issued to 
refund the Exchanged Obligations, and the Bonds will be issued within 90 days after the Closing 
Date for the exchange of the Exchanged Obligations.  The City has complied with the covenants, 
representations, and warranties contained in the documents executed in connection with the 
issuance of the Exchanged Obligations. 

L. Elections. The City hereby directs and authorizes each Authorized Official, either 
individually or any combination of them, to make elections permitted or required pursuant to the 
provisions of the Code or the Regulations, as they deem necessary or appropriate in connection 
with the Bonds, in the Certificate as to Tax Exemption or similar or other appropriate certificate, 
form or document.  Such elections shall be deemed to be made on the Closing Date. 

M. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The City hereby designates the Bonds as 
qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of section 265(b) of the Code.  In furtherance of such 
designation, the City represents, covenants and warrants the following: (a) during the calendar year 
in which the Bonds are issued, the City (including any subordinate entities) has not designated nor 
will designate obligations, which when aggregated with the Bonds, will result in more than 
$10,000,000 of “qualified tax-exempt obligations” being issued; (b) the City reasonably anticipates 
that the amount of tax-exempt obligations issued during the calendar year 2019 by the City 
(including any subordinate entities) will not exceed $10,000,000; and (c) the City will take such 
action or refrain from such action as is necessary in order that the Bonds will not be considered 
“private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code.   

SECTION 29. Control and Custody of Bonds.  The Mayor of the City shall be and is hereby 
authorized to take and have charge of all necessary orders and records pending investigation by 
the Attorney General of the State of Texas and shall take and have charge and control of the Bonds 
pending their approval by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, the registration thereof by 
the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas and the delivery of the Bonds to the 
Purchasers. 

Furthermore, each Authorized Official, either individually or any combination of them, is 
hereby authorized and directed to furnish and execute such documents relating to the City and its 
financial affairs as may be necessary for the issuance of the Bonds, the approval of the Attorney 
General of the State of Texas and their registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the 
State of Texas and, together with the City’s financial advisor, bond counsel, and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, make the necessary arrangements for the delivery of the Initial Bond to the 
Purchasers and, when requested in writing by the Purchasers, the initial exchange thereof for 
definitive Bonds. 

40



 

74193047.7  -34- 

SECTION 30. Satisfaction of Obligation of City.  If the City shall pay or cause to be paid, 
or there shall otherwise be paid to the Holders, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Bonds, at the times and in the manner stipulated in this Ordinance, then the pledge of taxes 
levied and the lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues under this Ordinance and all covenants, 
agreements, and other obligations of the City to the Holders shall thereupon cease, terminate, and 
be discharged and satisfied. 

Bonds, or any principal amount(s) thereof, shall be deemed to have been paid within the 
meaning and with the effect expressed above in this Section when (i) money sufficient to pay in 
full such Bonds or the principal amount(s) thereof at Stated Maturity or to the redemption date 
therefor, together with all interest due thereon, shall have been irrevocably deposited with and held 
in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, and/or (ii) Government 
Securities shall have been irrevocably deposited in trust with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an 
authorized escrow agent, which Government Securities shall mature as to principal and interest in 
such amounts and at such times as will insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient 
money, together with any money deposited therewith, if any, to pay when due the principal of and 
interest on such Bonds, or the principal amount(s) thereof, on and prior to the Stated Maturity 
thereof or (if notice of redemption has been duly given or waived or if irrevocable arrangements 
therefor acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar have been made) the redemption date thereof.  
In the event of a defeasance of the Bonds, the City shall deliver a certificate from its financial 
advisor, the Paying Agent/Registrar, or another qualified third party concerning the sufficiency of 
the deposit of cash and/or Government Securities to pay, when due, the principal of, redemption 
premium (if any), and interest due on any defeased Bond.  To the extent applicable, if at all, the 
City covenants that no deposit of money or Government Securities will be made under this Section 
and no use made of any such deposit which would cause the Bonds to be treated as arbitrage bonds 
within the meaning of section 148 of the Code (as defined in Section 28 hereof). 

Any money so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar, and all income from 
Government Securities held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, 
pursuant to this Section which is not required for the payment of the Bonds, or any principal 
amount(s) thereof, or interest thereon with respect to which such money has been so deposited 
shall be remitted to the City or deposited as directed by the City. Furthermore, any money held by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and 
remaining unclaimed for a period of three (3) years after the Stated Maturity of the Bonds, or 
applicable redemption date of the Bonds, such money was deposited and is held in trust to pay 
shall upon the request of the City be remitted to the City against a written receipt therefor, subject 
to the unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, it is hereby provided 
that any determination not to redeem defeased Bonds that is made in conjunction with the payment 
arrangements specified in subsection (i) or (ii) above shall not be irrevocable, provided that: (1) in 
the proceedings providing for such defeasance, the City expressly reserves the right to call the 
defeased Bonds for redemption; (2) gives notice of the reservation of that right to the owners of 
the defeased Bonds immediately following the defeasance; (3) directs that notice of the reservation 
be included in any redemption notices that it authorizes; and (4) at the time of the redemption, 
satisfies the conditions of (i) or (ii) above with respect to such defeased debt as though it was being 
defeased at the time of the exercise of the option to redeem the defeased Bonds, after taking the 

41



 

74193047.7  -35- 

redemption into account in determining the sufficiency of the provisions made for the payment of 
the defeased Bonds. 

SECTION 31. Printed Opinion.  The Purchasers’ obligation to accept delivery of the Bonds 
is subject to their being furnished a final opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, as Bond 
Counsel, approving certain legal matters as to the Bonds, this opinion to be dated and delivered as 
of the date of initial delivery or such Bonds. Printing of a true and correct copy of this opinion on 
the reverse side of each of the Bonds, with appropriate certificate pertaining thereto executed by 
facsimile signature of the City Secretary of the City is hereby approved and authorized. 

SECTION 32. CUSIP Numbers.  CUSIP numbers, if any, may be printed or typed on the 
definitive Bonds.  It is expressly provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP 
numbers on the definitive Bonds shall be of no significance or effect as regards the legality thereof, 
and neither the City nor Bond Counsel are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers incorrectly 
printed or typed on the definitive Bonds. 

SECTION 33. Effect of Headings.  The Section headings herein are for convenience only 
and shall not affect the construction hereof. 

SECTION 34. Request for Scope Modification to Texas Water Development Board.  The 
City Council ratifies and confirms its prior approval of the form and content of the Request for 
Scope Modification submitted to the Texas Water Development Board prepared in connection with 
the issuance of the Bonds and hereby approves the form and content of any addenda, supplement, 
or amendment thereto. 

SECTION 35. Compliance with Purchasers’ Rules and Regulations.  The City will comply 
with all of the requirements contained in the resolution or resolutions adopted by the Purchasers 
with respect to the issuance of the Bonds.  In addition, in compliance with the Purchasers’ Clean 
Water State Revolving Fund Program Rules, the City agrees and covenants: 

A. The City will comply with all applicable requirements contained in 31 TAC 
Chapter 375; 

B. upon completion of the construction of the projects financed, in whole or in part, 
by the loan evidenced by the Exchanged Obligations, to provide a final accounting to the 
Purchasers of the total costs of the projects.  Thereafter, the City shall submit a final accounting 
and a final funds registration form to the Executive Administrator, or her designee.  Upon receipt 
of this information, the Purchasers shall within 60 days of receipt of this information provide 
written direction of the City of the course of action to be taken with respect to such surplus funds.  
If the projects as finally completed are built at a total cost less than the amount of available funds 
for building the projects, or if the Executive Administrator of the Purchasers disapproves 
construction of any portion of such projects as not being in accordance with the plans and 
specifications, the City agrees to immediately, with filing of the final accounting, return to the 
Purchasers the amount of any such excess and/or the cost determined by the Executive 
Administrator of the Purchasers relating to the parts of such projects not built in accordance with 
the plans and specifications, to the nearest multiple of the authorized denominations for the Bonds, 
by (i) the effectuation of a redemption of such amount of Bonds pursuant to Section 4.B hereof, 

42



 

74193047.7  -36- 

(ii) the deposit into the Bond Fund for the next scheduled payment of interest or principal on the 
Bonds, or (iii) spending such amount on other eligible project costs as authorized by the Executive 
Administrator.  In determining the amount of available funds for building the project, the City 
agrees to account for all amounts deposited to the credit of the Construction Fund, including all 
loan funds extended by the Purchasers, all other funds available from the projects as described in 
the project engineer’s or fiscal representative’s sufficiency of funds statement and all interest 
earned by the City on money in the Construction Fund; 

C. the Bonds must contain a provision that the Purchasers may exercise all remedies 
available to it in law or equity, and any provision of the Bonds that restricts or limits the 
Purchasers’ full exercise of these remedies shall be of no force and effect; 

D. loan proceeds are public funds and, as such, the proceeds of the Exchanged 
Obligations shall be held at a designated state depository institution or other properly chartered 
and authorized institution in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act, Government Code, 
Chapter 2256, and the Public Funds Collateral Act, Government Code, Chapter 2257; 

E. loan proceeds shall not be used by the City when sampling, testing, removing or 
disposing of contaminated soils and/or media at the project site and the City also agrees, to the 
extent permitted by law, to indemnify, hold harmless and protect the Purchasers from any and all 
claims, causes of action or damages to the person or property of third parties arising from the 
sampling, analysis, transport, storage, treatment, and disposition of any contaminated sewage 
sludge, contaminated sediments and/or contaminated media that may be generated by the City, its 
contractors, consultants, agents, officials, and employees as a result of activities relating to the 
project to the extent permitted by law; 

F. the City acknowledges that the Exchanged Obligations included a provision stating 
that all laborers and mechanics employed by contractors and subcontractors for projects shall be 
paid wages at rates not less than those prevailing on projects of a similar character in the locality 
in accordance with subchapter IV of chapter 31 of Title 40 of the United States Code (the Davis-
Bacon Act), and the U.S. Department of Labor’s implementing regulations.  The City, all 
contractors, and all sub-contractors shall continue to ensure that all project contracts mandate 
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act.  All contracts and subcontracts for the construction of the 
project carried out in whole or in part with financial assistance made available as provided herein 
shall insert in full in any contract in excess of $2,000 the contracts clauses as provided by the 
Purchasers; 

G. to provide the Purchasers with all information required to be reported in accordance 
with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, Pub. L. 109-282, as 
amended by Pub. L. 100-252.  The City shall obtain a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) 
Number and shall register with the System for Award Management (SAM), and maintain current 
registration at all times during which the Bonds are outstanding; 

H. all loan proceeds will be timely and expeditiously used, as required by federal 
statute (40 CFR §35.135(d)) and also shall provide that the City will adhere to an Executive 
Administrator-approved project schedule, which shall not be altered except for good cause shown 
and only with the written approval of the Executive Administrator; 

43



 

74193047.7  -37- 

I. the City acknowledges that the Exchanged Obligations included a covenant that the 
City will abide and the City will continue to abide by all applicable construction contract 
requirements related to the use of iron and steel products produced in the United States, as required 
by the 2014 Federal Appropriations Act and related State Revolving Fund Policy Guidelines; and 

J. the City acknowledges that the Exchanged Obligations included language detailing 
compliance with the requirements set forth in 33 U.S.C. §1382 et seq. related to maintaining 
project accounts containing financial assistance for planning, design, acquisition, or construction, 
as applicable, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  These 
standards and principles also apply to the reporting of underlying infrastructure assets.  The City 
agrees to continue to comply with these requirements.  

SECTION 36. Authorization of Escrow Agreement.  The escrow agreement authorized by 
the City Council pursuant to the ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Exchanged Obligations 
(the Escrow Agreement) remains in full force and effect and is attached hereto as Exhibit B.  Any 
Authorized Official is authorized to execute any amendment to the Escrow Agreement to 
effectuate the issuance of the Bonds and the exchange of the Exchanged Obligations as the act and 
deed of the City Council. 

SECTION 37. Ordinance a Contract, Amendments – Outstanding Bonds.  The City 
acknowledges that the covenants and obligations of the City herein contained are a material 
inducement to the purchase of the Bonds. This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the 
Holders from time to time, binding on the City and its successors and assigns, and it shall not be 
amended or repealed by the City so long as any Bond remains Outstanding except as permitted in 
this Section. The City may, without the consent of or notice to any Holders, from time to time and 
at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests of the Holders, 
including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission herein. In 
addition, the City may, with the written consent of Holders holding a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding affected thereby, amend, add to, or rescind any of 
the provisions of this Ordinance; provided, however, that without the consent of all Holders of 
Outstanding Bonds, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall (1) extend the time or times 
of payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, reduce the principal amount thereof or 
the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the terms of payment of the principal of, 
the redemption price therefor, or interest on the Bonds, (2) give any preference to any Bond over 
any other Bond, or (3) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required for consent to any 
such amendment, addition, or rescission. 

SECTION 38. Benefits of Ordinance.  Nothing in this Ordinance, expressed or implied, is 
intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person other than the City, Bond Counsel, Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and the Holders, any right, remedy, or claim, legal or equitable, under or by 
reason of this Ordinance or any provision hereof, this Ordinance and all its provisions being 
intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City, Bond Counsel, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and the Holders. 

SECTION 39. Inconsistent Provisions.  All ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, 
which are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to 

44



 

74193047.7  -38- 

the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as 
to the matters ordained herein. 

SECTION 40. Governing Law.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

SECTION 41. Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the 
application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and 
the City Council hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 

SECTION 42. Construction of Terms.  If appropriate in the context of this Ordinance, 
words of the singular number shall be considered to include the plural, words of the plural number 
shall be considered to include the singular, and words of the masculine, feminine or neuter gender 
shall be considered to include the other genders. 

SECTION 43. Incorporation of Preamble Recitals.  The recitals contained in the preamble 
hereof are hereby found to be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for 
all purposes and are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the City Council of the City. 

SECTION 44. Authorization of Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement.  The City Council of 
the City hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the City to authorize the 
execution of a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement concerning the payment, exchange, registration, 
and transferability of the Bonds.  A copy of the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement is attached 
hereto, in substantially final form, as Exhibit A and is incorporated by reference to the provisions 
of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 45. Public Meeting.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, 
place, and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this 
Ordinance, was given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

SECTION 46. Unavailability of Authorized Publication.  If, because of the temporary or 
permanent suspension of any newspaper, journal, or other publication, or, for any reason, 
publication of notice cannot be made meeting any requirements herein established, any notice 
required to be published by the provisions of this Ordinance shall be given in such other manner 
and at such time or times as in the judgment of the City or of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
most effectively approximate such required publication and the giving of such notice in such 
manner shall for all purposes of this Ordinance be deemed to be in compliance with the 
requirements for publication thereof. 

SECTION 47. No Recourse Against City Officials.  No recourse shall be had for the 
payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Bond or for any claim based thereon 
or on this Ordinance against any official of the City or any person executing any Bond. 

45



 

74193047.7  -39- 

SECTION 48. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

A. Definitions. 

As used in this Section, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms 
below: 

EMMA means the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system, accessible by the 
general public, without charge, on the internet through the uniform resource locator (URL) 
http://www.emma.msrb.org. 

Financial Obligation means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into in 
connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that 
“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities (as defined in the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) has been 
provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.  

MSRB means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

Rule means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

SEC means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

B. Annual Reports. 

The City shall file annually with the MSRB, within six months after the end of each Fiscal 
Year ending in or after 2019, financial information and operating data with respect to the City of 
the general type included in the final application to the Texas Water Development Board 
authorized by the City in conjunction with the issuance of the Exchanged Obligations (the 
Application), being the information described in Exhibit E hereto.  All such information must be 
filed with MSRB pursuant to its Electronic Municipal Access (EMMA) System.  Any financial 
statements so to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance with the accounting principles 
described in Exhibit C hereto, or such other accounting principles as the City may be required to 
employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation and (ii) audited, if the City 
commissions an audit of such financial statements and the audit is completed within the period 
during which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete 
within such period, then the City shall file unaudited financial statements within such period and 
audited financial statements for the applicable Fiscal Year with the MSRB, when and if the audit 
report on such statements becomes available.  Under current Texas law, including, but not limited 
to, Chapter 103, as amended, Texas Local Government Code, the City must have its records and 
accounts audited annually and shall have an annual financial statement prepared based on the audit.  
The annual financial statement, including the auditor’s opinion on the statement, shall be filed in 
the office of the City Secretary within 180 days after the last day of the City’s Fiscal Year.  
Additionally, upon the filing of this financial statement and the annual audit, these documents are 
subject to the Texas Open Records Act, as amended, Texas Government Code, Chapter 552. 

46



 

74193047.7  -40- 

If the City changes its Fiscal Year, it will file notice thereof with the MSRB of such change 
(and of the date of the new Fiscal Year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise 
would be required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

C. Notice of Certain Events.  The City shall file notice of any of the following events 
with respect to the Bonds, to the MSRB in a timely manner and not more than 10 business days 
after occurrence of the event: 

(1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(2) non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB), or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 
Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(7) modifications to rights of Holders of the Bonds, if material; 

(8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(9) defeasances; 

(10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, 
if material;  

(11) rating changes; 

(12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the City, which 
shall occur as described below; 

(13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 
City or the sale of all or substantially all of its assets, other than in the ordinary course of 
business, the entry into of a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to 
its terms, if material; 

(14) appointment of a successor or additional paying agent/registrar or the 
change of name of a paying agent/registrar, if material; 

(15) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the City, if material, or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 

47



 

74193047.7  -41- 

(16) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which 
reflect financial difficulties. 

For these purposes, (a) any event described in the immediately preceding paragraph (12) is 
considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 
or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any 
other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has 
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but 
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order 
confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or governmental 
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the 
City, and (b) the City intends the words used in the immediately preceding paragraphs (15) and 
(16) and the definition of Financial Obligation in this Section to have the same meanings as when 
they are used in the Rule, as evidenced by SEC Release No. 34-83885, dated August 20, 2018. 

The City shall file notice with the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to 
provide financial information or operating data in accordance with this Section by the time 
required by this Section. 

D. Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments.  The City shall be obligated to observe 
and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as, the City 
remains an “obligated person” with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except 
that the City in any event will give notice of any deposit that causes the Bonds to be no longer 
Outstanding. 

The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the Holders and beneficial owners 
of the Bonds, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any legal or 
equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The City undertakes to provide 
only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which it has 
expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Section and does not hereby undertake to provide any 
other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the City’s financial 
results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided in 
accordance with this Section or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The City does not 
make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision 
to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR 
TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY 
THE CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITH OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF 
ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF 
ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH 
BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC 
PERFORMANCE. 

48



 

74193047.7  -42- 

No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Section shall 
constitute a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other provision of this 
Ordinance. 

Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 
duties of the City under federal and state securities laws. 

The provisions of this Section may be amended by the City from time to time to adapt to 
changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change 
in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, but only if (1) the provisions of this 
Section, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the 
primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments 
or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed 
circumstances, and (2) either (a) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any 
greater amount required by any other provision of this Ordinance that authorizes such an 
amendment) of the Outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is 
unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that such 
amendment will not materially impair the interests of the holders and beneficial owners of the 
Bonds.  The City may also repeal or amend the provisions of this Section if the SEC amends or 
repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or any court of final jurisdiction enters judgment that 
such provisions of the Rule are invalid, and the City also may amend the provisions of this Section 
in its discretion in any other manner or circumstance, but in either case only if and to the extent 
that the provisions of this sentence would not have prevented an underwriter from lawfully 
purchasing or selling Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds, giving effect to (a) such 
provisions as so amended and (b) any amendments or interpretations of the Rule.  If the City so 
amends the provisions of this Section, it shall include with any amended financial information or 
operating data next provided in accordance with subsection B of this Section an explanation, in 
narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of 
financial information or operating data so provided. 

E. Information Format – Incorporation by Reference. 

The City information required under this Section shall be filed with the MSRB through 
EMMA in such format and accompanied by such identifying information as may be specified from 
time to time thereby.  Under the current rules of the MSRB, continuing disclosure documents 
submitted to EMMA must be in word-searchable portable document format (PDF) files that permit 
the document to be saved, viewed, printed, and retransmitted by electronic means and the series of 
obligations to which such continuing disclosure documents relate must be identified by CUSIP 
number or numbers. 

Financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be 
set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any document 
(including an official statement or other offering document) available to the public through EMMA 
or filed with the SEC. 

49



 

74193047.7  -43- 

F. General Policies and Procedures Concerning Compliance with Federal Securities 
Laws. 

Because the issuance of the Bonds is subject to the provisions of the Rule and because the 
potential “underwriters” in a negotiated sale of the Bonds or the initial purchasers in a competitive 
sale of the Bonds may be subject to MSRB rules and regulations with respect to such sale 
(including certain due diligence and suitability requirements, among others), the City hereby 
adopts the General Policies and Procedures Concerning Compliance with the Rule (the Policies 
and Procedures), attached hereto as Exhibit E, with which the City shall follow to assure 
compliance with the Undertaking.  The City has developed these Policies and Procedures for the 
purpose of meeting its requirements of the Undertaking and, in connection therewith, has sought 
the guidance from its internal staff charged with administering the City’s financial affairs, its 
municipal or financial advisors, its legal counsel (including its Bond Counsel), and its independent 
accountants (to the extent determined to be necessary or advisable).The Policies and Procedures 
can be amended at the sole discretion of the City and any such amendment will not be deemed to 
be an amendment to the Undertaking.  Each Authorized Official is hereby authorized to amend the 
Policies and Procedures as a result of a change in law, a future issuance of indebtedness subject to 
the Rule, or another purpose determined by the Authorized Official to be necessary or desirable 
for or with respect to future compliance with the Undertaking. 

SECTION 49. Book-Entry Only System.  

It is intended that the Bonds will initially be registered so as to participate in a securities 
depository system (the DTC System) with the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, 
or any successor entity thereto (DTC), as set forth herein.  Each Stated Maturity of the Bonds shall 
be issued (following cancellation of the Initial Bond described in Section 7) in the form of a 
separate single definitive Bond.  Upon issuance, the ownership of each such Bond shall be 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC, and all of the Outstanding Bonds 
shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC.  The City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar are authorized to execute, deliver, and take the actions set forth in such letters to 
or agreements with DTC as shall be necessary to effectuate the DTC System, including the Letter 
of Representations attached hereto as Exhibit D (the Representation Letter). 

With respect to the Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the 
City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any broker-dealer, 
bank, or other financial institution for which DTC holds the Bonds from time to time as securities 
depository (a Depository Participant) or to any person on behalf of whom such a Depository 
Participant holds an interest in the Bonds (an Indirect Participant).  Without limiting the 
immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no 
responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co., or 
any Depository Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to 
any Depository Participant or any other person, other than a registered owner of the Bonds, as 
shown on the Security Register, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of 
redemption, or (iii) the delivery to any Depository Participant or any Indirect Participant or any 
other Person, other than a Holder of a Bond, of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, 
if any, or interest on the Bonds.  While in the DTC System, no person other than Cede & Co., or 
any successor thereto, as nominee for DTC, shall receive a bond certificate evidencing the 

50



 

74193047.7  -44- 

obligation of the City to make payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect 
that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the 
provisions in this Ordinance with respect to interest checks or drafts being mailed to the Holder, 
the word “Cede & Co.” in this Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

In the event that (a) the City determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its 
responsibilities described herein and in the Representation Letter, (b) the Representation Letter 
shall be terminated for any reason, or (c) DTC or the City determines that it is in the best interest 
of the beneficial owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, the City shall 
notify the Paying Agent/Registrar, DTC, and the Depository Participants of the availability within 
a reasonable period of time through DTC of bond certificates, and the Bonds shall no longer be 
restricted to being registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  At that time, the 
City may determine that the Bonds shall be registered in the name of and deposited with a 
successor depository operating a securities depository system, as may be acceptable to the City, or 
such depository’s agent or designee, and if the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar do not select 
such alternate securities depository system then the Bonds may be registered in whatever name or 
names the Holders of Bonds transferring or exchanging the Bonds shall designate, in accordance 
with the provisions hereof. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any Bond 
is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to principal 
of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such Bonde shall be 
made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representation Letter. 

SECTION 50. Further Procedures.  The officers and employees of the City are hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all such 
acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name and under the corporate seal 
and on behalf of the City all such instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as may be 
necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this Ordinance, the initial 
sale and delivery of the Bonds, the Request for Scope Modification, and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement.  In addition, prior to the initial delivery of the Bonds, any Authorized 
Official and Bond Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to approve any technical changes 
or corrections to this Ordinance or to any of the instruments authorized and approved by this 
Ordinance and as described in the Request for Scope Modification necessary in order to (i) correct 
any ambiguity or mistake or properly or more completely document the transactions contemplated 
and approved by this Ordinance, (ii) obtain a rating from any of the national bond rating agencies, 
or (iii) obtain the approval of the Bonds by the Texas Attorney General’s office.  In case any officer 
of the City whose signature shall appear on any certificate shall cease to be such officer before the 
delivery of such certificate, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all 
purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery. 

SECTION 51. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after 
its final passage, and it is so ordained. 

51



 

74193047.7  S-1 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on the ___ day of April, 2019. 

CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
 
 

(CITY SEAL) 

52



 

74193047.7  Index-1 

INDEX TO SCHEDULES AND EXHIBITS 

Schedule I .................. Schedule of Exchanged Obligations 
Exhibit A ................... Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement 
Exhibit B ................... Escrow Agreement 
Exhibit C ................... Description of Annual Financial Information 
Exhibit D ................... DTC Letter of Representations 
Exhibit E .................... General Policies and Procedures Concerning Compliance 

with the Rule 
 
 

53



 

74193047.7  Schedule I-1 

Schedule I 

Exchanged Obligations 

City of  Wimberley, Texas Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017, dated  July 
15, 2017, in the original principal amount of $5,255,000 (the Exchanged 
Obligations), purchased and currently held by the Texas Water Development 
Board, stated to mature on  August 1 in each of the years 2019 through 2046 in the 
aggregate principal amount of $5,255,000, to be exchanged for the Bonds with the 
Texas Water Development Board on the Closing Date.

54



 

74193047.7  A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT 
 

SEE TAB NO. __ 

55



 

74193047.7  B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

ESCROW AGREEMENT 
 

56



 

74193047.7  C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following information is referred to in Section 48 of this Ordinance. 

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 

The financial information and operating data with respect to the City to be provided 
annually in accordance with such Section are as specified (and included in the Appendix or under 
the headings of the Application referred to) below: 

The City’s audited financial statements for the most recently concluded fiscal year 
or to the extent these audited financial statements are not available, the portions of 
the unaudited financial statements of the City referenced in the Application, but for 
the most recently concluded fiscal year. 

Accounting Principles 

The accounting principles referred to in such Section are generally accepted accounting 
principles for governmental units as prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board 
from time to time. 

 

57



 

74193047.7  D-1 

EXHIBIT D 

DTC LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 

SEE TAB NO. __ 

58



 

74193047.7  E-1 

EXHIBIT E 
 

General Policies and Procedures Concerning Compliance with the Rule 
 

I. Capitalized terms used in this Exhibit have the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 48 of 
the Ordinance.  “Bonds” refers to the Bonds that are the subject of the Ordinance to which 
this Exhibit is attached. 

II. As a capital markets participant, the City is aware of its continuing disclosure requirements 
and obligations existing under the Rule prior to February 27, 2019, the effective date of the 
most recent amendment to the Rule (the Effective Date), and has implemented and 
maintained internal policies, processes, and procedures to ensure compliance therewith. 
Adherence to these internal policies, processes, and procedures has enabled underwriters 
in non-exempt negotiated sales and initial purchasers in non-exempt competitive sales to 
comply with their obligations arising under various MSRB rules and regulations 
concerning due diligence and findings of suitability, among other matters, regarding the 
City’s compliance with the Rule. 

III. The City is aware that the Rule was amended as of the Effective Date (the Rule Amendment) 
and has accommodated this amendment by adding subparagraphs (15) and (16) to Section 
47 of the Ordinance, which provisions are a part of the Undertaking. 

IV. The City is aware that “participating underwriters” (as such term is defined in the Rule) of 
the Bonds must make inquiry and reasonably believe that the City is likely to comply with 
the Undertaking and that the standards for determining compliance have increased over 
time as a result of, among others, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission’s 
Municipalities Continuing Disclosure Cooperation Initiative and regulatory commentary 
relating to the effectiveness of the Rule Amendment. 

V. The City now establishes the following general policies and procedures (the Policies and 
Procedures) for satisfying its obligations pursuant to the Undertaking, which policies and 
procedures have been developed based on the City’s informal policies, procedures, and 
processes utilized prior to the Effective Date for compliance with the City’s obligations 
under the Rule, the advice from and discussions with the City’s internal senior staff 
(including staff charged with administering the City’s financial affairs), its municipal or 
financial advisors, its legal counsel (including Bond Counsel), and its independent 
accountants, to the extent determined to be necessary or advisable (collectively, the 
Compliance Team): 

a. City Administrator (the Compliance Officer) shall be responsible for satisfying the 
City’s obligations pursuant to the Undertaking through adherence to these Policies 
and Procedures; 

b. the Compliance Officer shall establish reminder or “tickler” systems to identify and 
timely report to the MSRB, in the format thereby prescribed from time to time, the 
City’s information of the type described in Section 48 of the Ordinance; 

c. the Compliance Officer shall promptly determine the occurrence of any of the 
events described in Section 48 of the Ordinance; 

d. the Compliance Officer shall work with external consultants of the City, as and to 
the extent necessary, to timely prepare and file with the MSRB the annual 
information of the City and notice of the occurrence of any of the events referenced 

59



 

 

in Clauses 2 and 3 above, respectfully, the foregoing being required to satisfy the 
terms of the Undertaking; 

e. the Compliance Officer shall establish a system for identifying and monitoring any 
Financial Obligations, whether now existing or hereafter entered into by the Issuer, 
and (upon identification) determining if such Financial Obligation has the potential 
to materially impact the security or source of repayment of the Bonds; 

f. upon identification of any Financial Obligation meeting the materiality standard 
identified in Clause 5 above, the Compliance Officer shall establish a process for 
identifying and monitoring any City agreement to covenants, events of default, 
remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms under such Financial Obligation; 

g. the Compliance Officer shall establish a process for identifying the occurrence of 
any default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 
similar events under the terms of any Financial Obligation, the occurrence of any 
of which reflect financial difficulties of the City; and 

h. the Compliance Officer shall annually review these Policies and Procedures with 
the remainder of the Compliance Team, make any modifications on an internal 
document retained by the Compliance Officer and available to any “participating 
underwriter” (as defined in the Rule), if requested, and on the basis of this annual 
review (to the extent determined to be necessary or desirable), seek additional 
training for herself or himself, as well as other members of the City’s internal staff 
identified by the Compliance Officer to assist with the City’s satisfaction of the 
terms and provisions of the Undertaking. 

60



 

AGENDA FORM 

 

A. Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council Meeting held March 21, 2019. 
 

B. Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council Meeting held April 4, 2019. 
 

A. Approval of  

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☐ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

    

 

Approval of Items A and B 

AGENDA ITEM: Consent Agenda 

SUBMITTED BY: Laura Calcote, City Secretary 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

61



City of Wimberley 
  221 Stillwater, P.O. Box 2027, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

 
 

      REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
WIMBERLEY CITY HALL – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
        221 STILLWATER, WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 78676 

THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2019 – 5:30 P.M. 
 

MINUTES 
 
CALL TO ORDER   
Mayor Susan Jaggers called the meeting to order at 5:34 p.m. 
 
CALL OF ROLL  
Council Members Present: Susan Jaggers Mayor 
    Mike McCullough Place One 
    Craig Fore  Place Two 
    Allison Davis  Place Three 
    Gary Barchfeld Place Four 
    Erik Wollam  Place Five 
 
City Staff Present:  Shawn Cox  City Administrator 
    Laura Calcote City Secretary  
    Rebecca Manning Parks Director 
  
INVOCATION 
Council Member Gary Barchfeld gave the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/SALUTE TO THE TEXAS FLAG 
Mayor Susan Jaggers led the pledges to the United States and Texas flags. 
 
(Motion to move Item No. 6 – Executive Session to Item No. 5 on the agenda was made by 
Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  
Motion carried unanimously (5-0)). 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The City Council adjourned into Executive Session at 5:38 p.m. in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551, Subchapter D, for the following purposes: 

 
A. Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) to receive legal advice regarding Aqua Texas 

contract. 
 

B. Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) to receive legal advice regarding the 
disannexation of Sabino Ranch. 

 

 

62



 
OPEN SESSION 
Regular Session reconvened at 6:35 p.m. Mayor Susan Jaggers stated possible action on these 
items would be considered after Citizens Communications.  Any and all action was taken after 
Citizens Communications.  
 
A. Discuss and consider possible action to authorize the City of Wimberley to execute an 

agreement with Aqua Texas. 
Motion to postpone this item until the next City Council meeting was made by Council 
Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion 
carried unanimously (5-0). 
 

B. Discussion and possible action resulting from Executive Session. 
There was lengthy discussion regarding the disannexation of Sabino Ranch.  It was noted the 
ordinance for the disannexation was provided in Executive Session, and not before the 
meeting for review.  Council Member Gary Barchfeld provided a history of the property and 
read aloud the state statute allowing for disannexation.  Furthermore, the ordinance language 
was reviewed by Council members during the discussion.  Council Member Craig Fore stated 
he had concerns about removing the property from the City Limits, which might set a 
precedence for other property owners to petition the City to do the same.  He noted his job 
was to protect the City.  Council Member Allison Davis voiced her concerns about removing 
nearly 100 acres from the middle of the City and stated the county’s restrictions on 
development were less stringent than the City’s, which could lead to unmanaged growth in the 
future on the property.  She questioned Council’s right to bargain away their legislative 
authority by approving the disannexation.  Council Member Mike McCullough noted he was in 
favor of the disannexation request, and Council Member Erik Wollam had no comment.   
Motion to accept the ordinance allowing for the disannexation of Sabino Ranch was 
made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded by Council Member 
Mike McCullough.  Motion carried as follows (3-2-1): 

Mike McCullough Aye 
Gary Barchfeld  Aye 
Susan Jaggers  Aye 
Craig Fore  Nay 
Allison Davis  Nay 

      Erik Wollam        Abstain            
 
CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS 
There were six citizen’s comments.  They were as follows: 
1. Michael Bachers addressed Council regarding the disannexation of Sabino Ranch, and the 
Johnson Family’s role in the move to Aqua Texas for the Central Wimberley Wastewater Project.  
Mr. Bachers stated there were red flags involved in the actions and contended quid pro quo was 
occurring with the disannexation of the property. 
 
2. M.F. Johnson acknowledged City Council members for their thankless job. 
 
3. Scott Johnson thanked City Council for hearing the family’s disannexation request, and stated 
the Johnsons would not be leaving Wimberley, even if the disannexation was approved.  Mr. 
Johnson highlighted the family’s history in the Wimberley community, and noted their continued 
contribution to the Wimberley Valley. 

63



 
4. Susan Neeney, Friends of Blue Hole’s Executive Director, spoke regarding the Texas Parks 
and Wildlife Department’s (TPWD) response letter from January 2019 pertaining to the proposed 
change in scope to the Central Wimberley Wastewater Project.  Ms. Neeney advised on the 
endangered species mentioned in the letter, including the Golden-cheeked warbler that had 
recently been sighted in Blue Hole Regional Park, and how the Council needed to heed the 
concerns of the TPWD when considering the project area and how it may negatively impact the 
bird’s habitat. 
 
5. Christine Middleton addressed Council regarding riparian areas and advocated for more 
education surrounding the topic.  Ms. Middleton also stated the Cypress Creek Nature Preserve’s 
riparian area could be utilized as an educational resource and urged City Council to keep the trail 
open to the public. 
 
6. Martha Knies asked questions relating to the Cypress Creek Nature Preserve Trail, including 
who was interested in barrier fencing for the area, what was the recommendation for fencing, 
where would the proposed fencing take place and why fence the trail.  Ms. Knies also questioned 
the timing of the issue being brought before Council, and asked Council to wait to vote until a 
proposed master plan had been presented. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda was made by Council Member Erik Wollam.  
Motion was seconded by Council Member Mike McCullough.  Motion carried unanimously 
(5-0). 
A. Approval of minutes from the Special Joint City Council and Wastewater Ad Hoc Advisory 

Committee Meeting held February 28, 2019. 
 

B. Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council Meeting held March 7, 2019. 
 

C. Approval of January 2019 Financial Statements for the City of Wimberley.  
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
City Administrator Shawn Cox updated Council regarding the status of the Central Wimberley 
Wastewater Project.  Mr. Cox noted the Texas Water Development Board was close to finalizing 
draft statements for the requested change in scope for the Project.  Additionally, Mr. Cox 
advised sales tax for Fiscal Year 2019 was currently higher than the same time period in 2018.  
Lastly, Mr. Cox highlighted completed and on-going road projects, including the completion of 
the crosswalks and speed humps at Carney Lane and the grate improvement at the Hidden 
Valley Bridge. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
Hold a public hearing and consider approval of the first reading regarding an ordinance amending 
Chapter 9 (Planning & Development Regulations) Article 9.03 (Zoning), Division 3, (District 
Regulations) Section 9.03.098 (Planned Development District; WPDD) of the City of Wimberley 
Code of Ordinances; and providing for the following:  findings of fact, a savings clause, a repealing 
clause, a severability clause, effective date, and proper notice and meeting. (Place Two Council 
Member Craig Fore) 
City Administrator Shawn Cox presented the proposed ordinance, which would require all 
proposed WPDD amendments to go through the public hearing process versus the potential of 

64



City staff approval.  The Planning and Zoning Commission had recommended this ordinance 
amendment by a unanimous vote at their March 14th meeting. 
Mayor Susan Jaggers opened the public hearing at 7:27 p.m. 
There were no citizen’s comments. 
Mayor Susan Jaggers closed the public hearing at 7:27 p.m. 
There was discussion among Council members regarding the proposed change and the approval 
process for WPDDs.  Council Member Allison Davis noted the expanded oversight on private 
property owners by allowing for the change. 
Motion to approve the first reading regarding an ordinance amending Chapter 9 (Planning 
& Development Regulations) Article 9.03 (Zoning), Division 3, (District Regulations) 
Section 9.03.098 (Planned Development District; WPDD) of the City of Wimberley Code of 
Ordinances; and providing for the following:  findings of fact, a savings clause, a repealing 
clause, a severability clause, effective date, and proper notice and meeting was made by 
Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  
Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

 
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
A. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the appointment of a consensus member to 

the Board of Adjustment. (Place Four Council Member Gary Barchfeld) 
Council Member Gary Barchfeld nominated Michael Crowley as the consensus member to the 
Board of Adjustment. 
Motion to appoint Michael (Mike) Crowley as the consensus member to the Board of 
Adjustment was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded by 
Council Member Mike McCullough.  Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

 
B. Discuss and consider possible action regarding a request to operate a food service trailer at 

9595 RR 12 in Wimberley, Texas. (Randy Engemoen/Rondooley’s, Applicant) 
Rhonda Matthews addressed Council regarding the request to move the Rondooley’s food 
truck to the junction of Ranch Road 12 and FM 32 behind Milagros. 
Motion to approve the request to operate a food service trailer at 9595 RR 12 in 
Wimberley, Texas was made by Council Member Allison Davis.  Motion was seconded 
by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

 
C. Discuss and consider possible action regarding an ordinance adding Article 4.12, Landscaping 

and Tree Preservation to Chapter 4, Building Regulations of the City of Wimberly Code of 
Ordinances. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
There was lengthy discussion among Council members and staff regarding a proposed tree 
ordinance, which had been discussed at previous meetings.  It was suggested that instead of 
an ordinance, a development plan should be implemented for tree preservation.  Council 
Member Craig Fore noted a monetary value could not be placed on trees.  Council Member 
Allison Davis stated tree preservation, especially for heritage trees, is needed and should be 
considered when permitting new projects.  Council agreed tree protection and preservation 
within the City was important.  No action was taken on this item, and staff requested input or 
feedback on the proposed ordinance before the April 4th meeting.   
 
Motion to take a 5-minute recess at 7:54 p.m. was made by Council Member Allison 
Davis.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion carried 
unanimously (5-0). 
 

65



Council Member Allison Davis left the meeting at 7:54 p.m. 
 
Regular Session reconvened at 8:04 p.m. 

 
D. Discuss and consider possible action approving the proposed route for the 2019 Wimberley 

Fourth of July Parade. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
Motion to approve the proposed route for the 2019 Wimberley Fourth of July Parade 
was made by Council Member Erik Wollam.  Motion was seconded by Council Member 
Gary Barchfeld.  Motion carried unanimously (4-0). 

 
E. Discuss and consider possible action regarding continued legal expenditure related to the 

development of the short-term rental (STR) conditional use permit (CUP) ordinance. (City 
Administrator Shawn Cox) 
City Administrator Shawn Cox advised the City had spent roughly $4,800 on the short-term 
rental ordinance since November 2018 and requested Council’s approval before expending 
further funds on the topic.  There was discussion among Council members and Mr. Cox 
regarding the long process of drafting and reviewing the ordinance and the short-term rental 
bills that had been introduced during the on-going 86th Texas Legislative Session.   There was 
also discussion on the delay from the Planning and Zoning Commission to make a 
recommendation to City Council regarding the ordinance.   
Motion to continue legal counsel funding for the short-term rental ordinance was made 
by Council Member Erik Wollam.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  
Motion carried unanimously (4-0). 
 

F. Discuss and consider possible action regarding short-term rentals and conditional use permits. 
(Place Four Council Member Gary Barchfeld) 
Council Member Gary Barchfeld continued the discussion on short-term rentals and condition 
use permit topic.  Mr. Barchfeld stated that the matter had been drug out long enough and 
would like to see progress made by completing the short-term rental ordinance and the 
Planning and Zoning Commission to make a recommendation to Council regarding the 
ordinance.  There was discussion on the timeline to complete each task. 
Motion to instruct City staff to move forward as expeditiously, effectively and fairly as 
possible to complete the short-term rental ordinance and address related issues was 
made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded by Council Member 
Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (4-0).  

 
G. Discuss and reconsider possible action regarding case ZA-19-001, an application to change 

the zoning from Single-Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Commercial-Low Impact (C-1) for 
property located at 13301 Ranch Road 12, Wimberley, Hays County, Texas; and providing for 
the following: delineation on zoning map; findings of fact; severability; effective date and proper 
notice and meeting.  (Mystic Hill, LLC, Sibyl Burrows, Applicant) 
There was one citizen comment.  Applicant Sibyl Burrows addressed Council regarding her 
zoning change request.  Ms. Burrows noted the property was small and not much development 
could occur because of such.  City Council members discussed the property and the potential 
issues with the zoning change from residential to commercial, including part of the property 
being in located a floodplain area.  There was discussion among the applicant and Council on 
the type of zoning to consider and contended C-1 might not be appropriate for what the 
applicant was trying to accomplish. 
 

66



Motion to postpone the item until the applicant further reviewed the requested zoning 
change was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded by 
Council Member Mike McCullough.  Motion carried unanimously (4-0). 
 

H. Discuss and consider possible action to approve the termination of the Financial Assistance 
Award Agreement with the Economic Development Administration (EDA) and accept 
reimbursement from the EDA in the amount of $177,548.31. (Place Four Council Member 
Gary Barchfeld) 
Motion to approve the termination of the Financial Assistance Award Agreement with 
the Economic Development Administration (EDA) and accept reimbursement in the 
amount of $177,548.31 was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was 
seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (4-0). 

 
I. Discuss and consider possible action to fund a barrier fencing for the Cypress Creek Nature 

Preserve. (Mayor Susan Jaggers) 
There was one citizen comment.  Merry Gibson voiced her support for the barrier fencing at 
the Cypress Creek Nature Preserve and highlighted certain aspects from the Conservation 
Easement allowing for fencing and a gate in the area.   
Mayor Susan Jaggers requested funding not to exceed $8,000 for a barrier fence at the 
Preserve to aid in trespassing offenses.  Council members were not in support and opted to 
wait until the Wimberley Valley Watershed Association had a chance to present a draft master 
plan for the Preserve at an upcoming meeting in April. 
No action was taken on this item. 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  
A. Announcements – None.  

 
B. Future agenda items – Council Member Craig Fore stated he would like to discuss the topic 

of impervious cover at a future meeting. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:00 p.m. was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  
Motion was seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (4-0). 
 
RECORDED BY: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Laura J. Calcote, City Secretary 
         

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan Jaggers, Mayor 

 
 
 
 

67



City of Wimberley 
  221 Stillwater, P.O. Box 2027, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

 
 

          REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
WIMBERLEY CITY HALL – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
        221 STILLWATER, WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 78676 

THURSDAY, APRIL 4, 2019 – 5:30 P.M. 
 

MINUTES 
 
CALL TO ORDER   
Mayor Susan Jaggers called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
CALL OF ROLL    
Council Members Present: Susan Jaggers Mayor 
    Mike McCullough Place One 
    Craig Fore  Place Two 
    Gary Barchfeld Place Four 
    Erik Wollam  Place Five 
 
Council Members Absent: Allison Davis  Place Three 
 
City Staff Present:  Shawn Cox  City Administrator 
    Laura Calcote City Secretary  
    Charlie Zech  City Attorney 
    Rebecca Manning Parks Director 
   
INVOCATION 
Council Member Gary Barchfeld gave the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/SALUTE TO THE TEXAS FLAG 
Mayor Susan Jaggers led the pledges to the United States and Texas flags. 

 
PROCLAMATIONS 
Mayor Susan Jaggers read aloud the two proclamations and presented them to several 
representatives from the Hays-Caldwell Women’s Center. 
A. Proclamation of the City of Wimberley, Texas proclaiming April 2019 as Child Abuse 

Prevention and Awareness Month. (Hays-Caldwell Women’s Center) 
Motion to support the Proclamation was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  
Motion was seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (4-
0). 
 

 

 

68



B. Proclamation of the City of Wimberley, Texas proclaiming April 2019 as Sexual Assault 
Awareness and Prevention Month. (Hays-Caldwell Women’s Center) 
Motion to support the Proclamation was made by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion 
was seconded by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion carried unanimously (4-0). 

 
CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS 
There were three citizen’s comments.  They were as follows: 
1. Steve Thurber addressed Council regarding the Mayor’s Corner article published in the  
Wimberley View on April 4th.  Mr. Thurber refuted statements made in the article concerning the 
Central Wimberley Wastewater Project, and noted the system would be working and online today, 
if a change in scope had not been requested.  Furthermore, the Project would not be completed in  
90 days, as the article stated. 
 
2. Andrew Weber spoke regarding the Texas Water Development Board’s recent approval of the  
change in scope for the Central Wimberley Wastewater Project, along with the four conditions that  
must be met to move forward with the Project.  Mr. Weber stated a property/ad valorem tax would  
be required and the bonds must be changed to from revenue to refund exchanging bonds for the  
change to be fulfilled.  Additionally, Mr. Weber questioned the move to Aqua Texas from the  
City’s original plan. 
 
3. Phil Van Ostrand thanked City Council for their hard work and dedication.  Mr. Van Ostrand  
commented on the Texas Water Development Board’s recent approval of the change in scope for  
the Central Wimberley Wastewater Project, and the issues raised by the Board for the change,  
including sightings of the Golden-cheeked warbler in Blue Hole Regional Park, which had previously  
been addressed.  He suggested that Park activity should be reduced in general in order not to  
disturb the birds. 
 
PRESENTATIONS  
A. Presentation by the Wastewater Ad Hoc Advisory Committee regarding the study of the  

Wimberley Wastewater Collection System. (Committee Chair Kirby Atwell) 
Wastewater Ad Hoc Committee Chairperson Kirby Atwell presented information pertaining  
to the Central Wimberley Wastewater Project, including the number of users, living unit  
equivalents (LUEs), potential billing systems and a comparison of a move to Aqua Texas versus  
the City’s original plan.  Mr. Atwell addressed potential issues with the change in scope to  
Aqua Texas, noting reserve funds, the cost of drilling under Cypress Creek,  
legal expenses, environmental concerns and a bond rate increase.  There was discussion  
between members of the Committee, Mr. Atwell, Chris Oddo and Maridel Martinez,  
and City Council regarding the information presented. 
 

B. Presentation and update regarding the Cypress Creek Nature Preserve Master Plan.  
(Wimberley Valley Watershed Association Representative Daniel Alvarado) 
Daniel Alvarado of Alvarado Works addressed Council regarding the study and results of the  
Cypress Creek Nature Preserve to develop a Master Plan for the area.  Mr. Alvarado, the 
Wimberley Valley Watershed Association and the City had been working together to survey the  
existing conditions of the area and suggest improvements for the future.  There was discussion  
pertaining to the potential Master Plan, including proposed trail alignment, design and signage.   

69



Mayor Susan Jaggers questioned the Conservation Easement and public access to the  
Preserve, and suggested possibly terminating the Easement.  A public meeting would be held on  
the topic at the Wimberley Community Center on April 11, 2019 before a draft of the Master Plan 
was presented to City Council at a future meeting. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
City Council adjourned into Executive Session at 6:35 p.m., in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551, Subchapter D for the following purposes: 
A. Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) to receive legal advice regarding an Aqua 

Texas contract. 
 

B. Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) to receive legal advice regarding the issuance 
of City of Wimberley Series 2019 bonds. 

 
C. Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) to receive legal advice regarding litigation in 

Cause No. 19-0279-C; Madrone Office Park & Storage, LLC v. City of Wimberley Board of 
Adjustment. 

 
D. Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) to receive legal advice about litigation in Case 

No. 16-2419; Risoli v. City of Wimberley and Wimberley Board of Adjustment; 207th District 
Court, Hays County, Texas. 

 
OPEN SESSION 
Regular Session reconvened at 7:53 p.m.  No action was taken. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  
Motion was seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (4-
0). 
Approval of Mayor Susan Jagger’s appointment of Sara Dishman to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
City Administrator Shawn Cox updated Council regarding the status of the Central Wimberley 
Wastewater Project, including line locations, review of the lift station submittals, repaving of 
Ranch Road 12 and the Texas Water Development Board’s approval of the change in scope 
for the Project, including the four conditions that must be met.  Additionally, Mr. Cox provided 
an update regarding the status of the short-term rental ordinance. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
Hold a public hearing and consider approval of the second and final reading regarding an 
ordinance amending Chapter 9 (Planning & Development Regulations) Article 9.03 (Zoning), 
Division 3, (District Regulations) Section 9.03.098 (Planned Development District; WPDD) of the 
City of Wimberley Code of Ordinances; and providing for the following:  findings of fact, a savings 
clause, a repealing clause, a severability clause, effective date, and proper notice and meeting. 
(Place Two Council Member Craig Fore) 

70



City Administrator Shawn Cox noted a second public hearing was not required for the ordinance. 
Motion to approve the second and final reading regarding an ordinance amending 
Chapter 9 (Planning & Development Regulations) Article 9.03 (Zoning), Division 3, 
(District Regulations) Section 9.03.098 (Planned Development District; WPDD) of the City 
of Wimberley Code of Ordinances; and providing for the following:  findings of fact, a 
savings clause, a repealing clause, a severability clause, effective date, and proper notice 
and meeting was made by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion was seconded by Council 
Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion carried unanimously (4-0). 

 
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
A. Discuss and consider possible action regarding Friends of Blue Hole sponsoring a Yoga in 

the Park Program on the Blue Hole Swim Lawn. (Parks Director Rebecca Manning) 
Parks Director Rebecca Manning presented the six-week yoga series sponsored by Friends 
of Blue Hole, which would take place on Fridays from April 12th until May 24th, if approved by 
Council.  The spring yoga series would be at no cost to the City. 
Motion to approve the Friends of Blue Hole sponsoring a Yoga in the Park Program on 
the Blue Hole Swim Lawn was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was 
seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (4-0). 

 
B. Discuss and consider possible action to form a committee to write a new agreement with the 

City of Wimberley and Friends of Blue Hole. (Parks Director Rebecca Manning and Board 
Chair Mark Bursiel) 
Parks Director Rebecca Manning presented the Parks and Recreation Board’s motion to form 
an informal committee consisting of two members of City Council, members of the Parks 
Board, Parks Department staff and Friends of Blue Hole to write a new agreement with the 
City and Friends of Blue Hole.  Mrs. Manning suggested she could write a draft agreement 
and submit it to the Parks Board and City Council for review.  There was discussion between 
staff and Council regarding the drafting of the agreement.  Council Member Gary Barchfeld 
volunteered to be the City Council representative for the committee. 
Motion to create an informal committee, consisting of Council Member Gary Barchfeld, 
members of the Parks and Recreation Board, Parks Department staff and Friends of 
Blue Hole to draft a new agreement between the City of Wimberley and the Friends of 
Blue Hole was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded by 
Council Member Mike McCullough.  Motion carried unanimously (4-0). 
 

C. Discuss and consider possible action to utilize Specialized Public Finance, Inc. as financial 
advisors for the City of Wimberley. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
Motion to postpone this item until the next City Council meeting was made by Council 
Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion 
carried unanimously (4-0). 
 

 
D. Discuss and consider possible action to engage Zara Environmental, LLC to conduct a GCW 

analysis for the Central Wimberley Wastewater Project. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
There was one citizen comment.  Lila McCall spoke regarding the potential Friends of Blue 
Hole agreement with the City, and cautioned Council to be careful with the group.  Ms. McCall 

71



also addressed the Golden-cheeked warbler issue and the associated costs to the City to 
conduct an analysis for the bird.  Ms. McCall suggested the City consider selling Blue Hole 
Regional Park to Friends of Blue Hole and have them pay for the cost of the analysis. 
 
City Administrator Shawn Cox presented Council with a cost estimate in the amount of 
$9,884.00 from Zara Environmental, LLC for the Golden-cheeked warbler (GCW) habitat 
assessment and nest surveys in Blue Hole Regional Park.  The timeline for the analysis 
would be within two weeks of receiving an executed contract.  The GCW analysis was one 
of the environmental conditions set forth by the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department and 
the Texas Water Development Board for the approval of the change in scope to the Central 
Wimberley Wastewater Project.   
Motion to contract with Zara Environmental, LLC in an amount not to exceed $9,884, 
plus 10 percent contingency, to conduct a Golden-cheeked warbler analysis for the 
Central Wimberley Wastewater Project was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  
Motion was seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (4-
0). 
 

E. Discuss and consider possible action to approve Ordinance No. 2019-07, disannexation of 
approximately 22 acres contiguous to the City Limits, generally described as 100 Madrone 
Trail. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
Rick Millinor addressed Council regarding his request to disannex from the City limits, as had 
been granted to Sabino Ranch at the previous City Council meeting.  There was discussion 
among Council members pertaining to the request, the property’s location and state 
disannexation regulations and laws.   
Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2019-07, disannexing approximately 22 acres 
contiguous to the City Limits, generally described as 100 Madrone Trail was made by 
Council Member Mike McCullough.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Erik 
Wollam.  Motion carried as follows (3-2): 

Mike McCullough Aye 
Erik Wollam  Aye 
Susan Jaggers  Aye 
Craig Fore  Nay 
Gary Barchfeld  Nay 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  
A. Announcements – None.  

 
B. Future agenda items – None.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:43 p.m. was made by Council Member Gary 
Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Mike McCullough.  Motion carried 
unanimously (4-0). 
 
 
 

72



RECORDED BY: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Laura J. Calcote, City Secretary 
         

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan Jaggers, Mayor 

 
 
 
 

73



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

The City Administrator will provide an update to Council on the progress of the Central Wimberley 
Wastewater Project, including construction progress, expenditures to date, and other updates related 
to the project. Additionally, updates will be provided on sales tax revenues and signage at the 
Wimberley Community Center.  
 
 

 

Motion  ☐ 

Discussion   ☐ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☒ 

 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: City Administrator’s Report 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

74



75

Report for CUP-19-001 

Summary: 

Applicant Information: 
Applicant: 

Property Owner: 

Subject Property: 
Legal Description: 
Location: 
Existing Use of Property: 
Existing Zoning: 
Proposed Use of Property: 
Proposed Zoning: 
Planning Area: 
Overlay District: 

Surroundings: 
Frontage On: 
Area Zoning and Land Use 
Pattern: 

Legal Notice 
200' Letters: 
Published: 
Sign Placement: 
Responses: 

Comments: 

An application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow for the 
operation of a Vacation Rental at 13301 RR 12 

Mystic Hill, LLC/Sibyl Burrows 
970 Verde Vista Drive 
Wimberley, TX 78676 
Mystic Hill, LLC/Sibyl Burrows 

3.295 acres out of the Amasa Turner Survey, Abstract No. 461 

13301 RR 12 
Residential 
Single-Family Residential 2 (R-2) 
Vacation Rental 
CUP 
Ill 
Protected Waterway 

Ranch Road 12 

N of Property 

S of Property 
E of Property 
W of Property 

03/06/2019 
03/14/2019 
03/12/2019 
none 

Current Zoning 
RA,C1 

C1 
R2 
RA 

Existing Land Use 
Residential, 
Commercial 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 

The applicant, Mystic Hill, LLC, has requested a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to operate a 
Vacation Rental for property located at 13301 Ranch Road 12. 

The proposed Vacation Rental consists of two (2) bedrooms & one (1) bathroom. The City 
Sanitarian has reviewed this request and stated a maximum occupancy of four (4) people per 
septic regulations. 

City staff is recommending the following conditions be made part of the requested CUP, should 
the City Council recommend approval: 

4/15/2019 



76

1. No organized outside activities shall be allowed on the property after 10 p.m. 

2. No guests, other than paying guests, shall be allowed on the property at any time, unless 
approved in advanced, in writing, by the owner or their agent. 

3. The grounds outside the residence shall remain free of litter and trash at all times. 

4. A fire escape plan, identifying fire exits shall be developed and graphically displayed in 
each guest room. 

5. One (1) smoke alarm shall be provided in each guest room, along with a fire extinguisher 
visible and accessible to guests. 

6. A valid taxpayer number for reporting any Texas/City tax shall be provided to the City 
along with a copy of the completed City of Wimberley/State of Texas Hotel Occupancy 
Tax Questionnaire, no later than thirty (30) days of such change. 

7. The City shall be notified of any change in ownership of the subject property within thirty 
(30) days of such change. 

8. A copy of the requirements set forth in the CUP shall be made available to all guests. 

9. The subject property owner shall provide the City and property owners within two 
hundred (200) feet of the subject property, with the current names and contact 
information (including telephone numbers and e-mail address) for the local responsible 
party for the subject property. The local contact shall be able to respond to any incident 
within thirty (30) minutes of a call and shall be authorized to make decisions regarding 
tenants at the property. If the name or contact information for the local contact changes, 
then the property owners shall notify the City and property owners within two hundred 
(200) feet of the subject property, with the current name and contact information. 

10. Unruly gatherings are prohibited. Unruly gathering means a gathering of more than one 
(1) person which is conducted on premises within the City and which, by reason of the 
conduct of those persons in attendance, results in the occurrence of one (1) or more of 
the following conditions or events on public or private property: the destruction of 
property; obstruction of roadways, driveways, or public ways by crowds or vehicles; 
excessive noise; disturbances, brawls, fights or quarrels; public urination or defecation; or 
indecent or obscene conduct or exposure. 

11. The property shall be subject to inspection at any time by designated City representatives 
if compliance is in question, with proper notice provided if feasible. 

12. The CUP shall terminate and be considered abandoned if and when there is evidence of 
no rental activity, based in part of the State/City Hotel Occupancy Tax Reports, for a 
period of nine (9) months. The burden shall be on the property owner to prove that use 
of the property has been in continuous use. 

13. A property address sign is required and shall be installed on the property no more than 
ten (10) feet from the street, with the address numbers at least four (4) inches high and 
two (2) inches wide. 

14. One (1) freestanding business sign shall be allowed, but not required, on the property. 
Such sign shall not exceed four (4) square feet in area and shall be of traditional Hill 
Country design and color. 

15. The maximum occupancy for the property shall be four (4) people. 

4/15/2019 



77

16. The owner of the property or the owner's agent shall not advertise a maximum 
occupancy for the vacation rental that is greater than the maximum occupancy 
established by the City based on septic capacity. 

17. The owner of the property or the owner's agent, which may be an agency, shall provide 
each renter a property map for the vacation rental property that shows the boundaries of 
the property and advises that trespassing on adjacent property is prohibited. 

18. The owner of the subject property shall comply with any and all applicable operating 
permit requirements that may be established by the City. 

There have been no responses for or against to date. 

At the Planning & Zoning meeting on April 11 th
, the Commission recommended approval of the 

application 6-0-1. 

4/15/2019 



78

City of Wi1nb e rl ey 
221 Stillwater Drive, P.O. Box 2027, Wimberley, TX 78676 

Phone (512) 847-0025 fax (512) 847-0422 

www.citvofwimberlev.com 
_ 1 .. , , ., ,"' " ·'" ' •: , 1." 1o .. :,•1•1•-- -·· 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 

OFHCE USE CUP _/!1__ - ___ ool_ Date: _1::_?2_-~[3_ StaffReview -=SJ:=-'-'~'-------

P&Z Hearing: :)-{'{-h>fl Council Hearing: J ·ol/-~/ Fees Paid:~ 

Applicant:___;;iJ_,,__b 'l--( ...._f _-'=--'------'-=-='--"---"--'---"-------------------

Mailing address:~f _-?t~'tJ~----~~-

Phone:--Email: 

Property Owner: 5A-tnti m;~-h~ fh'CL1 (....Cl
1

_h~. 

Mailing address: •; _____ State: __ Zip: ___ _ 

Phone: Email: 

ProjectSiteAddress: l :230/ tlR /,2.-

Legal description: 3. 2q5 a~6 ov+-~o-f '-A. ~ ILSa. ~~nu- )u ll. veJ , /+bs .t-fo . ~'4/ 
Total Acreage or Square Footage : q ,<.9.f- Deed recorded in: --------

[·fays CAD Parcel JD R / J"/LJ 3 ..J, R,, /fPl5'Planning Area: IfL Zoning:~ /<_ -2 __ 

Is property located in an overlay district? G'?es 0No ff Yes, type: ~/,,_."t<.LJ=~d~(~'-k---=-~-IAJ_ct-f_., __ 
Specific Conditional Use Requested: _ _,lfufv=-'--'-'--'-'/o"--'-t-£--'-'K:=EiffiL-"--'-~ttL~-----------
Applicant understands that the purpose of the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) process is to allow 
certain uses which are not specific; permitted uses within a zoning district. To be considered for 
a CUP, the requested use must be listed under "Conditional Uses" within the applicable zoning 
district. 

Utilities 

Electric Provider: -~~~ ---------- -------------
Water provider or Private Well: J TI - ~~f---------------- ----
W as t e water Service or Septic Permit No. _____________ ____ _ 

*If you have an On-Site Sewage Facility (OSSF) you can submit an open records request 
for your permit information if you do not have it. 



79

SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST 

Complete "Conditional Use Permit Application" 

Metes and bounds description and/or survey exhibit 

Site Plan drawn to scale and showing the general arrangement of the 
project, together with essential requirements such as off-street parking 
facilities; size height, construction materials, and locations of 
buildings and the uses to be permitted; location and construction of signs; 
means of ingress and egress to public streets; the type of visual screening 
such as walls, plantings and fences 

Deed(s) 

Payment of application fee 

Agent authorization to represent property owner if applicable 

MY REQUEST IS BASED ON THE FOLLOWING: 
• The use is harmonious and compatible with surrounding existing uses or proposed uses, and does not 

adversely affect an adjoining site than would a permitted use; 
• The use requested by the applicant is set forth as a conditional use in the base district; 
• The nature of the use is reasonable; 
• The conditional use does not adversely affect the safety or convenience of vehicular or pedestrian 

circulation, including reasonably anticipated traffic and uses in the area; 
• The conditional use does not adversely affect an adjacent property by its resulting traffic through the 

location, or its lighting, or its type of sign; and 
• That any additional conditions specified, if any, ensure that the intent and purposes of the base 

district are being upheld. 

SUBMITTAL VERIFICATION 
My signature attests to the fact that the attached application package is complete and accurate to the 
best of my knowledge. I understand that City review of this Application is dependent upon the 
accuracy of the information provided and that any inaccurate or inadequate information provided by 
me, my firm, or agent, may delay the review of the Application. I authorize City of Wimberley Staff 
to visit and inspect the property for which this application is being submitted. I agree to attend or 
have a representative attend the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council meetings. I have 
checked the subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or Zoning actionsto 
ensure that there are no restrictions on the subject property and understand that the City zoning 
action does not relieve any obligation of these restrictions. 

Date: / /-,,,J ;1 _,,I f' Applicant's Signatur-<:4 {!,;\. 0~ 

2 



80

LIST OF CONDITIONS THAT MAY BE INCLUDED IN A 
BED AND BREAKFASTNACATION RENTAL CUP 

Owner: tnysl,e;f/,11 J,Le :51"/iµ/ ]k.e,ep,vs 

LOCATION oF PROPERTY: __./,___5 ____ 3:'-"'o'----i/'-----=---d..........,~'-----'1.._'k=-----------
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: ? ' 2 '15 Q (.R~ 0 ut- 6f --/1-... a.,_'"-J'I. Tu (uU,L ) 'j I A.½s. 

. No. ~J ~,, 
PLANNING AREA: _ __,;~ =---------------------

PRESENT ZONING:-~ - -~~Lt.~ · _(~_ l~'1~ ~~')_1 ~~~'-Q,..~' _;;2.~· _(~R_-_2_) __ _ 
EXISTING USE: R'l 5, k-h'.., ( --~-----------------------

USE TO BE GRANTED: ___ Bed & Breakfast OR ✓vacation Rental 

NEW CONSTRUCTION: (Describe existing construction) If new construction is contemplated: 
Describe new construction. The architecture and fa9ade of all new construction will be traditional 
"Hill Country" design and harmonious with those of adjacent uses. No construction shall commence 
prior to compliance with all applicable ordinances, laws, rules and regulations. 

COMPATIBILITY TO NEARBY AREAS: The facilities on the property will at all times be 
harmonious and compatible with surrounding uses 

OFF-STREET PARKING: All parking will be off-street. _2___ Off-street parking spaces will be 
provided for off-street guest parking, which will be adequate for a maximum occupancy of_-¥
guests. Parking will be in these spaces only. 

SIGNAGE: All signage will be of traditional "Hill Country" design and will comply with the City 
Sign Ordinance. 

NOISE AND LIGHTING: Exterior lighting to be only landscape lighting. All noise audible from 
outside, and all light visible from outside the property shall be maintained at low levels appropriate 
to a single family neighborhood. No large parties are permitted. 

NUMBER OF BEDROOMS: .2. -~---

PROPOSED MAXIMUM OCCUPANCY: -~4--- guests. 

OCCUPANT REGULA TIO NS AND GUIDELINES: Guest Guidelines are attached hereto and 
made a part of this Conditional Use Permit. The bed and breakfast lodging facility shall be operated 
in accordance with the guidelines. These guidelines shall be furnished to all guests. 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM: The wastewater treatment system (to be designed and constructed) 
will at all times be adequate for the maximum occupancy. 

3 



81

WATERFRONT USAGE: (Applicable if guests have water access) Guests may only use the 
'b/CtJIIW River/Creek in the area directly adjacent to the bed and breakfast lodging 

facility. Guests may not use the River/Creek in front of other properties or enter upon any property 
which is not part of the bed and breakfast facility for the purpose of entering or exiting the water or 
for any other reason. 

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT: Owner will provide guests and close-by neighbors with owner's 
telephone number to assure Owner's immediate knowledge of any concerns that may arise. (If not 
owner occupied) Owner agrees to retain under contract a responsible local management company at 
all times the property is used as a non-owner occupied bed and breakfast lodging. The management 
company shall advise guests of the applicable conditions contained herein, receive and pass on to 
owner any complaints received and at owner's direction act upon such complaints. (If Owner 
occupied) The property shall be the owner's principal place ofresidence and the owner shall actively 
supervise and manage the property at all times that it is used as a bed and breakfast facility. 

MISCELLANEOUS: Owner agrees to maintain the property in a manner conducive to the health 
and safety of the guests and the neighborhood. All trash and garbage will be placed in provided 
receptacles which shall not be visible from the street except on pick-up day. No trash bags shall be 
left out in the open. The exterior of the facility and the landscaping, including lawns, will be 
maintained in good condition at all times. 

REVOCATION: The cup may be revoked by the City Council upon recommendation of the 
planning and Zoning Commission in the event of the violation of any of the conditions contained 
therein. 

OWNER COMPLIANCE: Owners agree to comply with all City of Wimberley Ordinances, and 
all state, county and City laws, rules and regulations. 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: 

//~/- If 
DATE 

DATE OWNER 

4 



82

CUP-19-001 - 13301 Ranch Road 12 

0 

200' NOTIFICATION 

Legend 
200' Buffer 

D. Owner 
0. MY STIC HILL LLC 
1. KKP 3237 LLC 
2. RA N DALL MD RRIS & C DM PA NY LTD 
3. RAN DALL MD RRIS & C DM PA NY LTD 
4. RID BD N ITD LLC 
5. FA IRLAW N 13201 LLC 
6. RID BD N ITD LLC 
7. MDRGAN , JDHN KENNETH 
8. MATTHEW & NATALIE MEE KS 
9. MULTIPLE DWNE RS 
10. RANDALL MDRRIS&CDMPA NY LTD 
11. RANDALL MDRRIS& CD MPA NY LTD 
12. BLANCD RIVER FAM ILY LLC 
13. SDUTH RIVER PRDPE RTIE S LTD 
14. SDUTH RIVER PRD PE RTIE S LTD 
15. V CD CE NTU RIDN DISCRE TIDNA RY TRUST 
16. DDWD MATTHE W 

17. DDWD MATTHE W 
18. W lldBERLE Y REAL ESTATE CD 

0 200 400 
Feet 



83

City of Wimberley 
221 Stillwater (P.O. Box 2027), Wimberley, Texas 78676 

Phone: 512-847-0025 Fax: 512-847-0422 Web: cityofwimberley.com 

l ,, ..:,,q,.,r:,1c-~l :\. l a yh . :! O("'O -- -----------------------

March 5, 2019 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Re: File No. CUP-19-001 
13301 Ranch Road 12 
A request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow the operation of a Vacation 
Rental 

Dear Property Owner: 

You are receiving this letter because you own property within 200 feet of the above
referenced location. 

The applicant, Sibyl Burrows, Mystic Hill, LLC, has requested a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) to operate a Vacation Rental at 13301 RR 12. The City of Wimberley 
Planning & Zoning Commission will consider this request at a public hearing on Thursday, 
April 11, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. in the Wimberley City Hall, 221 Stillwater. Upon a 
recommendation from the Commission, City Council will hold a public hearing to consider 
the same request on Thursday, April 18, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. 

Because the granting of this request may affect your property, you are encouraged 
to participate in the zoning process. The public will be given an opportunity to speak during 
the hearing. If you wish to comment but are unable to attend, written comments may be 
submitted prior to the meeting. 

Additional information regarding the proposed request is available for public review 
at City Hall during normal business hours. Should you have questions, please feel free to 
email or contact me at 512-847-0025. 

Thank you, 

~J~ 
Sandy I. Floyd, C.F.M. 
Planning & Development Coordinator 
GIS Analyst 
sfloyd@cityofwim berley. com 



84

City of Wimberley 
221 Stillwater, P.O. Box 2027, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

(512} 847-0025 Fax (512} 847-0422 www.cityofwimberley.com 

NOTICE BY SIGN POSTING 

DATE: March 12, 2019 

ZONING NO: CUP-19-001 

TO: CODE ENFORCEMENT/PPBLIC WORKS 

APPLICANT: Mystic Hill, LLC 
Sibyl Burrows 

Please place a Proposed Zoning Sign on the following property: 

Project Site Address: 13301 Ranch Road 12 

John Provost 
Public Works/Code Enforcement 

Note: The above referenced sign was placed on the subject property on 

~?, /~ --3/20 I 9 
I 



85

Page B4 - THE WIMBERLEY VIEW, WIMBERLEY, TX., THURSDAY, MARCH 14, 2019 

• 
IID 

P.O. Box49 Wimberley, Texas 78676 

Public 
Notice 

Public 
Notice 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
(Conditional Use Permit) 

Notice is hereby given that the Planning & 
Zoning Commission of the City of Wimber
ley will hold a public hearing at the Wimber
ley City Hall on Thursday, April 11, 2019, 
at 6:00 · p.m. to consider the following: 
CUP-19..001- an application for a Condi-

. tional Use Permit (CUP) to allow the opera
tion of a vacation rental at 13301 RR 12. 
Upon recommendation of the Planning & 
Zoning Commission, the City Council will 
also hold a public hearing on Thursday, 
April 18, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. at City Hall. 
Comments on this request from any mem
ber of the public may be presented in per
son at City Hall, by mail (PO Box 2027), 
.or by email (!iiflQyd@cityofwlmberley.com) 
prior to the heartng. The public will be 
granted an opportunity to speak at the hear
ings. Additional Information concerning the 
proposed action is available for review at 
the Wimberley City Hall, 221 Stillwater,. 
Wimberley, Texas 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
(Request for Variance/Waiver) 

Notice is hereby given that the Board of 
Adjustment of .the City of Wimberley will 
hold a public hearing at the Wimberley City 
Hall on Monday, March 25, 2019 at 6:00 
p.m. to consider the following: BA-19-002 
- a request for a variance from the City of 
Wimberley code 'requirements to allow an 
encroachment into the dominant street 
setback and interior side yard setback for 
a certain property located at 22 La Toya 
Trail, Wimberley, Texas. Comments on this 
request from any member of the public may 
be presented in person at City Hall, by mail 
(PO Box 2027), or by: email 
(sflQyd@cityofwlmt>,rtey.com) prior to the 
hearing. the publfc wlll be granted an 
opportunity to.speak.at the hearing. 
Additional information • ¢Qfl~roing · the pro
poseq action .is available for review at the 
City of Wimberley City Hall, 221 Stillwater, 
Wimberley, Texas. 

NOTICE OF APPLICATION TO 
SUBDIVIDE 

General 
Help Wanted 

Requirements: 
• Must have a strong 

work ethic 
• Must have customer 

interfacing skills 
• Must be able to 
prioritize tasks 

• Must know how to 
hustle and "turn up 

the heat• when busy 
• Must understand 

product quality . 
Call Misty's Burgers 

512-842-3363 

WCCISNOW 
HIRING 

The WCC has an 
immediate opening 

for a Part Time 
Facility Maintenance 
Person. For more 
information please 
refer to the City of 

Wimberley website: 
www.cityof 

Wimberley.com 

General Help 
Wanted 

General 
Help Wanted 

WAREHOUSE 
PERSON NEEDED; 
receiving, stocking, 
picking jobs; starting 

· pay $12/hr plus 
benefits; located in 
Dripping Springs; 

Contact Joe: 
512-801-2008 

IMMEDIATE HIRE 
For male and female 

caregivers in 
surrounding loca

tions. Please contact 
hiring manager. 
830.625.0444. 

RANCH HAND 
NEEDED 

mowing, some chain 
sawing, ect. $16 an 
hour. 979-240-4976 

General Help 
Wanted 

with our intellectual and developmentally disabled 
PQl)Ulalioo. We have openings at both the Com at 

County and the Hays County Group Homes! Applicants 
must have good written and vernal communication as 

well as lime management skills. · 
Requirements: ·H.S. Diploma/GED, Valid Texas 

Driver's License and Curren!Au!o1,J1obile Insurance* 
Previous Experience a plus. 

$10.95 per hour wl Excellent Benefits 

.. ~~-,-~J11:IYJ!n9mt@-~r~!!I!-E1!llt.!IPJJL., ·~ 

General 
Help Wanted 

PART TIME CARE
GIVER WANTED 
73 year old lady 

needs part-time care
giver for in home 

care. Must be able to 
drive to Dr. appoint.

nets. $20/hour. 
4 hours daily, Tues -
Sat. Call Ms. Hill at 

512-722-3664 

MAINTENANCE 
MAN NEEDED 
at RV park. Must 
mow lawns, do 

carpentry work, paint, 
etc. We can provide 
living accommoda• 
lions. 512-847-1960 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
ASSISTANT 
POSITION 

The City of Wood
creek ls accepting 
applications for an 

administrative assis
tant. Applicant must 
be available to work 

from 10 a.m. to 
4 p.m. Monday 
through Friday. 
Starting wage is 

$12/hour, commensu
rate with experience. 

Applications are 
available on the 
City's website: 

woodcreektx.gov and 
at Woodcreek City 
Hall, 41 Champions 
Circle, Woodcreek, 

TX 78676. Applica• 
tions will be accepted 

until the position is 
filled. For more infor• 
matlon, you may also 

can City Hall at 
(512) 847-9390. 

General 
Help Wanted 

COMMUNITY YARD 
SALE on Saturday, 

March 16, 2019 from 
8am-2pm at !he Wim-

berley Community 
Center. Vintage 
items such as 

kerosene lamps, 
porcelain and glass
ware as well as jew
elry, clothing, furni-

ture, and many other 
collectibles. Baked 
goods and beauty 

items as well. Booths 
still available by call

ing 512-84M510 

14 CREEKSIDE DR 
WIMBERLEY 

ESTATE SALE 
All items must go! 
March 16, 23 &..30. 
10:00 am• 2:00 pm 

MULTI-FAMILY 
garage sale 

Fri 03/29/19 from 
8a-3p& Sat 
03/30/19 from 
8a-2p @ 

188 Marigold Ct. in 
Sierra West, 
Driftwood, TX 

78619. One mile 
from Hays City Store 
off FM 150. Look for 
signs. Lots of great 

deals & willing to 
negotiat on mos! 

items. 

lenei:rral ll#iall 
lla:ntel 

. .j 
Sl~ 

GARAGl 
Saturday,) 

8:00-
79Saddl 

Rid~ 

HOSP!M 
FORa. 

"Medline" ful 
basic home 
with remo&i 
Purcha11ed · 
for$850, W 

$650,C 
Pies are a, 

caflor 
512-60&-

NICEWAJ. 
/dryers/SI 

$250/up. R~ 
tors $200/u~ 
anteedApp 

Sales/St 
512-392>4 

FORSA 
Whl!e40" 

wooddinln1 
with 4chaim 
leaf. Hasge 

locks.~ 
Nordic Tract 
mode!831.2 

Greatel!'.iff! 
Like new wit 

manuaL$72C 
~pritil 

$150. C 
361-549-49,~ 



86

Sec. 9.03.073 Single-Family Residential 2; R-2 

(a) General purpose and description. The R-2 district is intended to provide for development of primarily 
detached, single-family residences on lots of not less than 20,000 square feet. 

(b) Permitted uses. 

(1) One residence, including: 

(A) Single-family detached dwellings. 

(2) Accessory buildings and uses, customarily incidental to the above uses and located on the same 
lot therewith or on a contiguous lot under the same ownership that satisfies the requirements of section 
9.03.182, but not involving the conduct of a retail business except as provided herein: 

(A) The term "accessory use" shall include customary home occupations as herein defined; 

(B) Accessory buildings, including a private garage, shall not occupy more than 50% of the minimum 
required rear yard. When the accessory building is directly attached to the main building, it shall be 
considered an integral part of the main building. See section 9.03.182 for additional accessory use 
requirements; 

(C) A detached private garage used in conjunction with the main building; 

(D) Private open space or other private recreational amenities as part of a residential subdivision and 
not for commercial purposes; and 

(E) One accessory dwelling unit. 

(3) Swimming pool (private); 

(4) Utilities (public); and 

(5) Religious assembly. 

(c) Conditional uses. 

(1) Bed and breakfast lodging located only in the residential building; 

(2) Home day care; 

(3) Home commercial crafts or hobbies; 

(4) Telecommunications towers, commercial antennas, and broadcast towers, subject to all 
applicable city regulations; 

(5) Two-family residential (duplex); 

(6) One secondary single-family residential building built on-site; 

(7) One manufactured home installed on a permanent foundation, as the primary residence; 

(8) Vacation rental; and 

(9) Personal care home. 

(d) Development regulations. 

(1) Lot size: Minimum 20,000 square feet but less than 2 acres. 

(2) Maximum building height (as defined in section 9.03.005): 

(A) Primary residential building: not more than 2 stories and not more than 28 feet with flat roof (see 
definition) or 35 feet with pitched roof; 

(B) Secondary residential building: Not more than 2 stories and not more than 28 feet with flat roof 
(see definition) or 35 feet with pitched roof; 

(C) Accessory buildings: Not more than 18 feet and not more than one story; and 

(D) Decks: Not more than 12 feet including a railing only or 18 feet including a roof. 

(3) The minimum setbacks shall be the larger of the dimensions in section 9.03.184(a), table A, or the 
following: 

(A) Dominant street: 40 feet; 

(B) Secondary street: 15 feet; 



87

(C) Interior side yard: 1 O feet; and 

(D) Rear yard: 20 feet. 

(4) Minimum floor area: 

(A) Primary residential building: 600 square feet. 

(5) Maximum impervious cover: 35%. Impervious cover shall be calculated as a percentage of the net 
site area. 

(6) The parking and trash collection ordinances will apply. 

(e) Special requirements. 

(1) Recreational vehicles, travel trailers, or motor homes may not be used for on-site dwelling 
purposes. 

(2) Open storage is prohibited, except for materials for the resident's personal use or consumption 
such as firewood, gardening materials, and the like. 

(3) Single-family homes with side entry garages where lot frontage is only to one street (not a corner 
lot) shall have a minimum of 25 feet from the door face of the garage or carport to the side property line 
for maneuvering. 

(f) Other regulations. As established in division 5 of this article, development standards. 

(Ordinance 2001-010, sec. 16, adopted 4/1/01; Ordinance 2003-006 adopted 7/3/03; 2006 Code, sec. 155.037; 
Ordinance 2006-014, sec. ll(F), (G), adopted 2/1/07; Ordinance 2008-023, sec. ll(C), adopted 7/17/08; Ordinance 
2009-050, sec. ll(F), adopted 12/3/09; Ordinance 2011-004, sec. ll(F), adopted 1/20/11; Ordinance 2012-003, sec. 
ll(C), adopted 2/2/12; Ordinance 2017-023, sec. ll(C), adopted 8/3/17) 



88

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-:XX 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT SUBMITTED BY MYSTIC HILL, LLC TO 
PERMIT THE OPERATION OF A VACATION RENTAL ON PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 13301 RANCH ROAD 12, WIMBERLEY, TEXAS, ZONED 
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 2 (R-2); AND PROVIDING FOR 
FINDINGS OF FACT; AMENDMENT OF THE ZONING DISTRICT MAP; 
REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; EFFECTIVE DATE; PROPER NOTICE 
AND MEETING; AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN CONDITIONS. 

WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit ("CUP") has been filed by 
Mystic Hill, LLC ("Applicant") requesting authorization to operate a vacation rental on real 
property described as 3.295 acres out of the Amasa Turner Survey, Abstract No.461, zoned 
Single-Family Residential 2 (R-2); and 

WHEREAS, a vacation rental is an authorized use in areas zoned Single-Family 
Residential 2 (R-2) upon approval of a CUP; 

WHEREAS, after conducting a public hearing on the matter, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval of the CUP application; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the CUP wherein public 
comment was received and considered on the application; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the use of the subject property as a vacation 
rental facility, subject to the conditions imposed by this Ordinance, is an appropriate use for the 
property and is a compatible use with the surrounding properties and neighborhoods. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS: 

ARTICLE I. FINDINGS OF FACT 

All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and factual 
findings of the City of Wimberley and are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of 
this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

ARTICLE II. APPROVAL - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The CITY COUNCIL HEREBY GRANTS the Application for a Conditional Use Permit 
submitted by Mystic Hill, LLC ("Applicant") for use as a vacation rental on real property, 
described as 3.295 acres out of the Amasa Turner Survey, Abstract No.461, as more particularly 
described by survey in Exhibit "A", attached and incorporated by reference, zoned Single-Family 
Residential 2 (R-2), Wimberley, Hays County, Texas, subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 

1. No organized outside activities shall be allowed on the property after 10 p.m. 

City of Wimberley, Texas 

Page 1 of 4 



89

2. No guests, other than paying guests, shall be allowed on the property at any time, unless 
approved in advanced, in writing, by the owner or their agent. 

3. The grounds outside the residence shall remain free of litter and trash at all times. 

4. A fire escape plan, identifying fire exits shall be developed and graphically displayed in 
each guest room. 

5. One ( 1) smoke alarm shall be provided in each guest room, along with a fire extinguisher 
visible and accessible to guests. 

6. A valid taxpayer number for reporting any Texas/City tax shall be provided to the City 
along with a copy of the completed City of Wimberley/State of Texas Hotel Occupancy 
Tax Questionnaire, no later than thirty (30) days of such change. 

7. The City shall be notified of any change in ownership of the subject property within 
thirty (30) days of such change. 

8. A copy of the requirements set forth in the CUP shall be made available to all guests. 

9. The subject property owner shall provide the City and property owners within two 
hundred (200) feet of the subject property, with the current names and contact 
information (including telephone numbers and e-mail address) for the local responsible 
party for the subject property. The local contact shall be able to respond to any incident 
within thirty (30) minutes of a call and shall be authorized to make decisions regarding 
tenants at the property. If the name or contact information for the local contact changes, 
then the property owners shall notify the City and property owners within two hundred 
(200) feet of the subject property, with the current name and contact information. 

10. Unruly gatherings are prohibited. Unruly gathering means a gathering of more than one 
(1) person which is conducted on premises within the City and which, by reason of the 
conduct of those persons in attendance, results in the occurrence of one (1) or more of the 
following conditions or events on public or private property: the destruction of property; 
obstruction of roadways, driveways, or public ways by crowds or vehicles; excessive 
noise; disturbances, brawls, fights or quarrels; public urination or defecation; or indecent 
or obscene conduct or exposure. 

11. The property shall be subject to inspection at any time by designated City representatives 
if compliance is in question, with proper notice provided if feasible. 

12. The CUP shall terminate and be considered abandoned if and when there is evidence of 
no rental activity, based in part of the State/City Hotel Occupancy Tax Reports, for a 
period of nine (9) months. The burden shall be on the property owner to prove that use of 
the property has been in continuous use. 

City of Wimberley, Texas 
Page 2 of 4 



90

13. A property address sign is required and shall be installed on the property no more than 
ten (10) feet from the street, with the address numbers at least four (4) inches high and 
two (2) inches wide. 

14. One (1) freestanding business sign shall be allowed, but not required, on the property. 
Such sign shall not exceed four ( 4) square feet in area and shall be of traditional Hill 
Country design and color. 

15. The maximum occupancy for the property shall be four ( 4) people. 

16. The owner of the property or the owner's agent shall not advertise a maximum occupancy 
for the vacation rental that is greater than the maximum occupancy established by the 
City based on septic capacity. 

17. The owner of the property or the owner's agent, which may be a vacation rental agency, 
shall provide each renter a property map for the vacation rental property that shows the 
boundaries of the property and advises that trespassing on adjacent property is prohibited. 

18. Should an operating permit for vacation rental facilities be established by the City in the 
future, the owner of the subject property shall comply with any and all applicable 
operating permit requirements that may be established by the City. 

ARTICLE III. ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

The official Zoning District Map shall be revised to reflect the Conditional Use Permit 
established by this Ordinance. 

ARTICLE IV. REPEALER 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in force when the provisions of this Ordinance become 
effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms and provisions contained in this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed, but only to the extent of any such conflict. 

ARTICLE V. SEVERABILITY 

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance be severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional or otherwise 
unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, and the remainder of this Ordinance shall be 
enforced as written. 

ARTICLE VI. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and publication as may 
be required by governing law. 

City of Wimberley, Texas 
Page3 o/4 



91

ARTICLE VII. PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed 
was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code, and the Standard Zoning Enabling Act, Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government 
Code. Notice was also provided as required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government 
Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City of Wimberley City Council on the 18th day of 
April, 2019 by a vote of (Ayes) and (Nays) and (Abstain). 

CITY OF WIMBERLEY 

By: 
Susan Jaggers, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Laura Calcote, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

City of Wimberley, Texas 
Page4 o/4 



92

LINE TABLE 
S 5g•3g•3a"E 100.76' 

L 
1 = (S 70"09'00"~) 

L2 = S 63"46'36'W 217.97' 

_ S 21 "59'34"E 477.47' 
L3 - - cs 22·oo·oo·El 

LEGEND 

0 = iron pipe found 

(XXXX) = recorded data 

-{El-= overhead electric line 

0 = utility pole 

~ 
\57 

(7.93 Ac.) 

A = record location 

~ = Hays County 
~ Public Recc,rds 

,P~~10i = Hays County Plat Record 

~ 
~ 

(25.03 Ac.) 

Copyriglll © 2008 Eagle Land Surveying. flll rights roservcg, _ 

COilon spindle ~I 
,ii OJJ G' ole•,::11110n 

SOU THRIVER 
UNIT ONE 

f~~~I 

Subject property DOES lie within a Special Flood Hazard Area as determined from 

FIRM Hazard Map, Community Panel No_. 461694 0355 F, daled September 2. 2005. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Being 3.295 acres of land, more or less. out or the AMASA TURNER SURVl::Y, being all of the 

remaining portion or that tract or land called 53.57 acres, as described and recorded in Volume 104. Page 500, Hays 

County Deed Records. all of that tract of land called one acre. more or less, as described and recorded in Volume 243. 

Page 696, Hays County Deed Records. and all of that tract of land conveyed to Jo Ann Pendleton by last will and 

testament, as described and recorded in Volume 243, Page 696, Hays County Deed Records, said 3.295 ar.res beinn 

more particularly described by metes and bounds in the field notes altached hereto. 

ADDRESS: 13301 Ranch Road 12, Wimberley, Texas 7B676 

CLIENT: Joe Pendleton 
This survey was produced without the benefit of a current title 
report, therefore certain easements-may exist that were not 
apparent on the ground and urn not shown hereon. 

I hereby certify that this plat represents a survey made upon the ground under my 

supervision. on June 3. 200B. and there are no visible or apparent encroachmP.nts 

' upon this property, except as shown hereon. /.,,. J · 

/,<·) ~ /,) _/ / ' 
l-Y') ;7J L-A).-·-1/T~-v- // 

Clyde Barroso,"R.P.L.S. #5404 , State of Texas. / ' 

EAGLE Sc ·1e: 

LAND 
SURVEYING 
(512) 847-1079 
P.O. Box 2264 Wimberley, TX 78676 

Date: 

1" = 100' 

June 5, 2008 

''A,, 

- . -- .. 

·. i· ;; ,:.-;,::·.,_: 

Job No. 80145 jw 

"O 
z 
0 
r 
-l 
0 z 
~ 
A 

1K n 



93

Report for Zoning 
ZA-19-002 

Summary: 

Applicant Information: 
Applicant: 
Property Owner: 

Subject Property: 
Legal Description: 
Location: 
Existing Use of Property: 
Existing Zoning: 
Proposed Use of Property: 
Proposed Zoning: 
Planning Area 
Overlay District 

Surroundings: 

A request to change the zoning of property located at 151 Oldham Street 
from Single-Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Commercial-Moderate Impact 
(C-2) 

Mike Oldmixon 
Mike Oldmixon 
4201 Monterrey Oaks Blvd 
Austin, TX 78749 

0.57 Acres out of the Amasa Turner Survey, Abs. No. 461 
151 Oldham Street 
Residential 
R-2 
Commercial 
C-2 
IV 
City Center 

Frontage On: Oldham Street 
Area Zoning and Land Use 
Pattern: 

Legal Notice 
200' Letters 
Published 
Sign Placement 
Responses 

Comments: 

N of Property 

S of Property 
E of Property 

W of Property 

03/25/2019 
03/21/2019 
03/20/2019 
none 

Current Zoning Existing Land Use 
C1, R2 Commercial, 

Residential 
C3,C1 Commercial 
C2, MF2 Commercial, 

Residential 
C1 Commercial 

The applicant, Mike Oldmixon, has submitted an application to change the zoning for a tract of 
land located at 151 Oldham Street from Single-Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Commercial
Moderate Impact (C-2). The requested zoning change is to allow for more flexibility. The subject 
property is 0.57 acres in size. 

Vocal opposition was received at the Planning and Zoning meeting on April 11 th by property ID 
#14 as noted on the 200' notice map; this property is zoned Multi-Family Residential 2 and totals 
6.31 % opposition. The Planning and Zoning Commission voted 6-0-1 to recommend approval of 
the application. 

4/15/2019 Page 1 of 1 



94

Expanded (Commercial) 

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

APPLICATION DATE: /rl,ifgc,(i J/1 2€J/C/FJLE NO. ~- { Cf-f}Q -;). S-: 30 (o 

TENTATIVEP&ZHEARING: L../·((-(7 TENTATIVECOUNCILHEARING: ~-R-/9 _.--;-- --~~~--
CITY INITIATED: D YES - ~ NO PLANNING AREA: ---"'1L~ ___ ZONING REQUESTED: L -;)_ 
ZONJNGFEES: $ 111 DATEPAID: 3- JJ.· /CJ RECEIVEDBY: __ S _ _L__r ____ _ 

APPLICATION FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING 
NON-RESIDENTIAL, MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENTS, MOBILE HOME DEVELOPMENTS 

OWNER, AGENT AND PROJECT DATA 

STREET ADDRESS OF HAYS COUNTY CENTRAL 
PROPERTY TO APPRAISAL DISTRICT 
BE ZONED: { 51 D J.,p HAM 5~. Wimberley, Texas PROPERTY ID#: R ( 'p .ti 4 5 ** 
* New street addresses can be obtained by calling (512) 393-2160 
** This number may be obtained this from your property tax statement or HCAD's website. 

PLEASE PROVIDE DIRECTIONS TO YOUR PROPERTY: 

NOTE: Please clearly mark your property so it is easily identifiable. 

1. OWNER'S NAME: r,~ l?-t\-,~G1- L · 0 Lo M "',t.11:t--) HOME PHONE: 
BUSINESS PHONE: ( ) _____ _ 

OWNER'S CURRENT MAILING ~t(,.,o7 

FAX: ( ) 
E-MAIL: 

ADDRESS 4'?0l ,noiJ-r&:W.(?/ DAt0 Bu.fl) CITY ,A~trf'J ,,.:; 
EMAIL: (\/'1K~Ol,.OM\.)(.C,-! e j~t+Do" c..or'V\ 

STATE --r-r- zIP7B7+1 

2. AGENT'S NAME: __________ AGENT'S PHONE: ( ) ______ _ 
FAX:( ) ___________ _ 

AGENT'S FIRM NAME: E-MAIL: --------- -------------

AGENT'S FIRM MAILING 
ADDRESS: CITY STATE ZIP ------------ -------- ---EMAIL: ______________________________ _ 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING - PAGE 1 of 4 



95

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

3. TOTAL AREA TO BE ZONED: ACRES D. S')S (OR) SQ.FT. '2.5', t50 TOTAL NO. ofTRACTS: . ----
4. PLANNING AREA(S): JS[- 5. REQUESTED ZONING CLASSIFICATION: C.. 2-

PROPOSED USE(S):_--=5"--"i...,_1"-'_,' C=-f_/:..-=cc'---~'--~-'-'-M-'--'---1_\.......,'f.___ __________________ _ 

6. EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATION{$) AND USES (if applicable): _...._f?-.;;:.?.... __ ___;5;.....;..., ,,.._;,_·_~&_-·_t...£_/_,h'-~'---bv_\1_L~'/ __ 

7. LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Street Address: t S i ()L.-f) H-A tl\ .S1 .-

Block(s) ___________ _ Lot(s ) __ 4_,,__ _________ _ 

Plat Book: P,-M PrS A- -r U /i:.i->e-{Z. 5 V(1....J if:{ Page Number: __ fr_.____.6_"::"J_4~C.,,_. __ \ _____ _ 

8. DEED RECORDS: (REFERENCE OF DEED CONVEYING PROPERTY TO THE PRESENT OWNER): 

VOLUME:. ________ PAGE: ________ OF COUNTY PLAT RECORDS 

9. OTHER PROVISIONS 

A. IS PROPERTY IN AN OVERLAY DISTRICT? YES )< NO __ _ UNKNOWN __ _ 

TYPE OF OVERLAY ZONE($) (if applicable) V f t..(...k~ .C:~t--'%_,_t._<. ____________ _ 

B. FLOOD PLAIN (What, if any, flood zone does your property occupy?): ___ --"~-:\0 _________ _ 

C. ELECTRIC UTILITY PROVIDER : r (7;{,, ------=-=---------------------
WATER UTILITY PROVIDER: ____ L_v_~_l_V_f"'--)(........::.:, ________________ _ 

WASTEWATER UTILITY PROVIDER: ___ _..p__,
1
,...../"--A-.,__ ___ Z2,___{::;;-.-L..f:-'T'---l'-C_--_______ _ 

HAYS COUNTY SEPTIC PERMIT NUMBER (if applicable): ________________ _ 

Related Cases, If Applicable 

□ Zoning 
J Building Permit 
~l Subdivision 
□ Sign Permit 
l I Engineered construction 

File No. 
FileNo. 
File No. 
File No. 
File No. 

-------
-------
-------
-------
-------

APPLICATION FOR ZONING - PAGE 2 of 4 



96

SITE INSPECTION AUTHORIZATION 

Applicant/owner, or Applicant's authorized agent, hereby authorizes the City of Wimberley 
representatives to visit and inspect the property for which this applicatio . iring su. bm.itted. _ n 
Date: 3.j \I l l"'t APPLICANT SIGNATURE /Jlt1 ,::(W4~ 
WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date: AGENT SIGNATURE ------- ---------------

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF EXISTING 
Subdivision Plat Notes, Deed Restrictions Restrictive Covenants 

and/or Zoning Conditional Use Permits 

I, the Applicant herein, have checked the subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive 

covenants and/or zoning conditional use permits prohibiting certain uses and/or requiring certain 

development restrictions (for example, height, access, screening) on the property now being zoned 

on my behalf and located at: IS I O J...0l+A-t'v\ sr . , and more particularly 

known as Lot 4 , Block _____ of the 01-1-.f C 01.-ci)t-lA bi-1 Subdivision. 

If a conflict should result with the request I am submitting to the City of Wimberley due to 

subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional use permits it 

will be my responsibility to resolve it. I also acknowledge that I understand the implications of use 

and/or development restrictions that are a result of subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive 

covenants and/or zoning conditional use permits. 

I understand that if requested, I must provide copies of any and all subdivision plat notes, deed 

restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional use permit information, which may apply 

to this property. •,- . 0 (). n 
Date: '3, / l l / 1~ APPLICANT SIGNATURE · l/ i-L}:::2/ .. ,.,,X~( 
WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date: AGENT SIGNATURE ------- ---------------

APPLICATION FOR ZONING - PAGE 3 of 4 



97

SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST 

TO ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE COMPLIED WITH THE ZONING APPLICATION 
REQUIREMENTS, REVIEW THE FOLLOWING LIST. FAILURE TO COMPLETE THE 
NECESSARY STEPS CAN CAUSE A DELAY IN PROCESSING YOUR APPLICATION. 

D Complete "Application For Zoning" 

~ Provide plat map of property to be zoned which includes all properties within 200 feet of 
any portion of Applicant's property; and which clearly indicates streets in surrounding 

□ 
□ 

□ 

area. 
Provide plat map of the specific property to be zoned. 

Provide names and addresses of property owners within 200 feet of any portion of 
Applicant's property. 

Provide a legal description of the property to be zoned. 

Sign/date Submittal Verification form. 

Sign/date Site Inspection Authorization form. 

Sign/date Acknowledgement Form. 

Pay Zoning Fee (this fee is based on the cost of services incurred by the City of 
Wimberley in reviewing, processing and recording the zoning request). ' 

Applicant agrees to attend a pre-zoning conference prior to acceptance of Application. 

Applicant agrees to attend Planning & Zoning Commission hearings scheduled for 
Applicant's proposed zoning. 

Applicant agrees to attend City Council hearing scheduled for Applicant's proposed 
zoning or waives his/her rights of appearance (see below). 

SUBMITTAL VERIFICATION AND/OR WAIVER OF APPEARANCE 

My signature attests to the fact that the attached application package is complete and accurate 
to the best of my knowledge. I understand that City review of this Application is dependent 
upon the accuracy of the information provided and that any inaccurate or inadequate 
information provided by me, my firm, or agent, may delay the review of the Application. 

( ) I hereby waive my right to appear before the City of Wimberley City Council at the public hearing 
to be held concerning the zoning of my above-referenced property. I understand that my failure 
to appear allows the Council to consider my zoning request; how ve~1 if questions are raise 
that cannot be answered, the matter will be continued. __ , ' ,' (; ., 1 

Date: 3. { C < { ~ c:r APPLICANT SIGNATURE / · \J-c,(.___.-/ 

WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date: ______ _ AGENT SIGNATURE ____________ _ 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING - PAGE 4 of 4 



98

ZA-19-002 - 151 Oldham Street 

_.,.... .. _,,,_,,, .... _,, _,,, ........ .. __,,... .. ..... , 
, ...,,41, .. ~ 

;· .. ,,4'[1 

./ (D 0 (D ·,:,....,-.. ,---, 

~ \ G5 0 \ .• (D\ 
\ 
' 

I 

0 
© 

200' NOTIFICATION 

200' Buf.:r 
D. OWN ER 

0. SUB.ECT TRACT 

Legend 

l . AUSTIN FRANK M Ill 
2. BILLINGSLEY. CLAIRE M 
3. BURNETTE CARL W JR FAMILY TRUST & STORM LYNl'E 
4. BURNETTE CARL W JR FAMILY TRUST & STORM LYNl'E 
5. BURNETTE CARL W JR FAMILY TRUST & STORM LYNl'E 
6. BURNETTE CARL W JR FAMILY TRUST & STORM LYNl'E 
7. DER HUND HAUS LLC 
8. DONALD & REBECCA MINNICK 
9. GRADY BURNETTE BUILCER 
10. MAILBOX LLC 
11. RAY BERT E & JULIE L 
12. SANDER ALBERT &JEAN 
13. SANDER ALBERT A&..EANA 
t 4. W LDER JUOrTH S&CH4R1.ES U 
15. VVIUBERLEY CHRISTIAN CHURCH 
16. VVIUBERLEY CHRISTIAN CHURCH 
17. VVIMBERLEYCLEAR 'flQo.TERPROPERTY LLC 

0 160 320 

Feet 



99

City of Wimberley 
221 Stillwater (P.O. Box 2027), Wimberley, Texas 78676 

Phone: 512-847-0025 Fax: 512-847-0422 Web: cityofwimberley.com 

.... _. __ l n<:.:,.- 1~o r ;11.,.-d.\l;iv b , Z ll0i.l __ -----------------------

March 15, 2019 

Re: File No. ZA-19-002 
151 Oldham Street 

Dear Property Owner: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

You are receiving this letter because you own property within 200 feet of the above
referenced location. 

The applicant, Mike Oldmixon, is proposing to change the zoning from Single
Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Commercial-Moderate Impact (C-2) for property located at 
151 Oldham Street. The City of Wimberley Planning & Zoning Commission will consider 
this request at a public hearing on Thursday, April 11, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Wimberley City Hall, 221 Stillwater. Upon a recommendation from the Commission, City 
Council will hold a public hearing to consider the same request on Thursday, April 18, 
2019, at 5:30 p.m. 

Because the granting of this request may affect your property, you are encouraged 
to participate in the zoning process. The public will be given an opportunity to speak during 
the hearing. If you wish to comment but are unable to attend, written comments may be 
submitted prior to the meeting. 

Additional information regarding the proposed request is available for public review 
at City Hall during normal business hours. Should you have questions, please feel free to 
email or contact me at 512-847-0025. 

Thank you, 

~J:Zfl 
Sandy I. Floyd, C.F.M. 
Planning & Development Coordinator 
GIS Analyst 
sfloyd@cityofwimberley.com 



100

"== lncvrporatcd ~l;\y b, 20\.'Cl =-

DATE: March 20, 2019 

ZONING NO: ZA-19-002 

City of Wimberley 
221 Stillwater, P.O. Box 2027, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

(512) 847-0025 Fax (512) 847-0422 www.cityofwimberley.com 

NOTICE BY SIGN POSTING 

APPLICANT: Mike Oldmixon 

TO: CODE ENFORCEMENTIPUBLIC WORKS 

Please place a Proposed Zoning Sign on the following property: 

Project Site Address: 151 Oldham Street 

John Provost 
Public Works/Code Enforcement 

Note: The above referenced sign was placed on the subject property on 

.3 /:2-0 20_13 
I 



101

Page B4 - THEWIMBERLEYVIEW, WIMBERLEY; TX.; THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2019 

h imberley 

P.O. Box 49 Wimberley, .Texas 78676 5 

Public 
Notice 

Public 
Notice 

City of Dripping Springs 
Public Notice of Approved Ordinance 

Ordinance No. 2019-12 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 
18, TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES, CREAT
ING ARTICLE 18.04, OF THE DRIPPING 
SPRINGS CODE 0~ ORDINANCES; 
ESTABLISHING REGULATIONS FOR 
MOTOR-ASSISTED SCOOTERS; PRO
VIDING FOR THE FOLLOWING: FIND
INGS OF FACT; ENACTMENT; 
REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; CODIFICA
TION; EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROPER 
NOTICE & MEETING. 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
(Request for Zoning) 

Notice is hereby given that the Planning & 
Zoning Commission of the City of Wimber
ley will hold a public hearing at the Wimber
ley City Hall on Thursday, April 11, 2019 
at 6:00 p.m. to consider the following: 
ZA-19-002 - a request to change the zon
ing from Single-Family Residential 2 (R-2) 
to Commercial-Moderate Impact (C-2) for 
property located at 151 Oldham Street. • 
Upon recommendation of the Planning & 
Zoning .Commission, the City Council will 
also _hold a public hearing on Thursday, 
April 18, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. at City Hall. 
Comments on this request from any mem
ber of the public may be presented in per
son at City Hall, by mail (PO Box 2027), or 
by email (sfloyd@cityofwjmberley.com} 
prior to the hearing. The public . will be 
granted an opportunity to speak at the hear
ings. Additional information concerning the 
proposed action is available for review at 
the Wimberley City Hall, 221 Stillwater, 
Wimberley, Texas. 

NOTICE TO ALL PERSONS HAVING 
CL.AIMS AGAINST THE ESTATE 

OFFRANCES PHARR MCMASTER 

Notice is hereby given that original Letters 
Testamentary·-for the Estate of FRANCES 
PHARR MCMASTER, Deceas~d. were 
issued on March 18, 2019 in Cause No. 
19-0086-P pending in the County Court at 
Law of Hays County, _Texa~ to Armond H. 

Public . 
Notice 

Public 
Notice 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
(Request for Zoning) 

Notice is hereby given that the Planning & 
Zoning Commission of the City of Wimber
ley will hold a public hearing at the Wimber
li;?y City Hall on Thursday, April 11, 2019 
at 6:00 p.m. to consider the following: ZA-
19-003 - a request to change the zoning 
from Residential Acreage (RA) to a Wim
beriey Planned Development District 
(WPDD) with base zoning of Participant 
Recreation - Low Impact (PR-1) at 13401 
Ranch Road 12. Upon recommendation of 
the Planning & Zoning Commission, the 
City Council will also hold a public hearing 
on Thursday, April 18, 2019, at 5:30 
p.m. at City Hall. Comments on this 
request from any member of the public 
may be presented in person at City Hall, 
by mail (PO Box 2027), or by email 
(sfloyd@cityofwimberley.coml prior to the 
hearing. The public will be granted an 
opportunity to speak at the hearings. 
Additional information concerning the 
proposed action is available for review at 
the Wimberley City Hall, 221 Stillwater, 
Wimberley, Texas 

NOTICE OF ENACTMENT 

CITY OF WOODCREEK, TEXAS 

ORDINANCE NO. 19 - 256 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUN
CIL OF THE CITY OF WOODCREEK, 
TEXAS REPEALING ALL RATES AND 
FEES CONTAINED IN THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF WOOD
CREEK; REPEALING ANY CONFLICT-
ING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EF-
FECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR 
A FINDING OF PROPER NOTICE AND 
OPEN MEETING. 

NOTICE TO CREDITORS 

Notice is given that original Letters Testa
mentary for the Estate of Virginia A. Butter
field Deceased. were issued on March 11. 

Public 
Notice 

Public 
Notice 

STATE OFl\'EW l.\rffiXICO 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
TWELFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

FONAY LAND COMPANY, LLC, 
A New Mexico Limited Liability Company 

Plaintiff, 

I 

v. Cause No. D-1226--CV-2018-00315 

SCOTT J. STORM, 
as Domiciliary Foreign Personal Representative 
ofthe Estate of Lynn W. Storm, deceased, 

SCOTT D. HARRINGTON, nnd 

SUSAN W. FREDERICKSON 

Defendants. 

SUMMONS AND NOTICE OF PENDENCY OF 

TO: ScottJ. Storm: 

GREETINGS: 
YOU are hereby notified that there has been filed in the Distri 
Lincoln County, New Mexico, in the above entitled cause of a 
compfaint for breach of contract, i1egligent misrepresentation, 
perfcim1ance, wherein Fonay L'llid Comp(llly, LLC is the Plair 
the Defendant You are further notified that unless you enter} 
in said cause on or before thirty (30) days of the date of the lru 
this notice, judgment by· default will be rendered in said cause 
failing to appear, and the Plaintiff will apply to the Cc,urt fort 
demanded in the Complaint. 

Hennighausen & Olsen, L.L.P. (A.J. Olsen and Olivia R. Mite 
attorneys for the Plaintiff · 
and their office address is 604 North Ricbardson'Avenue, Ros 
Mexico 88201 (P.O. Box 1415, Roswell, New Mexico 88202· 
telephone number 575-624-2463. · 

LINCOLN COUNTY DISTRlCT C 
By: Isl Gloria Lama 

Respectfully submitted, 

HE1'1'1:GHAUSEN & OLSEN, L.L.P. 
By: Isl A.I Olsen 

~:J. ?I.:et~, ?5~- _, · _ 



102

Sec. 9.03.073 Single-Family Residential 2; R-2 

(a) General purpose and description. The R-2 district is intended to provide for development of primarily 
detached, single-family residences on lots of not less than 20,000 square feet. 

(b) Permitted uses. 

(1) One residence, including: 

(A) Single-family detached dwellings. 

(2) Accessory buildings and uses, customarily incidental to the above uses and located on the same 
lot therewith or on a contiguous lot under the same ownership that satisfies the requirements of section 
9.03.182, but not involving the conduct of a retail business except as provided herein: 

(A) The term "accessory use" shall include customary home occupations as herein defined; 

(B) Accessory buildings, including a private garage, shall not occupy more than 50% of the minimum 
required rear yard. When the accessory building is directly attached to the main building, it shall be 
considered an integral part of the main building. See section 9.03.182 for additional accessory use 
requirements; 

(C) A detached private garage used in conjunction with the main building; 

(D) Private open space or other private recreational amenities as part of a residential subdivision and 
not for commercial purposes; and 

(E) One accessory dwelling unit. 

(3) Swimming pool (private); 

(4) Utilities (public); and 

(5) Religious assembly. 

(c) Conditional uses. 

(1) Bed and breakfast lodging located only in the residential building; 

(2) Home day care; 

(3) Home commercial crafts or hobbies; 

(4) Telecommunications towers, commercial antennas, and broadcast towers, subject to all 
applicable city regulations; 

(5) Two-family residential (duplex); 

(6) One secondary single-family residential building built on-site; 

(7) One manufactured home installed on a permanent foundation, as the primary residence; 

(8) Vacation rental; and 

(9) Personal care home. 

(d) Development regulations. 

(1) Lot size: Minimum 20,000 square feet but less than 2 acres. 

(2) Maximum building height (as defined in section 9.03.005): 

(A) Primary residential building: not more than 2 stories and not more than 28 feet with flat roof (see 
definition) or 35 feet with pitched roof; 

(B) Secondary residential building: Not more than 2 stories and not more than 28 feet with flat roof 
(see definition) or 35 feet with pitched roof; 

(C) Accessory buildings: Not more than 18 feet and not more than one story; and 

(D) Decks: Not more than 12 feet including a railing only or 18 feet including a roof. 

(3) The minimum setbacks shall be the larger of the dimensions in section 9.03.184(a), table A, or the 
following: 

(A) Dominant street: 40 feet; 

(B) Secondary street: 15 feet; 



103

(C) Interior side yard: 1 O feet; and 

(D) Rear yard: 20 feet. 

(4) Minimum floor area: 

(A) Primary residential building: 600 square feet. 

(5) Maximum impervious cover: 35%. Impervious cover shall be calculated as a percentage of the net 
site area. 

(6) The parking and trash collection ordinances will apply. 

(e) Special requirements. 

(1) Recreational vehicles, travel trailers, or motor homes may not be used for on-site dwelling 
purposes. 

(2) Open storage is prohibited, except for materials for the resident's personal use or consumption 
such as firewood, gardening materials, and the like. 

(3) Single-family homes with side entry garages where lot frontage is only to one street (not a corner 
lot) shall have a minimum of 25 feet from the door face of the garage or carport to the side property line 
for maneuvering. 

(f) Other regulations. As established in division 5 of this article, development standards. 

(Ordinance 2001-010, sec. 16, adopted 4/1/01; Ordinance 2003-006 adopted 7/3/03; 2006 Code, sec. 155.037; 
Ordinance 2006-014, sec. ll(F), (G), adopted 2/1/07; Ordinance 2008-023, sec. ll(C), adopted 7/17/08; Ordinance 
2009-050, sec. ll(F), adopted 12/3/09; Ordinance 2011-004, sec. ll(F), adopted 1/20/11; Ordinance 2012-003, sec. 
ll(C), adopted 2/2/12; Ordinance 2017-023, sec. ll(C), adopted 8/3/17) 



104

Sec. 9.03.084 Commercial - Moderate Impact; C-2 

(a) General purpose and description. The C-2, Commercial 2 district is established to provide areas for 
shopping and service facilities for the retail sales of goods and services. These shopping areas must 
satisfy established landscape and buffering requirements. 

(b) Permitted uses. 

(1) Administrative and professional office: 

(A) Insurance, real estate, attorneys, accountants, architects, investment services, travel agencies; 

(B) Photography studios, doctors, dentists; 

(C) Nonprofit organizations (with certain restrictions); 

(D) Civic uses (such as city halls); 

(E) Research services: limited; and 

(F) Office. 

(2) Religious assembly; 

(3) Medical services: limited; 

(4) Personal services: general; 

(5) Accessory uses to the main use; 

(6) Retail sales and services: general; 

(7) Retail sales and services: flea market/market day; 

(8) Eating establishments: sit-down, not including the sale of beer, wine, or alcohol for on-premises 
consumption; 

(9) Plant nurseries; 

(10) Emergency shelter and feeding site (humans); 

(11) Communications services: limited (such as studios); 

(12) Commercial/residential; 

(13) Banks and savings and loan associations; 

(14) Funeral and interment services: cremating; 

(15) Funeral and interment services: interring; 

(16) Funeral and interment services: undertaking; 

(17) Animal interment services; 

(18) Private primary educational services; 

(19) Private secondary educational services; 

(20) Single-family residence; and 

(21) Low impact institutional: residential oriented. 

(c) Conditional uses. 

(1) A drive-through or drive-in facility otherwise allowed in any permitted use in this district shall be 
allowed only with a conditional use permit; 

(2) Personal services: limited; 

(3) Gasoline sales: limited; 

(4) Automotive washing; 

(5) Personal storage; 

(6) Bed and breakfast lodging; 

(7) Telecommunications towers, commercial antennas, and broadcast towers, subject to all 
applicable city regulations; 



105

(8) Eating establishments: fast food with drive-through order windows; 

(9) Eating establishments: sit-down, including the sale of beer, wine, or alcohol for on-premises 
consumption; 

(10) Package store; 

(11) Liquor store. 

(12) Vacation rental; and 

(13) Personal care home; 

(d) Development regulations. 

(1) Minimum lot size: 5,000 square feet. 

(2) Maximum building height (as defined in section 9.03.005): 

(A) Primary buildings: Not more than 2 stories and not more than 28 feet with flat roof (see definition) 
or 35 feet with pitched roof; 

(B) Accessory buildings: Not more than 18 feet and not more than one story; and 

(C) Decks: Not more than 12 feet including a railing only or 18 feet including a roof. 

(3) The minimum setbacks shall be the larger of the dimensions in section 9.03.184(a), table A, or the 
following: 

(A) Dominant street: 15 feet; 

(B) Secondary street: 15 feet; and 

(C) Interior side or rear yard: 10 feet, 20 feet when adjacent to a residential district and the building is 
more than one story. 

(4) Maximum impervious coverage: 70%. Impervious cover shall be calculated as a percentage of the 
net site area. 

(5) Maximum building coverage: 60%. Building coverage shall be calculated as a percentage of the 
net site area. 

(6) Maximum building footprint: 15,000 square feet. 

(7) Maximum floor area: 20,000 square feet. 

(e) Parking regulations. As required by section 9.03.181, off-street parking and loading requirements. 

(f) Special requirements. 

(1) For site plan requirements, see section 9.03.183. 

(2) Open storage is prohibited; however, periodic display of seasonal items (such as Christmas trees, 
pumpkins, and the like) is allowed during the appropriate time periods. 

(3) These districts shall be limited to properties fronting on major transportation arterials, provided the 
location is not incompatible with an existing residential neighborhood or property. 

(g) Other regulations. As established in division 5 of this article, development standards. 

(Ordinance 2001-010, sec. 27, adopted 4/1/01; Ordinance 2003-006 adopted 7/3/03; Ordinance 2004-017 adopted 
8/5/04; 2006 Code, sec. 155.048; Ordinance 2007-010, adopted 5/22/07; Ordinance 2008-009, sec. ll(B), adopted 
2/21/08; Ordinance 2008-023, sec. ll(M), adopted 7/17/08; Ordinance 2009-031, sec. ll(D), (E), adopted 7/16/09; 
Ordinance 2009-050, sec. ll(F), adopted 12/3/09; Ordinance 2011-004, sec. I l(F), adopted 1 /20/11; Ordinance 
2012-003, sec. ll(C), adopted 2/2/12; Ordinance 2015-005, sec. ll(D), (E), adopted 2/19/15) 



106

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-:XX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS REZONING A 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 151 OLDHAM STREET, WIMBERLEY, HAYS 
COUNTY, TEXAS, FROM SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 2 (R-2) TO 
COMMERCIAL MODERATE IMPACT (C-2). 

WHEREAS, Chapter 211 of Vernon's Local Government Code empowers the City 
Council of the City of Wimberley to enact zoning regulations and provides for their 
administration, enforcement and amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the regulations established by the Wimberley Code of Ordinances Section 
155 (Zoning), as amended, (the "Code") are specifically designed to lessen congestion in the 
streets; secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; promote health and general welfare; 
provide adequate light and air; prevent the overcrowding of land; avoid undue concentration of 
population; facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewers, schools, parks, and 
other public facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wimberley has complied with all notice of 
public hearing as required by the Code and State law; and 

WHEREAS, in keeping with the spirit and objectives of the area, the City Council has 
given due consideration to all components of said proposed zoning change and the 
recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Commission concerning recommended 
requirements, conditions and safeguards necessary to protect adjoining property; and 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to provide harmony between existing 
zoning districts and proposed land uses; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the Zoning Map by rezoning 0.58 acres 
out of the Amasa Turner Survey, Abstract No. 461, in Wimberley, Hays County, Texas, 
commonly known as 151 Oldham Street from Single-Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Commercial
Moderate Impact (C-2) zoning classification. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WIMBERLEY, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS: 

ARTICLE I. REZONING 

THAT the Zoning Map of the City of Wimberley is hereby amended by rezoning a 0.58 
acres out of the Amasa Turner Survey, Abstract No. 461, in Wimberley, Hays County, Texas, 
commonly known as 151 Oldham Street, and more particularly described on the attached Exhibit 
"A", incorporated by reference for all purposes, from Single-Family Residential 2 (R-2) to 
Commercial-Moderate Impact (C-2) zoning classification. 

Page 1 of 2 



107

ARTICLE II. SEVERABILITY 

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance be severable, and if any phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not 
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, 
and the remainder of this Ordinance shall be enforced as written. 

1111. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and publication as 
may be required by governing law. 

ARTICLE IV. PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of 
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas 
Government Code, and the Standard Zoning Enabling Act, Chapter 211 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. Notice was also provided as required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 18th day of April 2019, by (Ayes) to (Nays) 
(Abstain) vote of the City Council of the City of Wimberley, Texas. 

CITY OF WIMBERLEY 

BY: 
Susan Jaggers, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Laura Calcote, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

Page 2 of 2 



108

-~ •. 
' 

- - - -
<... -I 

1----------:-----------:------------------------------------------------------------------it 
]. 

\ 
· ! ! ... 

CHARl.e.S ,' OLlJE" 01.LJ/IA/"7 .::JUdOIY/S/ON 
PONT/Oro' CV"" AM.ASA 7?/.t!NEP. su,ev~Y""/ . _,,,,,..,ac,e,L:,-· 

NAY.$ CO(,,Wr r., rt.•A'A.:; 

\~- /YCS/3 

\ 
l 
I_ 

" .\ 
I 

.. A ,, 

./ . ... O,/.~NA""'7 

C,'5.IA•""'• 

... ,.,.-,;,~· 

o..., • .,,. ..... 

@ 
© 

o _,-.,,..,.. 

•. 

'Yl"c! }{:io-ro,o ,;i:,;,: +8 Bli6T ·a·v '£ .1:aqwa:iaa pap.1:ooali }{oo,:o,o oo::r . +8 91,5,: •a•v ~,: .1:aqmeoaa p.1:ooa.1: J:O"J· pan.ii' 

I 
; 



 

AGENDA FORM 
 
 
In July 2018, the Council adopted Ordinance 2018-28, which established the Short-term Rental 
Review Committee.  The Committee was established to: 
 

1. Review the City’s Conditional Use Permit Process 
2. Identify non-compliant STRs 
3. Outline a procedure for bringing identified properties into compliance 
4. Make actionable recommendations to Council 

 
Through their work, the Committee has presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission 
Ordinance 2019-08, which would remove Sec. 9.03.141-Bed and Breakfast Lodging Requirements 
and Se. 9.03.142-Vacation Rental Lodging Requirements and replace them with a new Sec. 9.03.141-
Short Term Rentals. 
 
Planning and Zoning held a Public Hearing on the proposed Code amendments on February 14, 
2019.   
 
The proposed ordinance provides the following changes to the previous Sections of the Code of 
Ordinances: 
 
Definitions: 

- References to “Bed and Breakfast Lodging” and “Vacation Rental Lodging” are replaced 
throughout the Code with “STR1” and “STR 2”, respectably. 

- The term “Transient Lodging” is included and defined as a property use which has paying 
guests, tenants, and/or renters of a STR property who stay 30 or less consecutive days in the 
subject property. 

 
Requirements: 
All Transient Lodging properties will be required to renew annually with the City.  
  

- Previously approved CUPs will be approved through an administrative renewal and not be 
required to go back through he legislative (P&Z and City Council) process. 

- All legal nonconforming transient lodging uses will also be required to go thought the 

AGENDA ITEM: Ordinance No. 2019-08 - STRs 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 15, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

109



Administrative Review process to obtain an Administrative CUP. 
 
Consideration for Approval of a CUP: 

- Ordinance 2019-08 removes the following considerations (these will be incorporated into 
other codes adopted by the City): 

o Rental regulations (such as no large parties, no extra guests) imposed by the owner 
and the degree of owner involvement in property management 

o Compliance with all state, county, and city ordinances, laws, rules, and regulations, 
including the building code and fire code 

o Adequacy of wastewater treatment systems 
 

- The proposed ordinance adds the following considerations: 
o The impact of potential transient lodging activity on any surrounding residential 

properties 
o The area and the impact of STR lodging activities on the area 
o The incremental environmental impact of the STR 
o Privacy fencing, landscaping, and natural noise barriers on the STR property that are 

appropriate for the protection of any abutting uses 
o Any other factors in the City’s Comprehensive Plan deemed appropriate and 

consistent with the City’s zoning authority 
 
Parking: 
The parking requirements have been amended to address concerns raised at the Public Hearing 
held by P&Z.  Requirements will remain the same as previously establish in Sec. 9.03.141 & Sec. 
9.03.142, which established the following standards: 
 

- STR 1. Two (2) parking spaces are required. Required off-street parking shall be provided on 
the same site as the use it is to serve. Parking areas shall be clearly identified on the property 
and adequate maneuvering space shall be provided for vehicle ingress and egress. In 
Planning Areas I and II, all vehicle parking shall be on a suitable parking surface as 
determined by the City.  In all other planning areas, all off-street parking shall be surfaced in 
accordance with the parking lot surfacing requirements in the city's regulations. No parking 
shall be permitted on grass, within landscaped areas, or on other unimproved surfaces. 

 
- STR 2.  One (1) parking space is required.  Required off-street parking shall be provided on 

the same site as the use it is to serve. Parking areas shall be clearly identified on the property 
and adequate maneuvering space shall be provided for vehicle ingress and egress. In 
Planning Areas I and II, all vehicle parking shall be on a suitable parking surface approved by 
the city. In all other planning areas, all off-street parking shall be surfaced in accordance 
with the parking lot surfacing requirements in the city's regulations. No parking shall be 
permitted on grass, within landscaped areas, or on other unimproved surfaces. 
 

 
At the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting April 11th, the Commission voted unanimously 7-0-0 
to remove the annual renewal component of the proposed ordinance. 

110



 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☒ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

- Ordinance No. 2019-08 

REQUESTED ACTION  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

ATTACHMENT(S) 

  

111



112

Page B4 - TiiE WIMBERLEY VIEW, WIMBERLEY, TX., TifURSDAY, MARCH 28, 2019 

The Wimberley View 

CLASSIFIEDS 
P.O. Box 49 Wimberley, Texas 78676 512-847-2202 

The Hays Trinity Groundwater Conserva
tion District (HTGCD) received an operat
ing permit application from Eagles Nest, 
301 Eagles Nest, Wimberley. The appli-
cant requested 21'! annual production 
amount of 1.21 acre feet. The intended 
well's non-exempt use, Commercial. The 
application has been reviewed and is ad
ministratively complete. District staff rec
ommendation: one-year renewable operat
ing permit for 1.21 acre feet. monthly meter 
production recording with quarterty report
ing to HTGCD, and mandatory drought cut
back production restrictions during de
clared droughts by HTGCO will curtail appli
cant's maximum annual production. The 
twenty-day deadline date for the District to 
accept formal contested case letters con
cerning this application is April 16, 2019. 
The application is available for review on 
the District's website www.haysgroundwa~ 
ter.com To determine if you have standing 
in this matter, see HTGCD Rules, Section 
5.5 located on--line under Regulatory. Mail 
concerning submittal; of a fonnal contested 
case letter shall be sent to: HTGCD PO 
Box 1648, Dripping Springs, TX. 78620 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
TO THE CITY OF WIMBERLEY 

ZONING CODE 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council 
of the City of Wimberley will hokl a public 
hearing and first reading at the Wimberley 
City Hall on Thunsday, April 18, 2019 at 
5:30 p.m. on AN ORDINANCE AMEND
ING CHAPTER 9, PLANNING AND DE
VELOPMENT REGULATIONS, ARTI• 
CLE 9.03, ZONING, OF THE CITY OF 
WIMBERLEY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
RELATED TO BED ANO BREAKFAST 
ANO VACATION RENTAL LODGING 
REQUIREMENTS; ANO PROVIDING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; A PENALTY PRO· 
VISION; A REPEALING CLAUSE; A 
SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING. A 
second reading will be held on Thurs~ 
day, May 2, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. at. City Hall 
to consider the ordinance referred to 
herein. Comments from any member of 
the public may be presented in person at 
City Hall, by mail (P.O. Box 2027) or email 
{sflovd@citvofwimberleY com) prior to the 
hearing. The public wlll be granted an 
opportunity to speak at the hearings. 
Additional information concerning the 
proposed action is available for review at 
the W11T1bertey C~y Hall, located at 221 
Stillwater, Wimberley, Texas 78676. 

NOTICE TO CREDITORS 

Notice Is hereby given that original Letters 
Testamentary for the Estate of Roy Stanley 
McCammon, Deceased, were issued on 
March 11, 2019, under Cause No. 19-
0076~P, pending In the County Court at 
Law No. 1, Hays County, Texas, to Jean 
Ann McCammon Boozer, Executor. 

Claims may be presented in care of the 
attorney for the estate, addressed as 
follows: 

Representative, 
Estate of Roy Stanley McCammon, 
Deceased 
c/o Law Offices of John Bums 
1704 Grassy Field Road 
Austin, TX 78737 

All persons having claims against this es~ 
tate, which is currently being administered, 
are required to present them within the 
time and in the manner prescribed by law. 

DATED March 25, 2019. 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
COU!•iTY OF Lll\COLN 
TWELFill JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

FONAY I.Ml) COMPANY, LLC, 
A New Mexico Limited Liability Company 

PblntllT, 

Ct1we No. l)..1226-(.'\'~2018-00315 

SCOTI J. STORM, 
as Domiciliary Foreign P~onal Representative 
ofthe Estate of Lynn W. Storm. deceased. ' 

SCOTT D. HARRINGTON. and 

SUSAN W. FREDERICKSON 

Dt!endants. 

SUM)IIONS AND NOTICE OF PEl\llENCY OF SUIT 

10: Scott J. Storm: 

GREETINGS: 
YOU ore hereby notified thnt there has been filed in the District Court of 
Lincoln County, New Mexico. in the above cn1itled cause ofaction, a 
complaint for breach of contract. negligent misrepresentation, and specific 
performance, 'M1erein Fonay Land Company. LLC is lhe Plaintiff nnd you nre 
the Defendant. You arc further notified thal unle.u you cuter your nppearo11i:e 
in said cause on or before thirty (30) days oftbc date of dte last publication of 
this nOlice.judgment by default will be rendered in said cnuse against you for 
fniliugto appear, aud die Plaintiff will apply to the Court for the relief 
demanded in the Complaint. 

Hennighausen &Olsen. LLP. (AJ. Olsen and Olhia R. Mitchell) arc 
attorney, for the Plaintiff 
and their office address is 604 North Richardson Avenue, Roswe!L New 
Mexico 88201 (P.O. 8\lX l415, Roswell, Nev.· Mexico 88202•1415); 
tc:lephone number 575.624-2463. 

LINCOLN COUN1Y DISTRICT COURT CLERK 
By: Isl Gloria LarrulV 

Respectfully submitted, 

HENNIGHAUSEN & OLSEN, L.L.P. 
By: /,J Al Olsen 
AJ. Olsen, Esq. 
Oli"ia R. Mitchell, Esq. 
Jonnthnn E. Roehlk, Esq. 
Counsel for Fonay Umd Company, UC 
P.O. Box 1415 
Roswel, NM 88202-14!5 
(575) 624-2463 (felepbone) 
(575) 624-2878 (Fox) 
ajolsen@b2olawyers.com 
omitcbell@h2olawyers.com 
jrochlk@}h2olawyers,com 

-·-·-· New Ownership 

New Wage Scale plus benefits 

LVN $24.00 / 1,500.00 sign on bonus 

CNA $16.00 I $2,000.00 sign on bonus 

CMA $18.00 / $1,000.00 sign on bonus 

Hospitality Aides $10.00 • $13.00 

$1000 Scholarship bonus 

Apply in confidence to 

crobinson93@msn.com 

Attention Connor Robinson EOE 

-· THE BHRP is now 
hiring for the follow
ing PT & seasonal 

positions. Park 
& Nature Camp 

Supervisors, Park ..... _ ........ _ 

MIi 
NEED MULTIPLE 

people, FT and/or PT 
work in the Wimber
ley/San Marcos area. 
Applicants must have 
reliable transportation __ ., ... __ ,._.._ ----•··--

-·-· 
Dripping Springs Water 

Supply 

Utility Service Worker position 
available. For job description and 
salary please contact our office 

(512)-858-7897 
tracy@drippingspringswater.com 

HUCOLNllt11.1EHTN.1£M.THOODEVaOF\EHTM.01$Ai11.JT£SCEIITT:"IIS 
FULL TIME 

CSA 111-lesldenUal Posldans 
***•*•ir..!~,:.~~~~~m::~~ ... ******* Seeking positive, energetic individuals to work dosely 

wrth our mtellectual and developmentally disable<l 
populabon. We have openings at both the Comal 

County and the Hays County Group Homes1 Applicanb 
must have good written and verbal commumcation as 

well as time management skills. 
RequITTllllenls: 'H.S. Dtploma/GED, VaM Texas 

Driver's license and Current Automobile Insurance• 
Previous Expenence a ~us 

$10.95 per hour w/ Excetlent Benefits 
Apply online@ www.hlllcoonlry.org 

>1-lt>t♦>t>t>t**************"'*********"'"'"'"'***** Hill Country MHDD Centers~ an EOE 

f Journalism lobs ~i 

iFI MCM, LLC has numerous ~ 
~ openings in the Central Texas i 
ti area for: reporters, editors, J.,_ 

r and advertising sales people II I in 7 Waco area community ~ ! newspapers. Experience and ~ I education is important, and ·: 
· t-:1 a newspaper or advertising ~ 

r sales background are a plus. J 
Interested candidates should ~

email your resume to: -
.: 

publisher@themexianews. 
com or Call Richard Nelson 

at 254-562-2868 

caregivers in 
surrounding loca

tions. Please contact 
hiring manager. 
830.625.0444. 

NOW HIRING 
The Wimberley 

Community Center 
has an opening for a 

Part. lime Facilitv 

BETA POP-UP 
. Garage Sale 
Sal, 03/30/2019 

All sort of items up for 
sale at the Beta 
Pop-Up Garage 
Sale: Clothes, 

furniture, small appli-
ances, books, toys, 
etc. Bring cash to 

pick up great 
bargains. 

Old Oaks on Blue 
Hole Road, 

Wimberley, TX 

14 CREEKSIDE DR 
WIMBERLEY 

ESTATE SALE 
All items must go! 
March 16, 23 & 30. 
10:00 am -2:00 pm 

HUGE GARAGE 
SALE 

405 Flite Acres, two 
family downsize. 

Saturday 3130 8-7 
Dry project pieces, 

vintage items & 
jewelry, decor. 

clothes, kitchen. 

MULTI-FAMILY 
garage sale 

Fri 03129/19 from 
8a-3P & Sal 
03/30119 from 
8a-2p @ 

188 Marigold Cl. in 
Sierra West, 
Driftwood, TX 

78619. One mile 
from Hays City Store 
off FM 150. Look for 
signs. Lots of great 
deals & willing to 
negotiat on most 

items. 

MOVING SALE 
505 Deer Lake Rd 
Misc. tools, antique 
tools. tap & die sets, 
log splitter, various 
household items, & 

horse tack. 
March 30 & 31st 

8:30-3:00 

CHAPEL IN THE 
HILLS GARAGE 

SALE 
Across from 
Dairy Queen 

Friday March 29th 
9-4 

Saturday March 30th 
9-7 

Lots of Treasures! 

HISTORI 
RACEF 
INVEST 

OPPORTUI 
ACRES. 
OVERLC 
UNDEVE 

RETAIL, I' 
CON 

POSSIE 
ADJOII 

COMMI 
CENTERF 

LOT OVER 
CYPRES< 
AND OU 

SQUI 
REDUCE 

QUICK 
CALL 

830-441 

-2BD 
1 bath uni 

ft.; $10001 
plus utilitiei 
Great vie\11 
yard, deci 

pad for 
Availab 

Aprill 

512-51 -HALF 
firslfull m, 

1 BR$8, 
2 BR$93 

kitchen 
upgrades. 
steel app 

granite co 
Petfriern 

conven 
Country 

BlancoO 
ments.5 
Ave, Bia 
830-83 

2BED 
APAR 

Tenant pa 
nopets,l 

512-7! 

Iii 
FOR 

Smallb1 
square cu1 
for food C 

1 year 
de; 

&utilities 
Call 

512-S-

II 



Pre-Invoice
52118-0410

San Marcos Daily Record
P.O. Box 1109
San Marcos, TX  78667
512-392-2458

Accounts Payable
City of Wimberley
P.O. Box 2027
Wimberley, TX 78676

Customer: RA0684
Phone: 847-0025
Ad No.: 52118

Barker, TaffySales Rep:
Bill Date: 04/10/19
Due Date: 04/17/19

PO Number:

Date Publication Cost

Apr 18, 2019 Wimberley Legal Classifieds $34.08
$34.08
$0.00

$34.08

Total Charges:
Applied Prepayments/Credits:

Total Due by 4/17/19:

Days: 1

Public Notices

San Marcos Daily Record
Ad #:

Due Date:
Total Due:

52118

04/17/19
$34.08

Payment Method:
Customer #:

Customer:
RA0684
City of Wimberley

Bill Date: 04/10/19

Signature:

Detach and return this
stub with your payment to:

Name On Card:

M/C Other:
Check #

Expiration:

P.O. Box 1109
San Marcos, TX  78667

Cash

Number:
Visa

CVV

113

Notice of Enactment of 
Ordinance No. 2019-08 

An ordinance amending Chapter 9, Plan
ning and Development Regulations, Article 
9.03, Zoning, of the City of Wimberley 
Code of Ordinances related to bed and 
breakfast and vacation rental lodging re
quirements; and providing findings of fact; 
a penalty provision; a repealing clause; a 
savings and severability clause; an effec
tive date; and proper notice and meeting. 

----------------------------~---~------------------ f~_~J 
□ □ □ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-08

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9, PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, ARTICLE 9.03, ZONING, OF THE 
CITY OF WIMBERLEY CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATED TO BED 
AND BREAKFAST AND VACATION RENTAL LODGING 
REQUIREMENTS; AND PROVIDING FINDINGS OF FACT; A PENALTY 
PROVISION; A REPEALING CLAUSE; A SAVINGS AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROPER 
NOTICE AND MEETING. 

WHEREAS, the City of Wimberley’s is a General Law Type A City under the statutes of 
the State of Texas; and   

WHEREAS, the Texas Local Government Code authorizes a municipality to adopt zoning 
regulations designed to accomplish the goals as delineated in Section 211.004 of the Texas Local 
Government Code and for the purpose of regulating those issues as delineated in Section 211.003 
of the Texas Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Wimberley’s City Council appointed a committee to review the 
City’s regulations regarding short term rentals and said committee has met for numerous months 
regarding the City’s short term rental regulations; and   

WHEREAS, the committee presented its proposed amendments to the City’s zoning 
regulations to the Planning and Zoning Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission debated proposed amendments and 
held a public hearing regarding the proposed amendments on the ____ day of _____, 2019 at which 
all persons were given an opportunity to appear and express their opinion concerning the proposed 
amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission provided a preliminary report 
regarding the proposed amendments and recommended approval to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the City Council on the __th day of ____, 2019, 
on such preliminary report and recommendation at which all persons were given an opportunity to 
appear and express their opinion concerning the proposed amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wimberley has determined it to be in the 
public interest to adopt to the proposed amendments which in its best judgment are intended to 
promote the orderly development, use, and ongoing management of short term rental properties in 
order to promote the public health and safety of the community and promote a positive transient 
lodging experience. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL O FTHE CITY 
OF WIMBERLEY, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS: 

114



 Section 1. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City of Wimberley and are hereby approved and incorporated into the 
body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Section 2. The City of Wimberley Code of Ordinances Chapter 9, Article 9.03 is 
hereby amended as follows with a strike through being a deletion from the Code and an underline 
being an addition to the Code: 
 
General Amendments: 
 

Except where specifically provided otherwise in this Ordinance: 
 

The phrases “Bed and Breakfast Lodging” and “Bed and Breakfast” shall be replaced 
throughout the code with the phrase “STR1” 
 
 The phrases “Vacation Rental Lodging” and “Vacation Rental” shall be replaced 
throughout the Code with the phrase “STR2” 
 
Amendment Section 9.03.005 Definitions 
 

Bed and breakfast lodging. A residential facility, otherwise permitted in a zoning 
district authorized by this code as a conditional use permit, that is offered for rental 
and the owner or the owner's designated non-renting representative occupies a 
facility located on the property at the time the residential facility is being rented. 
All residential facilities of this type located on or within the property or properties 
identified in the conditional use permit shall be considered as constituting a single 
bed and breakfast lodging. All bed and breakfast lodging shall comply with section 
9.03.141 (bed and breakfast lodging requirements), and all applicable laws and 
regulations. 
 
Vacation rental. A residential facility otherwise permitted in a zoning district 
authorized by the approval of a conditional use permit that is offered for rental for 
a period not to exceed thirty (30) days. The owner or the owner's designated 
representative shall not be required to occupy the facility at the time the facility is 
being rented. All residential facilities of this type located on or within the property 
or properties identified in the conditional use permit shall be considered as 
constituting a single vacation rental. All vacation rentals shall comply with section 
9.03.142 (vacation rental lodging requirements), and all applicable laws and 
regulations. 
 
Short Term Rental One (STR1), formerly known as a “Bed and Breakfast”, is an 
owner occupied, owner present property used for transient lodging for stays of 30 
consecutive days or less. 
 
Short Term Rental Two (STR2), formerly known as a “Vacation Rental”, is an 
owner non-occupied, owner not-resident property used for transient lodging for 
stays of 30 consecutive days or less. 
 

115



STR, either and STR1 or an STR2 
 
Transient lodging is defined as a property use which has paying guests, tenants, 
and/or renters of a STR property who stay 30 or less consecutive days in the subject 
property. 
 

Amendment Division 3. District Regulations 
 

Section 9.03.070 Residential Use Prohibitions 
 
Except as otherwise provided for in this Code rental of a residence or residential 
structure of 30 days or less is prohibited in RA, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, R-5, MF-1, 
MF-2 and MH. 

 
Section 9.03.141 is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

Section 9.03.141 Short Term Rentals 

(a) Purpose.  The requirements of these regulations are designed and intended to 
promote the orderly development, use, and ongoing management of STR1 and STR2 
properties, collectively referred to within this Code as “STR”, to promote the public health 
and safety of the community and promote a positive transient lodging experience. In 
addition, because short term rentals are permitted in and near residential zoning districts 
these regulations are determined to be the minimum necessary to mitigate any possible 
negative impact of such uses on any residential areas.  

(b) For an STR located in a residentially zoned area the residential look, feel, and 
character of STR properties shall be maintained and the STR owners are prohibited from 
negatively intruding upon the adjacent neighbors and community atmosphere.  

(c) A conditional use permit (CUP), legislatively approved pursuant to Section 
9.03.255 and this Section, shall be required for all transient lodging approved after the 
enactment of these regulations, shall be valid for a period of one year from approval and 
shall run with the land.  The date of approval shall be specifically provided for in the 
enacting ordinance.    
 
(d) The renewal of a previously legislatively approved CUP, whether the CUP was 
approved before or after the enactment of these regulations, may be approved 
administratively for additional one-year periods pursuant to subsection (i) of this Section.    
All ordinances legislatively approving a CUP shall include language authorizing 
administrative renewal upon compliance with subsection (k) of this Section.   
 
[(e) All currently existing legal nonconforming transient lodging uses are hereby 
required to comply with the administrative approval process pursuant to subsection (i) of 
this Section by the deadline established in subjection (k) of this Section.  Compliance 
therewith shall result in the issuance of an administrative CUP which shall be valid for a 
period of one year from the date of issuance.  Failure to comply with this subsection shall 
result in the revocation of any existing nonconforming rights to use a property as transient 
lodging.]  

116



 
(fc) Refund of application fees. An applicant for an initial STR CUP who withdraws 
his/her application prior to presentation at the Planning and Zoning commission is entitled 
to a refund of all but one half of the applicant’s application fee.  No fees shall be refunded 
if the CUP application is withdrawn after presentation to the Planning and Zoning 
commission. 
 
(gd) In addition to the CUP considerations provided for in Section 9.03.251(b) the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council shall consider the following in the 
approval of a STR: 

 
(1) Owner requested versus permitted Planning and Zoning uses in the 
applicable zoning district; 
 
(2) The impact of potential transient lodging activity on any 
surrounding residential properties;  
 
(3) The area and the impact of STR lodging activities on the area;  
 
(4) The incremental environmental impact of the STR;  
 
(5) The proposed property occupancy relative to the size of the 
property; 
 
(6) Setbacks, encroachments, and proximity to any abutting residential 
structures; 
 
(7) Privacy fencing, landscaping, and natural noise barriers on the STR 
property that are appropriate for the protection of any abutting uses; 
 
(8) Impact analysis and plan of occupant access to waterways and other 
environmentally sensitive areas; 
 
(9) Vehicle access, on-site parking, and the number of parking spaces 
available relative to maximum acceptable occupancy; and 
 
(10) Any other factors in the City’s Comprehensive Plan deemed 
appropriate and consistent with the City’s zoning authority. 

 
(he) In addition to any conditions imposed as part of the approved CUP the 
following regulations shall be applicable to an STR lodging facilities and shall be 
incorporated into any legislatively approved CUP: 

 
(1) The STR CUP shall terminate and be considered abandoned if and 
when there is evidence of no transient lodging rental activity, based in part 
on the state occupancy tax reports, for a period of nine (9) consecutive 
months.  The burden is on the property owner to prove the property has been 
in continuous use.  

117



 
(2) For STR1 property, the owner or the owner’s designated 
representative shall occupy the property when the property is rented and in 
use as a transient lodging facility. 
 
(3) Parking shall comply with the base zoning district except as 
provided in this subsection.  On-street parking is prohibited in RA, R-1, R-
2, R-3, R-4, R-5, MF-1, MF-2 and MH zoning districts and parking in said 
zoning districts shall be subject to the following requirements: 
 

 (1) STR 1. Two (2) parking spaces are required. Required off-
street parking shall be provided on the same site as the use it is to 
serve. Parking areas shall be clearly identified on the property and 
adequate maneuvering space shall be provided for vehicle ingress 
and egress. In Planning Areas I and II, all vehicle parking shall be 
on a suitable parking surface as determined by the City.  In all other 
planning areas, all off-street parking shall be surfaced in 
accordance with the parking lot surfacing requirements in the city's 
regulations. No parking shall be permitted on grass, within 
landscaped areas, or on other unimproved surfaces. 

 
(2) STR 2.  One (1) parking space is required.  Required off-
street parking shall be provided on the same site as the use it is to 
serve. Parking areas shall be clearly identified on the property and 
adequate maneuvering space shall be provided for vehicle ingress 
and egress. In Planning Areas I and II, all vehicle parking shall be 
on a suitable parking surface approved by the city. In all other 
planning areas, all off-street parking shall be surfaced in 
accordance with the parking lot surfacing requirements in the city's 
regulations. No parking shall be permitted on grass, within 
landscaped areas, or on other unimproved surfaces. 

 
 

(i) Administrative Renewal of CUP 
 

(1) The City Administrator shall renew a CUP upon application, 
payment of any applicable fee and evidence of compliance with the 
following: 

 
a. For STR1 property, attestation that the owner or the owner’s 

designated representative occupies the property when the 
property is rented and in use as a transient lodging facility. 

b. Attestation that any applicable parking requirements are 
satisfied. 

c. Attestation of compliance with all conditions provided for in 
any ordinance approving the original CUP. 

d. Attestation of compliance with all applicable base zoning 
district regulations. 

118



 
(2) Should any CUP, whether approved legislatively or 

administratively, fail to be renewed pursuant to this subsection prior 
to thirty (30) days after its date of termination the CUP shall be 
considered revoked and the property owner shall be required to 
apply for a new CUP through the legislative process. 

 
City Staff shall develop an application form, permit and timeline for 
processing administrative renewals of CUPs and existing legal 
nonconforming transient lodging. 

 
(jf) The Council recognizes orderly and accurate recordkeeping of STR activity 
is essential to the successful enforcement of this ordinance and requires the 
following: 
 

(1) City Staff is directed to add a GIS layer through the City’s electronic 
mapping software that identifies the locations of all approved CUP STR 
locations and unapproved CUP STR locations for which the City has 
information. 
 
(2) City Staff is directed to create a database for recording all 
complaints received by the City that allege a violation of state and/or local 
law and/or violation of a CUP by the owner, operator, or renter of an STR 
within the City limits.  Each entry in the complaint database should include, 
at a minimum, the following information:   
 

(A) The location of the STR; 
 
(B) The nature of the alleged violation; 
 
(C) The date of the alleged violation; 
 
(D) A notation indicating how the complaint was resolved. 

 
(3) The GIS layer and the complaint database described by this section 
should be updated as necessary and shall be made available to members of 
the public as required by the Texas Public Information Act. 
 
(4) Members of the public, including individuals who reside adjacent to 
or in the vicinity of an STR, are encouraged to promptly report complaints 
to the City. 

 
(k) All currently existing legal nonconforming transient lodging uses, and 
existing CUPs shall apply for the appropriate STR use designation through the 
administrative renewal process as provided for under subsection (i) of this Section 
by June 30, 2020 and shall be required to annually renew their CUPs pursuant to 
these regulations. 
 

119



Section 9.03.142 is deleted in its entirety. 
 

Section 3. The penalty provision of the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 1, Section 
1.01.009 shall be applicable to any violation of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in force when the provisions of this 

Ordinance become effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms and provisions 
contained in this Ordinance are hereby repealed, but only to the extent of any such conflict. 

 
Section 5. Should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section of 

this Ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same shall not 
affect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole, or any part of provision thereof other than the part 
so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinances as a whole. 

 
Section 6. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 

the publication as provided by law. 
 
Section 7. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code.   

 
PASSED AND APPROVED First Reading this  day of  , 2019, by a vote of 

(Ayes) to  (Nays)   (Abstain) vote of the City Council of the City of Wimberley, Texas. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED Second Reading this  day of  , 2019, by a 

vote of (Ayes) to  (Nays)   (Abstain) vote of the City Council of the City of Wimberley, Texas. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
      Susan B. Jaggers, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Laura J. Calcote, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
City Attorney 

120



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

On September 25, 2012, the City Council selected Specialized Financial Services, Inc. (SPFI) as the 
City’s Financial Advisor.  Since 2012, the City has utilized SPFI for the issuance of the City’s 
Combination Tax and Surplus Revenue Anticipation Notes, Series 2013, and Sewer System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2017. 
 
As a condition of the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) approved change in scope for the 
Central Wimberley Wastewater Project, the City must exchange the City’s Sewer System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2017 for Exchange Refunding Bonds, Series 2019. 
 
The City’s Bond Counsel (Stephanie Leibe, with Norton Rose Fulbright) and Financial Advisor 
(Jennifer Ritter, with SPFI) have discussed with the TWDB what will be needed for the issuance of 
the City’s Exchange Refunding Bonds, Series 2019.  Based on these discussions SPFI has proposed a 
reduced fee of $15,943.75 for their services.  This is a 50% reduction from the last issuance. 
 
In adopting the FY 2019 Annual Budget, Council included $100,000 in the Wastewater Fund (202-
04-6374, Contract Services) for Grant/Loan Management Services.  The City, since the adoption of 
the FY 2019 Budget has chosen to provide these services in house, freeing the budget $100,000 for 
other uses.  The fees associated with SPFI’s services would be paid from this line item.   
 
For consideration, is the utilization of SPFI as required for the issuance of the City’s Exchange 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2019. 
 
 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

AGENDA ITEM: SPFI – Financial Advisor 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

121



 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☒ 

Not Applicable ☐  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 15,943.75 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

 

 
The City Administrator recommends utilizing the City’s Financial Advisors, Specialized Financial 
Services, Inc., as required by the Texas Waster Development Board for the issuance of the City’s 
Exchange Refunding Bonds, Series 2019. 
 

 

− SPFI Financial Advisory Services Agreement 
− SPFI Fee for 2019 TWDB Refunding Bonds 

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

122

ATIACHMENT(Sl 



From: Jennifer Ritter
To: Shawn Cox
Subject: Fee for 2019 TWDB Refunding Bonds
Date: Thursday, April 11, 2019 10:46:24 AM

Shawn,
 
To memorialize our conversation, we are agreeing to take a 50% reduction in fee to assist the City in
refunding it’s 2017 Revenue Bonds through the issuance of replacement bonds in 2019.
 
The reduced fee would be $15,943.75, representing a reduction by half from the contract fee of
$31,887.50 for $5,255,000 in bonds.
 
This fee represents delivery of the following requested items from TWDB:
 

1.  Preparation of a new private placement memorandum (with related exhibits);
2.  Preparation of a principal repayment schedule with interest rate notes;   
3.  Preparation of a new amortization schedule (principal and interest);
4.  Preparation of forms showing the new net effective interest rate;
5.  Preparation of forms showing the new weighted average maturity for the bonds;
6.  Application for CUSIPS and coordination with paying agent; and
7.  Preparation of a closing memorandum (not listed by TWDB but required for all bond issues.)  

 
This represents a one-time exception to the City’s contract with our firm. If additional expenses (for
example, mileage to attend meetings or shipping costs for documents) are required, those expenses
will be billed on an actual cost basis.
 
Sincerely,
 

Jennifer Ritter
Managing Director
Specialized Public Finance Inc.
248 Addie Roy Road, Suite B-103
Austin, Texas  78746
512/275-7304
jennifer@spfmuni.com
 

123

~ SPECIAIUZED PUBUC FINANCE INC. 
~ fJN,FI ~IAL ADVISORY 51,iRVIC!eS 

mailto:jennifer@spfmuni.com
mailto:Scox@cityofwimberley.com


FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

This Financial Advisory Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between 

the City of Wimberley, Texas (“Issuer”) and Specialized Public Finance Inc. (“SPFI”) effective as of the date 

executed by the Issuer as set forth on the signature page hereof. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer will have under consideration from time to time the authorization and issuance of 

indebtedness in amounts and forms which cannot presently be determined and, in connection with the authorization, 

sale, issuance and delivery of such indebtedness, Issuer desires to retain an independent financial advisor; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to obtain the professional services of SPFI to advise the Issuer regarding the 

issuance and sale of certain evidences of indebtedness or debt obligations that may be authorized and issued or 

otherwise created or assumed by the Issuer (hereafter referred to collectively as “Debt”) from time to time during the 

period in which this Agreement shall be effective; and 

 

WHEREAS, SPFI is willing to provide its professional services and its facilities as financial advisor in 

connection with all programs of financing as may be considered and authorized by Issuer during the period in which 

this Agreement shall be effective. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Issuer and SPFI, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein 

contained and other good and valuable consideration, do hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION I 

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

 

Upon the request of the Issuer, SPFI agrees to perform the financial advisory services stated in the 

following provisions of this Section I; and for having rendered such services, the Issuer agrees to pay to SPFI the 

compensation as provided in Section VI hereof. 

 

1. Financial Planning . Provide financial planning services related to Debt plans and programs. 

 

2. Debt Elements. Provide recommendations regarding Debt under consideration, including such elements as 

timing, structure, security provisions, and such other provisions as may be appropriate. 

 

3. Method of Sale. Make a recommendation as to an appropriate method of sale, including but not limited to 

competitive sale, negotiated sale or private/limited offering.  

 

4. Price Fairness. Advise the Issuer as to the fairness of the price offered by the underwriters. 

124



 

5. Offering Documents. Participate in and direct, as appropriate, the preparation of the offering documents 

and/or assist bond counsel with same. 

 

6. Auditors. Coordinate verification by an independent auditor of any calculations incident to the Debt, as 

required. 

 

7. Printing. Coordinate all work incident to printing of the offering documents and other documents required 

by Issuer. 

 

8. Closing. Provide the Issuer a post sale/closing booklet or update for the Debt and other outstanding debt, as 

needed. 

 

SECTION II 

OTHER AVAILABLE SERVICES 

 

In addition to the services set forth and described in Section I herein above, SPFI agrees to make available 

to the Issuer the following services, when so requested by the Issuer and subject to the agreement by Issuer and SPFI 

regarding the compensation, if any, to be paid for such services, it being understood and agreed that the services set 

forth in this Section II may require further agreement as to the compensation to be received by SPFI for such 

services: 

 

1. Call Defeasance and Refunding. Evaluate and advise on exercising any call defeasance and/or refunding of 

any outstanding Debt. 

 

2. Capital Program Modeling. Evaluate and advise on the development of any capital improvements 

programs. 

 

SECTION III 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

 

It is understood and agreed that the Issuer, in connection with the sale and delivery of Debt, will be 

required to comply with certain continuing disclosure undertakings, including preparation and submission of annual 

reports (the “annual reports”) and reporting of certain specified material events (the “material events”) pursuant 

written undertakings of the Issuer and in accordance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Commission 

Rule 15c2-12, as amended (the “Rule). SPFI shall provide continuing disclosure services on the terms and 

conditions, for the time period and for the compensation set forth herein. 

 

125



1. This Agreement shall apply to all Debt delivered subsequent to the effective date of the continuing 

disclosure undertakings of Issuer and as specified in the Rule, to the extent that any particular issue of Debt 

does not qualify for exceptions to the continuing disclosure requirements of the Rule. 

 

2. SPFI agrees to perform annual reporting and material event notification duties required by the undertakings 

of Issuer and the Rule. 

 

3. The fees of SPFI for providing the foregoing continuing disclosure services shall be negotiated annually 

(not to exceed $1,000 per similarly-secured type of Debt). The fees of SPFI for providing material event 

notification services shall be negotiated separately at the time such notifications may be required. 

 

SECTION IV 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement shall become effective as of the date executed by the Issuer as set forth on the signature 

page hereof and, unless terminated by either party pursuant to Section V of this Agreement, shall remain in effect 

thereafter for a period of three (3) years from such date. Unless SPFI or Issuer shall notify the other party in writing 

at least thirty (30) days in advance of the applicable anniversary date that this Agreement will not be renewed, this 

Agreement will automatically renew on the third anniversary of the date hereof for an additional one (1) year period 

and thereafter will automatically renew on each anniversary date for successive one (1) year periods under the same 

terms as the initial 3 year period. 

 

SECTION V 

TERMINATION 

 

This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by the Issuer or SPFI upon the giving of at least 

thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the other party of its intention to terminate.  In the event of such termination, 

it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due SPFI for services provided and expenses incurred to the date 

of termination will be due and payable. No penalty will be assessed for termination of this Agreement. 

 

SECTION VI 

COMPENSATION AND EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 

 

The fees due to SPFI for the services set forth and described in Section I of this Agreement with respect to 

each issuance of Debt during the term of this Agreement shall be calculated in accordance with the schedule set 

forth on Appendix A attached hereto. Unless specifically provided otherwise on Appendix A or in a separate written 

agreement between Issuer and SPFI, such fees, together with any other fees as may have been mutually agreed upon 

and all expenses for which SPFI is entitled to reimbursement, shall become due and payable concurrently with the 

delivery of the Debt to the purchaser. 

 

126



SECTION VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

1. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed and given effect in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Texas. Proper venue for any legal action arising out of this Agreement shall be Hays County, 

Texas. 

 

2. Binding Effect; Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Issuer 

and SPFI, their respective heirs, executors, personal representatives, successors and assigns; provided 

however, neither party hereto may assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the 

prior written consent of the other party. 

 

3. Entire Agreement. This instrument contains the entire agreement between the parties relating to the rights 

herein granted and obligations herein assumed. Any oral or written representations or modifications 

concerning this Agreement shall be of no force or effect except for a subsequent modification in writing 

signed by all parties hereto. 

 

 

Specialized Public Finance Inc. 
 
 
By:________________________
 Managing Director 
 
 
By:________________________ 
 Managing Director 
 
 
City of Wimberley, Texas 
 
By:_______________________ 
 
Title:______________________ 
 
Date:______________________ 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Title 

127



APPENDIX A 

 

Fee Schedule: 
 
The first issue for the City will be performed for a financial advisory fee not to exceed $15,000; thereafter the 
following will be in effect: 
 

$9,000 for the first  $1,000,000 of bonds issued  

Plus $4.00 per $1,000 for the next  $4,000,000 of bonds issued  

Plus $2.00 per $1,000 for the next  $5,000,000 of bonds issued  

Plus $1.00 per $1,000 for the next  $40,000,000 of bonds issued  

Plus $0.75 per $1,000 thereafter    

 
The above charges shall be multiplied by 1.25 times for the completion of an application to a federal or state 
government agency or for the issuance of revenue bonds or refunding bonds, reflecting the additional services 
required. 
 
The charges for ancillary services, including computer structuring and official statement printing, shall be levied 
only for those services which are reasonably necessary in completing the transaction and which are reasonable in 
amount, unless such charges were incurred at the specified direction of the Issuer. 
 
The payment of charges for financial advisory services in Section I of the foregoing Agreement shall be contingent 
upon the delivery of bonds and shall be due at the time that bonds are delivered. The payment of charges for 
services described in Section II of the foregoing Agreement shall be due and payable in accordance with the mutual 
agreement therefor between SPFI and Issuer. 
 
The Issuer shall be responsible for the following expenses, if and when applicable: 
 
Bond counsel 
Bond ratings 
Computer structuring (pursuant to SPFI internal fee schedule) 
Continuing Disclosure, as per Section III 
Credit enhancement 
Verification agent 
Official statement preparation 
Official statement printing and distribution 
Paying agent/registrar/trustee 
Travel related expenses (mileage, airfare, hotel, etc.) as requested 
Underwriter and underwriters’ counsel 
Delivery, copy, conference call charges and other miscellaneous charges 
 
The payment of reimbursable expenses that SPFI has assumed on behalf of the Issuer shall NOT be contingent upon 
the delivery of bonds and shall be due at the time that services are rendered and payable upon receipt of an invoice 
therefor submitted by SPFI. 

128



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

At the November 15, 2018 Council Meeting, Council directed staff to draft a tree ordinance and have 
it ready for review in March 2019.  A draft of the proposed ordinance was originally presented to 
Council on March 21, 2019.  Based on the input received, language regarding “Heritage Trees” has 
been added.  Additionally, updates have been made to the “cash-in-lieu” language of the draft 
ordinance.  The ordinance will add Article 4.12-Landscaping and Tree Preservation to Chapter 4-
Building Regulations. 
 
 

 

Motion  ☐ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $  

Current Estimate:                 $ 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

 

 

The City Administrator is requesting input on recommended changes to the draft ordinance. 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Tree Ordinance 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

129



130

ARTICLE 4.12 LANDSCAPING AND TREE PRESERVATION 

Division 1. Generally 

Sec. 4.12 Title 

This article shall be commonly cited as the landscape ordinance. 

Sec. xxx Purpose 

(a) Generally. The purpose of this article is to provide for the preservation of native trees, prevent the clear-
cutting of land, and provide for minimum landscaping and screening requirements, in recognition that trees, 
landscaping, screening, and buffering protect the health and welfare of the community, while addressing the water 
conservation and drainage issues particular to the Hill Country region. The purpose of this article is also to 
enhance the community's ecological, environmental, and aesthetic qualities. 

(b) Health, welfare, and general well-being. Preserving and improving the natural environment, and maintaining a 
working ecological balance, are of increasing concern to the city. The fact that the proper use of landscape 
elements can contribute to the processes of air purification, oxygen regeneration, water absorption, water 
purification, and noise, glare, and heat abatement as well as the preservation of the community's aesthetic qualities 
indicates that the use of landscape elements is of benefit to the health, welfare, and general well-being of the 
community, and therefore it is proper that the appropriate use of such elements be required. 

(c) Water conservation and drainage. The city experiences frequent droughts and is characterized by thin-soiled 
rock formations; therefore, it is the purpose of this article to encourage the use of drought-resistant vegetation and 
landscaping that minimizes runoff and erosion. 

Sec. xxx Scope 

This article applies to all commercial property within the incorporated municipal boundaries (i.e., city limits) for 
which site plan approval by the city is required under the city's Code of Ordinances. This article applies to actions 
taken after the date of enactment. 

Sec. xxx Definitions 

(a) Rules of interpretation. Words and phrases used in this article shall have the meanings set forth in this section. 
Terms that are not defined below, but are defined elsewhere in the Code of Ordinances, shall be given the 
meanings set forth in the code. Words and phrases not defined in the Code of Ordinances shall be given their 
common, ordinary meaning unless the context clearly requires otherwise. When not inconsistent with the context, 
words used in the present tense shall include the future tense, words in the plural number shall include the singular 
number (and vice versa), and words in the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender (and vice versa). 
The word "shall" is always mandatory, while the word "may" is merely directory. Headings and captions are for 
reference purposes only. 

{b) Specific definitions. 

City administrator. The chief administrative officer of the city. The term shall also include the deputy city 
administrator. 

City council. The governing body of the city. 

City of Austin Environmental Criteria Manual. The document promulgated by the City of Austin, which is commonly 
used throughout the region and is widely regarded as the standard in the development community, as may be 
amended. 

City of Austin Grow Green Guide. The document promulgated in part by the City of Austin, entitled "Native and 
Adapted Landscape Plants: An Earthwise Guide for Central Texas," as may be amended. 

City permit. A city license, certificate, approval, registration, consent, permit, or other form of authorization 
required by a city ordinance, regulation, or rule in order to develop, construct, and operate the improvements on 
the property. 

Code. The Code of Ordinances enacted by the city, as may be amended from time to time. 

DBH (diameter at breast height). The tree trunk diameter of an existing tree measured in inches at a height of 4.5 feet 
above the ground. If a tree splits into multiple trunks below 4.5 feet, the trunk is measured at its most narrow point 



131

beneath the split. 

Designated tree. Any of the following: 

(l) A hardwood tree having a trunk of eight (8) inches in caliper or greater measured at DBH; 

(2) A multi-trunked hardwood tree having a total trunk DBH of thirty (30) inches or more (not counting trunks 
less than eight (8) inches in diameter); or 

(3) A cluster of hardwood trees within a ten-foot radius circle having a total trunk DBH of forty ( 40) inches or 
more (not counting trunks less than eight (8) inches in diameter). 

Escrow. A deposit of a cash bond with the city in accordance with this article. 

Extreme drought classification. A D3 classification of drought intensity provided by the National Drought Mitigation 
Center, with D l being the least intense and D4 being the most intense. D3 classification, extreme drought areas, 
result in major crop/pasture losses and widespread water shortages or restrictions. The National Drought 
Mitigation Center must be consulted to determine the classification for the region. 

Heritage Tree. A "Heritage Tree" means a tree that has a diameter of twenty-four (24) inches or more, measured 
four and one-half ( 4 ½) feet above natural grade. 

Impervious cover. Roads, parking areas, buildings, swimming pools, rooftop landscapes, and other construction 
limiting the absorption of water by covering the natural land surface; this shall include, but not be limited to, all 
streets and pavement within the development. 

Landscape architect. One whose profession is the decorative and functional alteration and planting of grounds, 
especially at or around a building site. 

Landscaping. Consists of introduced vegetation, as well as related improvements to a lot, including, but not limited 
to, forming and berming, irrigation systems, landscape subsurface drainage systems, site furnishings, and 
nonstructural retaining walls. 

Natural area. An area where the naturally grown landscaping is left primarily undisturbed, except for the removal 
of poison ivy, greenbrier, and similar vegetation, oak wilt removal and/or prevention measures, and allowing for 
maintenance of the trees to maintain vigorous growth. 

Owner. A person with legal control over property in question. 

Person. A human individual, corporation, agency, unincorporated association, partnership, or sole proprietorship, 
or other legal entity. 

TCEQ. The state commission on environmental quality, or its successor agency. 

Sec. xxx Applicability 

This article applies to all new commercial development requiring site plan approval subject to zoning 
requirements. All properties going through redevelopment through extension, reconstruction, resurfacing, or 
structural alteration must come into compliance. Site plan approval shall be conditioned on compliance with this 
article. 

Sec. xxx Landscaping fund 

A fund is hereby created in which any cash-in-lieu paid to the city pursuant to the mandates of this article shall be 
deposited. The fund may be drawn upon by the city to implement landscaping improvements on city land and city 
controlled rights-of-way. 

Sec. xxx Damaging or removing trees 

No person shall damage or remove trees in violation of this article. 

Sec. xxx Violations 

It shall be unlawful for any person to violate this article. 

Sec. xxx Enforcement; penalties 

(a) Compliance. Violators of this article will be required to come into compliance within sixty (60) days, unless 
a variance has been approved by the city. Compliance with this article may be grounds for withholding of other 
related pending permits for the project by the city. 

(b) Enforcement. The city shall have the power to administer and enforce the provisions of this article as may be 
required by governing law. Any person violating any provision of this article is subject to a stop work order, suit 



132

for injunctive relief, and/or prosecution for criminal violations. Any violation of this article is hereby declared to 
be a nuisance. Any violation of this article may serve as grounds to withhold or delay issuance of other permits 
and revocation of a certificate of occupancy. 

(c) Criminal penalty. Any person violating any provision of this article shall, upon conviction, be fined a sum not 
exceeding two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) to be deposited in the landscaping fund. Each day that a provision of 
this article is violated shall constitute a separate offense. An offense under this article is a misdemeanor. 

(d) Civil remedies. Nothing in this article shall be construed as a waiver of the city's right to bring a civil action 
to enforce the provisions of this article and to seek remedies as allowed by law, including but not limited to the 
following: 

( 1) Injunctive relief. Injunctive relief to prevent specific conduct that violates this article or to require specific 
conduct that is necessary for compliance with this article; 

(2) Civil penalty. A civil penalty up to five hundred dollars ($500.00) a day to be deposited in the landscaping 
fund, when it is shown that the defendant was actually notified of the provisions of this article and after receiving 
notice committed acts in violation of this article or failed to take action necessary for compliance with this article, 
and other available relief; and 

(3) Stop work order. In the event work is not being performed in accordance with this article, the city shall issue 
a stop work order and all work shall immediately cease. No further work shall be undertaken on the project as long 
as a stop work order is in effect. 

Division 2. Standards 

Sec. xxx Street trees 

(a) Nonresidential street tree requirements. At least one (l) required tree, shall be planted adjacent to or near the 
street right-of-way for each twenty-five (25) feet, or fraction thereof, oflinear street frontage. Trees shall be 
planted between the street right-of-way and any horizontal and vertical improvements. The required number of 
trees need not be placed uniformly, but may be clustered in groups. 

(b) Trees planted shall be a minimum four ( 4) inch DBH, staked, and wrapped. Small trees/large shrubs trees 
shall be a minimum two (2) inch DBH, staked, and wrapped. 

(c) Trees with deep roots may be planted in the area between the sidewalk and road if approved by the city 
administrator, or designee. Trees of species whose roots are known to cause damage to public roadways or other 
public works are prohibited. 

Sec. xxx Landscape buffers 

{a) Landscape buffer planting requirements. 

( 1) All plant material shall be of native or adapted species. 

(2) All new proposed shade trees shall be a minimum of 4 inches in diameter. 

(3) All proposed ornamental trees shall be a minimum of 2 inches in diameter. 

( 4) All large shrubs shall be a minimum of 5-gallon container size and small shrubs/groundcovers a minimum 
of I -gallon container size. 

(b) Landscape buffer spacing requirements. The following landscape buffer spacing requirements shall apply to all 
designated landscape buffers: 

(1) Shade trees (such as Live Oak or Cedar Elm). One per 50' of buffer frontage. 

(2) Ornamental trees (such as Crape Myrtle or Desert Willow). One per 25' of buffer frontage. 

(3) Large shrubs, five-gallon (such as Wax Myrtle, DW Yaupon, or Agarita). One per 6' of buffer frontage. 

(4) Small shrubs/groundcovers, one-gallon (such as Lantana or Liriope). One per 3' of buffer frontage. 

(c) Landscape buffer widths. The following landscape buffer width requirements shall apply to all designated 
landscape buffers and shall be measured from the edge of the right-of-way: 



133

At Arterial Roadways At Collector Roadways 

01-02 Twenty-five feet (25') Twenty-five feet (25') 

C1-C3 Twenty-five feet (25') Twenty-five feet (25') 

HC Fifty feet (50') Fifty feet (50') 

11-12 Fifty feet (50') Fifty feet (50') 

AS/S Twenty-five feet (25') Twenty-five feet (25') 

L 1-L2 Twenty-five feet (25') Twenty-five feet (25') 

IP Fifty feet (50') Fifty feet (50') 

PPU Fifty feet (50') Fifty feet (50') 

PR1-PR2 Twenty-five feet (25') Twenty-five feet (25') 

PF Fifty feet (50') Fifty feet (50') 

NS Twenty-five feet (25') Twenty-five feet (25') 

WPDD Varies Varies 

RR-1 Twenty-five feet (25') Twenty-five feet (25') 

VI Twenty-five feet (25') Twenty-five feet (25') 

SC Twenty-five feet (25') Twenty-five feet (25') 

MF1-MF2 Twenty-five feet (25') Twenty-five feet (25') 

(d) Landscape buffer vegetation. The following landscape buffer vegetation requirements shall apply to all 
designated landscape buffers: 

This buffer area shall contain either native vegetation in the form of trees and bushes left in their natural, 
undisturbed condition, or, if no such native vegetation exists, shall consist of landscaping in conformance with this 
article. If the area consists of landscaped plantings, maintenance of such plantings shall be the sole responsibility 
of the developer. 

Sec. xxx Landscape material 

All trees, plants, and vegetation shall comply with the City of Austin "Grow Green" recommended plant guide. 
Invasive plants in this guide are specifically prohibited. 

Sec. xxx Landscape plan and tree survey submittal 

A landscape plan and tree survey shall be submitted to the city with the proposed site plan. The landscape plan 
shall comply with the landscape requirements. The landscape plan shall be signed and sealed by a landscape 
architect licensed by the state. The existing tree survey should be signed and sealed by a surveyor licensed by the 
state. 

Sec. xxx Parking area landscaping 

(a) Parking lots and all vehicular parking and maneuvering areas, excluding driveways behind buildings, shall 
contain areas constructed, planted, and maintained as landscaped islands, peninsulas, or medians. 



134

(b) The minimum total area in landscaped islands, peninsulas, or medians in the parking lots in front of 
buildings shall be ninety (90) square feet for each twelve (12) parking spaces. 

( c) One tree is required for every six ( 6) parking spaces. Tree preservation is encouraged, thus one (l) existing 
tree that is at four (4) inches DBH shall count for two (2) new trees. 

(d) No parking space shall be located further than fifty (50) feet from a landscaped island, peninsula, median, or 
tree. They shall be located evenly through the parking areas; however, the location of landscaped islands, 
peninsulas, and medians may be adjusted to accommodate existing trees or other natural features. 

(e) Landscape terminal islands (end islands) shall be located at the end of all parking modules in a 
configuration to allow for turning radii of intersecting aisles to protect parked vehicles, provide for visibility, 
confine moving traffic to aisles and driveways, and provide space for landscaping. Medium and tall shrubs are 
prohibited on internal islands to maintain visibility. 

(f) All landscaped islands shall have curbs except when utilizing low impact development techniques to capture 
and utilize runoff for irrigation purposes. 

(g) Paving over the critical root zone is discouraged and must be approved by the city administrator, or 
designee. All approved paving shall be porous pavement to allow water and air exchange. 

Sec. xxx Screening of dumpsters and building service equipment 

(a) For outdoor condensers, utility huts, and other building service equipment (other than a rooftop), such 
equipment shall be reasonably screened from view on all sides using a masonry wall and vegetative screen using 
at least two (2) varieties of plant material from the "grow green" plant guide, that, at maturity, are at least the 
height of the equipment to be screened. 

(b) All refuse and/or recycling containers shall be reasonably screened with landscaping from public view and 
the view of adjoining properties. 

(c) The opening for removal of the dumpster for collection shall be a minimum of twelve (12) feet to allow 
proper service access. An additional ten (l 0) feet in width is required for every additional dumpster. 

(d) All durable materials used in constructing the dumpster screening masonry wall system shall be consistent 
with and complement the primary structure. 

( e) The orientation of the dumpster opening shall not face the street or public sidewalk unless approved by the 
city administrator, or designee. 

Sec. xxx Maintenance requirements 

The owner shall be responsible for (unless otherwise specified herein): 

( 1) Regular maintenance of all required landscaped areas and plant materials in a vigorous and healthy 
condition, free from diseases, pests, weeds, and litter. This maintenance shall include weeding, watering, 
fertilization, pruning, mowing, edging, mulching, or other necessary maintenance in accordance with generally 
accepted horticultural practice; 

(2) The repair or replacement ofrequired landscape structures (walls, fences, etc.) to a structurally sound 
condition; 

(3) The regular maintenance, repair, or replacement, where necessary, of any screening or buffering; 

( 4) Replacing planted trees if they die or become diseased beyond repair within five ( 5) years after planting; 
and 

( 5) Repairing damage to landscaped areas, structures, screening, buffering, or trees as a result of ingress or 
egress from site easements by authorized or unauthorized parties. 

Sec. xxx Integrated pest management 

Air integrated pest management plan (IPM) shall be submitted with the site plan. The IPM shall include the 
fertilizer ratios, brands, and types of fertilization application methods to be used. Fertilizers must be phosphate
free. 

Sec. xxx Tree preservation 

(a) A grading and tree survey shall be submitted with the site plan. 

(b) The tree survey shall include all existing, live, healthy trees with an eight-inch DBH in diameter and larger. 
The survey shall indicate the size (DBH) and species of tree. Trees observed to be distressed will be indicated with 



135

an asterisk on the tree list. Trees shall be represented by circles using the formula of one (l) foot of radius for 
every one inch of trunk diameter. Unbroken circles indicate trees that are to remain. Dashed circles indicate trees 
that are to be removed (including trees identified to be distressed). 

(c) Healthy designated trees (as defined by the City of Austin Environmental Criteria Manual, Appendix F) that 
require removal to accommodate the development shall be replaced at a ratio of l :1, or cash-in-lieu may be paid to 
the city, the amount equal to the cost of nursery stock required to replace the caliper amounts lost and the cost of 
installation on a per-unit basis, not to exceed one hundred dollars ($100.00) per caliper inch or six thousand 
dollars ($6,000.00) per acre (prorated for sites of more or less than one acre) for the entire site. Trees identified as 
distressed shall not be included in tree preservation requirements evaluation. 

( d) Removal of a heritage tree is prohibited unless a variance is granted by City Council with the following 
finding that the heritage tree is either: (l) dead; (2) is an imminent hazard to life or property, and the hazard 
cannot reasonably be mitigated without removing the tree; or (3) is diseased and restoration to sound condition is 
not practicable or the disease may be transmitted to other trees and endanger their health. 

( e) Pre- and post-construction fertilization is required for existing trees that will be or have been disturbed by 
construction activities, including disturbance of the critical root zone. Fertilizers must be phosphate-free. 

(f) The planting, preserving, and maintaining of trees which are contagiously diseased trees, or the storage of 
cut oak unless first determined by a certified arborist to be devoid of oak wilt or properly treated, shall be deemed 
a public nuisance and is prohibited. 

(g) During construction, take measures to protect trees, including rigid fencing, shielding, and signage, as 
necessary. Rigid fencing shall be placed with a radius of at least ten ( l 0) feet from the trunk or at the critical root 
zone, whichever is greater, unless property lines or other features prohibit a complete radius. Rigid fencing shall 
consist of chainlink or wood fencing not less than four (4) feet high at the drip line of the tree. Stakes shall be no 
more than six ( 6) feet apart and at least one and one-half (l-1/2) deep into the ground. Rigid fencing shall be at 
least three (3) feet in height. 

(h) The city administrator or designee shall inspect and approve installed tree protection before issuance of any 
permit to commence with any construction activity. 

(i) Tree protection shall remain in place until final landscaping installation as approved by the city administrator 
or designee. 

U) Parking or storing of vehicles, equipment or materials allowed within the critical root zone is prohibited. 

Sec. xxx Irrigation requirements 

(a) An irrigation plan is required as part of the site plan and will be prepared by a licensed irrigator (i.e., 
licensed landscape architect or engineer). The plan should include rain/freeze sensors on all controllers. The 
irrigation plan should provide drip irrigation in shrub beds where appropriate and bubblers on all trees. 

(b) Turf grass plantings may be Buffalo, Zoysia, or Bermuda. St. Augustine is expressly prohibited. 

(c) Landscaped areas must be mulched to reduce evaporation and preserve water. 

Sec. xxx Drought conditions 

(a) During extreme drought classifications for this region as determined by the National Drought Mitigation 
Center, the city administrator, or designee, may accept a fiscal deposit of the amount equal to the cost of 
purchasing and installing the trees and other required landscaping into the city's drought tree fund in lieu of the 
installation of trees and other landscaping required by this chapter for the issuance of a certificate of occupancy 
permit, or the city administrator or designee may accept an escrow equal to the cost of purchasing and installing 
the trees and other required landscaping. The city shall only accept the fiscal deposit or escrow if an erosion 
control plan consistent with section xxx of this code has been reviewed and accepted by the city administrator or 
designee. Failure to maintain and adhere to an approved erosion control plan during periods of extreme drought 
classification shall be deemed a violation and the fines and penalties under section xxx of this article shall apply. 

(b) Persons requesting that the city accept a fiscal deposit in lieu shall provide the city with written 
documentation from an entity that sells trees and landscaping the cost of purchasing and installing the trees and 
other landscaping required by this chapter. 

(c) If no cost for the installation of trees and landscaping required by this chapter is provided to the city, the city 
shall require sixty-six (66) percent of the cost of the trees and landscaping to be paid as the installation cost in 
addition to the cost to purchase the trees and landscaping. 



136

(d) Any fiscal deposits for trees and landscaping paid to the city pursuant to this section shall be held in escrow. 
The escrow may be drawn upon by the city to implement tree and landscaping requirements for the depositing 
property owner, or the funds shall be released to the depositing property owner to implement tree and landscaping 
requirements within thirty (30) days when the drought mitigation center determines that this region is no longer in 
an extreme drought condition or higher classification. Failure to implement the tree and landscaping requirements 
within thirty (30) days ofrelease of the fiscal deposit to the depositing property owner shall be deemed a violation 
and the fines and penalties under section xxx of this article shall apply. 

(e) Whenever necessary to enforce any provision of this article or implement tree and landscaping requirements 
on the depositing property owner's property, city staff, or the city's contractor, may enter upon depositing property 
owner's property at any reasonable time to inspect or perform any duty imposed by this article during an extreme 
drought classification for this region. If entry is refused, the city shall have recourse to every remedy provided by 
law and equity to gain entry. 

(f) The city is the custodian of any cash funds or bonds on deposit in the property owner's escrow account. The 
city has a fiduciary duty to the depositing property owner and may dispose of the escrowed funds only in 
accordance with this section. 



137

APPENDIX F - DESCRIPTIVE CATEGORIES OF TREE SPECIES 

cmrnm:-.A"IE 
Scientific Name 

.\C AClA, CATCLA W 
Acacia greggii 
ACACIA, WRIGHT 
Acacia greggii var. writhfii 

Legend: CO-Cuh11 
EQ=Evcrgreen Qualities 
DC= Deciduous 
FS-Full Sun 

PS= Part Shade 
ST= ,bade Tolerant 

co EQ DC FS 

ANACACHO ORCHID TREE 
Cordia boL\'1'il:'ri 

ANACt:A 
Ehretia anacua 
ASll,GREEN 
fraxinus pennsy!vanica 
ASH, TEXAS 
Fraxinus texensis 
BOIS D'ARC 
Moc/ura pomijera 
BOXELDER 
Acer negundo 
BR\SIL 
Conda/ia hookeri var. hookeri 
BUCKEYE, ,IEXICAN 
Ungnadla 1pPCin1·a 

BUCKEYE, RED 
,foscu!uspav1a 

BUCKEYE, TEXAS 
Ae,1cu/u,1 g!ahm var. urguw 

BUCKTHORN, CAROLINA 
Franguia caroiiniana 

BmlELIA, GUM 
Siderox,-vlon lanuginosum 

CAROLil'iA BASSWOOD 
Tilio onwrimno 
CATALPA # 

Catalpa spp. 

CEDAR, EASTER~ RED 
Juniperus virginiana 
CHERRY, ESCARP:VIENT BLACK 
Prunus serotina var. eximia 
CHERRY-LAUREL, CAROLl'<A 
I'runus caroliniana 

COTTONWOOD, EASTER11 
Papa/us de/wides 

CR.\BAPPLE, BLA'<CO 
Malus ioemiJ var. texanu 
CYPRESS, ARIZONA# 
Cupressus ari;;onica 

CYPRESS, HALD 
Taxodium distichum 

MR-Mature lleighl (Feel) 

MW=Mature Width !Feet) 
A\=Available at \urseries 
SS-Signifieant Shade Provider 

llS=Understmy 

WV=\VildlifcValue 

TRFF. CHARACTERISTICS 

PS ST j]H \IW AN ss 
20 20 

10 20 

15 10 

45 40 

60 40 

45 40 

30 30 

40 30 

JO 35 

20 20 

Ii I.I 

Ji 35 

20 20 

50 iO 

30 20 

10 2.1 

50 20 

40 25 

40 20 

75 50 

20 Ii 

50 25 

130 40 

lS WV 

BP-R1ackland Prnirie + 
EP=Edi,ards Plateau+ 
DS=Dry txerie) Site 
MS-\loist(mcsie) Site 

WS=\Vet thydricl site 

ECOREGION A"D SOIL 
CHARACTERISTICS 

BP EP DS :VIS WS 

HG-1 kri1age 

UC= Ctility Compatible 
RS=Residental Subdi,,isions 
SE-Strcctscapc (Design Standards) 

CITY OF AllSTl','S 

LISTS 

HG UC RS SE 



138

co~rno~ ~AME 
Sciem{/!c Name 

CYPRESS, MO~TEZ[MA i 
Taxodium mucronatum 

DOGWOOD, ROLGHLEAF 
Cornus drummondii 
ELM, A}IERICA\ 
U!m1t.1 americana 
ELM,CEDAR 
Uimus crass[folia 

EVE'S l'iECKLACE 
Sophora a,ffinis 

GOLDE'iBALL LEAD-TREE 
leucaena retusa 

HACKBERRY 
Ce/tisspp. 

HICKORY, BLACK 
Carya tcxana 

HICKORY, MOCKER\UT 
Caryaalba 
HOLLY, POSSUMHAW 
Ilcxdecidua 
HOLLY, YAt:PO~ 
!bvomiwria 

HIIISACHE 
Acacia fornesiona 

JUl'ilPER, ASHE 
Juniperus ashei 

KIU~tYWOOU 
E}Senhardtia texana 

Legend: CO=Colo1 
EQ-Evergrl'cn Qualilil'~ 

DC= Dcciduou~ 

FS=Full Sun 
PS= Part Shade 
ST- Shade Tolerant 

co EQ DC FS 

LINDHEIMER'S SILKTASSEL 
Garr;10 ovata ssp. lindheimeri 

LOCUST, HOl'iEY 
(;feditsiulriucunllio1 

MADRON[, TEXAS 
Arbutus xalapensis 
MAGNOLIA, SOUTHER\# 
Magnolia grandiflora 

MAPLE, BIGTOOTH 
Acer grandidentatum 
MESQ!IITE, HO\EV 
Prosopis glandu!osa 

MOlNTAII\ LAUREL, TEXAS 
Sophora 1,ecund/fora 

MIILBERRY, RED 
Momsmbra 

MULBERRY, TEXAS 
Marus microphylla 

MH=Mature Height (Feet) 
MW-Maiurc Width (Feet) 
AN= A vailablc at \lurscric~ 

SS=Significant Shade Provider 
US=Undcrstory 
WV-\Vildlifo Value 

TREE CHARACTERISTICS 

PS ST }IH l!W Al'i ss 
50 40 

20 20 

120 120 

90 45 

2~ 20 

25 15 

30 20 

30 20 

Si 60 

30 20 

25 ]O 

20 20 

30 25 

15 IO 

15 10 

30 20 

30 40 

50 40 

40 25 

30 25 

25 10 

JO 20 

20 Ii 

us WV 

BP=Blackland Prniric t 
EP-Edwc1rds Plalcau t 
DS=Dry (xcric) Site 
MS=Moist (mcsic) Site 
WS=Wct (hydricl site 

ECOREGIO~ AND SOIL 
CHARACTERISTICS 

BP EP DS MS WS 

HG=Hcritagc 
[C= Utility Compatible 
RS=Residcntal Subdivisions 
SE=Strcctscapc (Design Standards) 

CIT\' OF ALSTll'i'S 
LISTS 

HG UC RS SE 



139

COM\\O'i NAME 
Scient{fic Name 

OAK, BLACKJACK 
Quercus mari!andica 
OAK,B\;R 
Q11erc11s macrocorpa* 

0-\K, CHlNQUAPll'i 
Quercw) muehlenbergii"' 

OAK,DURAND 
Ouercus sinuata var. sinuata~ 

OAK,LACEY 
Querc111luceJ,i':< 

OAK, LIVE (Coastal) 
Quercus virginiana 

OAK, LIVE (Plat<au) 
Quercu.1,fi1,1·!Jbrmis 
OAK, MEXICA:'i WHITE# 
Quenw pvlymorpha* 

OAK,POST 
Quercussrellata* 

OAK,SHI\ 
Quercus sinuata var. brcviloba 

OAK, SHLMARD RED 
Quercu,1 shumardii 

OAK, TEXAS RED 
Quercus texana 
OAK, VASEY 
Quercus vase1ana 
OLIVE, MEXICA'I # 
Cordia boissieri 

PECAN 
CorJo ilfinninensis 

PERSIMMO'i, COMllON 
Dwspyros 1'irgmia11a 

PERSIMMO'i, TEXAS 
Diospyros texana 

PISTACHE, TEXAS 
Pistacia tnana 

PLUI, MEXICAN 
Prunus mexicana 
REDBCD, MEXICAN 

Legend: CO=Color 
EQ=Evergreen Qualities 
DC - Di:ciduou~ 
FS=Full Sun 
PS= Part Shade 
ST- Shade Tolerant 

co EQ DC FS 

Cercis canadensis var. mexica11a 
REDBlD, TEXAS 
Crrci1 mmulemil' t'rJr lexemis 

RF.TAMA 
Parkmsoma acu!eata 
SWOKE-TREE, AMERICA\ 
Cotinus obol'atus 

MH=Mature Height (Feet) 
MW=:V!ature Width iFeetl 
AN-Available al \urserii:~ 

SS=Significant Shade Provider 
llS=llnderstory 
wv-Wildlifo Value 

TREE CHARACTERIS'I JCS 

PS ST :VIH MW A\ ss 
60 25 

100 50 

60 50 

75 60 

45 25 

60 50 

40 50 

40 35 

75 80 

35 35 

75 40 

40 25 

25 20 

25 15 

100 70 

40 20 

20 10 

20 20 

10 20 

20 15 

JO Ii 

15 ~5 

25 20 

LS WV 

BP=Blackland Prairie t 
EP=Edwards Plateau+ 
DS-Dry (mi,) Sit, 
MS=vtoist(rnesic)lite 
WS=Wet thydricl site 

ECOREGION AND SOIL 
CHARACTERISTICS 

BP EP DS MS WS 

HG=Heritage 
UC= Utilitv Compatible 
RS-Re~i<lenlal SubUi~isiorn 

SR=Streebcapt !Design Standards I 

CITY OF AUSTl'l'S 
LISTS 

HG UC RS SE 



140

CO\IMONMME 
Scientif/C,Vame 

SOAPBERRY 
Sapindus drwnmondii 
SUMAC, EVERGREEN 
Rhufvirem 

SUMAC, FLAMELEAI' 
Rlmslanceolata 

SYCAMORE, A.\IERICA~ 
Pfatu11u.1 occidentali5 

SYCAMORE, \IEXICAN # 
P/atanus mcxicana 
TOOTHACHE TREE 
'/.anth(J.\ylum hirsurwn 

Legend: CO=Color 
EQ=Evergrccn Qualities 
DC:= Dcciduom 
FS-Full Sun 
PS=PartShadc 

ST=ShadcTokrant 

rn fQ nc FS 

VIBURND1, RCSTY BLACKIIAW 
Viburnwnru//du!um 
WAl'[RASH 
Prelearr//oliala 
WAL,UT, ARIZO~A 
J11gfans major 

WAL~UT, EASTERN BLACK 
Juglansnigra 
IVAL~l!T, LITTLE 
.Juglam;microcapra 

WAX .~IYRTLE 
A(1ncacerrfi'ra 
WILLOW, IJESER:l 
Clulops1s lmeam 

WILLOll',BLACK 
Safi:tnigrn 

FOOi NOTES 

tOakt1ee,lm~u,ceptibletooakwilt 

MH=Mature Height (Feet! 
MW=,taturc Width (Feet} 
A.l\=1\vailahleatNur~crics 
SS-Significant Shade Provider 
LIS=Llndcrstory 
WV=Wildlifc Value 

TREE CHARACTERISTICS 

PS ST MH MW AN ss 

JO 30 

10 10 

1) 10 

JO so 

60 40 

15 10 

30 10 

15 15 

50 30 

80 50 

30 30 

15 15 

30 ,o 

30 ,o 

+ The Texas Blackland Prairies and Edwards Plateau ecoregions as defined by Griffith et al (2004) 

rs WV 

BP=Blackland Prairie f 
EP=Edwurds Plateau+ 
DS=Dry \xcric)Sitc 
:\itS-/Vloist(mcsic) Site 
WS=\Vct(hydric)site 

ECOREGIO\ AND SOIL 
CHARACTERISTICS 

RP FP ns MS ws 

HG=Hcritagc 
Lf- \ ltility lompatihlc 
RS=Rcsidcntal Subdivisions 
SE-Strcctscapc {Design Standards) 

CITY OF AlSTNS 
I.ISTS 

Hr. UC RS SE 

Griffith. G.E.. 8!'}ce. S.A., Omernik .J.M .. Com~to~k. J.A. Rogers. M . Harrison. B .. Hatch. SL.and Be1anson, D .. 1004. r.cor~gions of J'e\as {color poster with map. de~criptive text. and photographs 1: Reston. VlrglnLJ. U.S. Geological Survey (map 
sca!cl.2.500,000). 

# ldcntific, trees thfll arc native to Tcxa,. hut fire not known to natnrnlly necnr in the fdwards Plateau nr R111ckland Pramc ernrcgiom. lf thc,c tree, c\i,t nn a ,itc they can he mitigated, hut nnc cannntrcccivc mitigr1tion ~rcdit forpfontmg thc,c ,pccie, 

All [mo. but (]l(l,~ itkutiti~d with~. arc kmmu lu naturally occur 'Aithin cilhcr ur bmh lh~ E<lwanb Plaleau or B!addand Pranic Level llI Ecmegiom, a, ddirwd by GriJlitl1 cl. al. (2004). 

The Austin area is in clo,e proximity to range ~xtems of many >\oody plant species not on thi, list that o~eur to the more arid sl\udme,t. subtropical south, and tl111perate east. In the event an isolated and rare occurence is identified. the tree shnuld b~ 
trea!edasnativeandprotected 

All sutYC} ,;ize non-native, invaai\e woo<ly plants, as identified b: the City of Austin, are rcqulred 10 be shm,n on the tree snrvc: though no rnitigatinn will be required. Thc,c trees include, but may not be llmncd to: Ai/a111/111s a/1issi11w. Tree ofllmcn: 
Alhi:iajuilbrissm. Mimosa: 1Jrousso11et1a papynfmi. Papermulb~riy: Alorus a/ha. Whik mulberry: llaeagm1s anfi11st1/olra. Ru~srnn ohve: J-irmwna s1mpiex. lhmN parasol: Koelreu/ena pamc11/ata. {io!den rain: Lipwrum JPP·. Pnvet; Melia 
a::edarach, Chinabmy; !\1a11dma domcsrica, '.llandina: Phminia spp. Photinia: P!Slacia Lhmemis. Chinese p1stachc: Pyracaruha coccinca. Pyracantha: Tamarfr ,pp .. Salt cedar; Triadica seb//Cra. Chinese tallow; 13mus pumi/a, Siberian elm; Fi1ex 
agnus-ca,tu,. LiJac cha~k 



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

On November 1, 2018, Council approved the sale of items in the City’s storage unit though a public 
auction.  The auction, held on December 15, 2018, did not receive any participants. 
 
The City has been approached by a resale shop downtown to sell the items approved for auction on 
consignment.  She is willing to spill an proceeds made fifty-fifty with the City.  Attached to this 
statement is a list of items housed in the City’s storage unit. 
 
Additionally, the City has had conversations with the Hays County Office of Emergency Management 
about taking possession of the cots, bedding, diapers, cribs, and hygiene kits acquired by the City in 
2017.  They would store these items at their facilities and have them available should any need arise 
in Hays County (including in Wimberley).  We would also look to turn over the same items being 
stored at Blue Hole Park as well. 
 
 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

AGENDA ITEM: Surplus 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

141



 

 

The City Administrator recommends Council declare the items listed as surplus and agree to sell 
them on consignment.  Additionally, the City Administrator recommends providing Hays County 
with the surplus cots and equipment for storage at their facilities, making them available for use 
throughout the County. 

 

 

 

- Storage Unit Inventory 
- Surplus Cots and Equipment Inventory 
- Surplus Approval Form 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

ATTACHEMENTS 

  

142



143

1 large wooden door 

Storage Unit Inventory 

October 26, 2018 

3 Rolls of Silt Fence, length unknown 

1 Bicycle 

lTool Box, Miscellaneous tools, used for traffic counters 

1 obsolete portable drill, batteries won't charge 

1 Fellows Shredder, broken 

1 light meter 

1 conference table (4' x 8' Formica) 

1 four drawer file cabinet 

1 wooden shelving unit 
2 Floor fans 

2 large wet vacs 

1 well monitoring system, in cooler box 

1 broken back pack blower (Could be repaired) 

2 portable traffic counter stands 

3 Street Counters, need upgrade 

1 Tri-level computer work station, in box 

1 In-car video equip (junk) 

11 Metal cabinets, odd sizes 

3 large generators (3kw) 

1 7' credenza 

1 small refrigerator 



144

1 2dr storage cabinet 

1 City Hall prop display 

3 miscellaneous chairs 

1 electronics stand 



145

Fe~Surplus Property Program 
San Antonio 

DELIVERY ORDER 

Date: 
··7-2 '1-- f 7 Account Number: Delivery Order: D Q Q 8 8 95 

:~~m: FEDE;~'~::~L~1:~~-;~R~1 
Please Deliver To: /J1t1 ·. t //ou it 
ITEM ID# DESCRIPTION UNIT COST QTY TOTAL 

2. 

·- 0., 

6, 6\7-'2'?ll-i..t -bt.O 

0 Y7 - 2t;I\- 49 -- u8~ 
D . l l t"J 17- 2'71 ·- 48 .. , 627 
q, 

r .. o\7- 1.,444..L\o- o 

ALL PROPERTY MUST BE PLACED IN USE WITHIN 12 MONTHS FOR COMPLETE INFORMATION READ THE CERTIFICATIONS AND AGREEMENTS ON THE REVERSE SIDE OF THIS DOCUMENT 

NOTICE: The property listed here on is subject to the appropriate certifications and agreements set forth below and on the reverse side of this document. This property is being accrued exclusively for the below listed purpose and the certifications and agreements printed on the back of this document are affirmed. , 

-

SIGNATURE: X -'-------- --------------- ----------- --- ---------- -------- TITLE: X . -- --- ------------- -- ------------- ------- ---. 



City of Wimberley 
 

DEPARTMENT FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT SURPLUS 
 
 
DEPARTMENT:       DATE:         
       
     FIXED ASSET           RECOMMENDED  
      ITEM   TAG #    SERIAL NUMBER   CONDITION (1)   DISPOSITION (2) 

   
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
 
 
 
(1) Useable as is   (2) Discard      

Obsolete    Auction/Sell      ______________________________ 
Repairable    Store for Future Use       Mayor 

 Beyond Repair  

146



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

Pedernales Electric Cooperative, Inc. (PEC) is requesting a variance under Sec. 4.07.006 (d) of the 
Code of Ordinances which allows for a Special exception variance to be approved when it’s found 
that: 
 

i. The probable effect the variance will have upon traffic conditions and upon the public 
health, safety, convenience, and welfare of the community; 

 
ii. The surrounding property will not be substantially or permanently impaired or 

diminished; 
 

iii. The variance will not confer upon the applicant a special right or privilege not commonly 
shared or available to the owners of similar and surrounding property; 

 
iv. The applicant has not created the hardship from which relief is sought; 

 
v. The hardship from which relief is sought is not solely of an economic nature; 

 
vi. The variance is not contrary to the public interest; 

 
vii. Due to special conditions, the literal enforcement of this article would result in an 

unnecessary hardship; and 
 
viii. In granting the variance, the spirit of this article is observed and substantial justice is done. 

 
Specifically, PEC is requesting a variance from Sec. 4.07.006, which states: 
 

- “Any fence that faces a street or road within the incorporated limits of the city and is more 
than 4 feet in height: (1) Shall have a solid-to-void ratio no greater than 1:8 (12.5%)…” 

 
PEC is requesting the ability to construct an eight-foot decorative concrete fence around their 
substation at 107 FM 2325.  National Electric Safety Code (NESC) requires substations to have a fence 
with a height not less than 7 foot. 
 

AGENDA ITEM: PEC Variance Request - Fence 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

147



 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☒ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $     

Current Estimate:                 $   

Amount Under/Over Budget: $    

 

 
The City Administrator recommends approval of this item. 
 
 

 
- PEC Variance Application 
- PEC Variance Location - Map 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

ATTACHMENTS 

  

148



149

Application for Variance Page J of5 

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

APPLICATION DATE: ______ FILE NO.~-----

HEARING DATE: ____ PLANNING AREA: _______ ZONING:. ____ _ 

VARIANCEFEES:$. ____ DATEPAID: __ _,RECEIVEDBY: ______ _ 

City of Wimberley 
APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE 

OWNER/AGENT INFORMATION 
(Olf''rutivt 

J. Owner'sName: Pedrt:nule,C El1cfr(c HomePhone: ( ) ______ _ 
Business Phone:( ) ? 3 tZf';ff ,fll,f 
Cell Phone: ( ) 8312 22t1 /IIS-Q 
Fax: ( ) 

Current Mailing . -------
Address: P. tt, llru: I City Js'flAipJo C/f1 State TK Zip 
Email: B Y«t1 , tt~r //11 e (5> Pu;/ , / t!lm , r,;;.. , 

( r.ylt l,V1 l.ft'II) 
2. Agent's Name: fVJ)er:f a,. C<uaH PrtJvo.1 Business Phone: (t11) _2_7 __ 7 ___ """9_2_.r.. __ ~_-_ 

(Musl be occomponied f,y letter of nulhorizntion from owner) Cell: (r, "-=:r..;...,,..._l -=-1...,,l.:...olf'---_ 

7.Pllf 

Current Mailing . 
Address: ,,0-1 Ae Me Otin City £vl~.n 
Email: i<w/1.S~I} I§> C'1,Z(;r:,teftd«•Crzaz 

Stnte Ve Zip 71,?up 

PROJECT DATA 

1. Property ID#: R ______ {Appeors on your Tax Slotement} Present Zoning: _____ _ 

Street Address of Project: I II 7 FM 2326 Wimberley, Texas 78676 
(Note: If you do not hove on assigned street address, please coll 5 I 2-393~2l 60 Directions to Project} 

' 
Subdivision: _______ Lot:_ Block: __ Recorded in Vol. __ Page __ _ 

2. IS PROPERTY IN AN OVERLAY DISTRICT? YES __ NO __ UNKNOWN __ 
TYPE OF OVERLAY ZONE(S) (if applicable). ___________ _ 



150

Application for Variance Page 2 of5 

Project Data (Continued) 

3. FLOOD PLAIN (What, if any, flood zone does your property Occupy?): ______ _ 

4. WASTEWATER SYSTEM: ( ) Septic; ( ) Aqua Utility; ( ) GBRA 
HAYS COUNTY SEPTIC PERMIT NUMBER (if applicable): ,kj/"1 

5. Directions to your Project: __ 6 ........ r .... ~ .... m ___ ___,t,...,,{ ___ 1"""'2---.....,e;~d-.... t ... '<,,-.... ~ ..... £ :J.___--'--t:1_._{)_.__ ..... E.___._M'-'--2=3..,.Z ... :.G.-.,, 

4-r Hv Ctfc h <K'. e~ FM Z ! 25 ,1nd 

Please clearly mark your property so it is easily identifiable. 

SPECIFIC SECTIONS OF ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 2001-010 FOR WHICH A 
VARIANCE IS REQUESTED: 

t:6•a l.l" la lu(M,t: ,0,11 a«k< 4 J(zli'1 te Wt/ rAtt', llftANNHr fJ.u1 ,~,, . .,, ., 

ff:al S:6aft C</c.Jc, 4 l.v;//J/;:;z 2ecm✓·1 if At:,r,1-'·e.t: ;t-,1,,,r,,, 4 fJ. 
7 

1/ /11 A~,-,.1,,;.,. 
REASON FOR NEED OF VARIANCE (Attach separate sheet if necessary) 

tl«tl:ic £k'-lf<t{r1nf h IV< lltj&-kt:lt:t.5u ,l#fri~ lib;t.l ta/ "f'"¢""""h 

J.v(f!,ih tbt:oz, fl,:,. fM /(/g-l-/g~,1/ .£1~£1rU S, ✓,.t-, C,d.- W'~s.r). -bnus 
V ~ ) 



151

Application for Variance Page 3 of 5 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF EXISTING 
Subdivision Plat Notes, Deed Restrictions Restrictive Covenants 

and/or Zoning Conditional Use Permits 

I, the Applicant herein, have checked tJ1e subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, 
restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional use pennits prohibiting certain uses and/or 
requiring certain development restrictions (for example, height, access, screening) on the 
property for which a variance is now being considered on my behalf. 

If a conflict should result with the request I am submitting to the City of Wimberley due 
to subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or which do not confonn 
with the City ordinances, it will be my responsibility to resolve it. I also acknowledge that I 
understand the implications of use and/or development restrictions that are a result of subdivision 
plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or zoning ordinances. 

I understand that if requested, I must provide copies of any and all subdivision plat 
notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional use permit information, 
which mny apply to this property. 

Date:. __________ _ APPLICANT _________ _ 

SIGNATURE _________ _ 

WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date:. __________ _ AGENT 

SIGNATURE _________ _ 

SITE INSPECTION AUTHORIZATION 

Applicant/owner, or Applicant's authorized agent, hereby authorizes the City of Wimberley 
Board of Adjustment Members and City representatives to visit and inspect the property for 
which this application is being submitted. 

Date:. __ t/~,'dt-=-/2..::...~"',/!_/...;.'f ___ _ APPLICANT---t,B...::;~;;.::V..:.I_ L=t?-=C..&;.1.h.ft.::::-4'-'(e,_6:;:_;;;,( ___.:;0:;..t:..:;'r...:., ... ( 1-rr,. .f /t!:7/°;t, . .-r J ~ 

SIGNATURE____...,,~-=.n._.....~ -~--~ -"-'"1:c?"""'~ ....... ~....;...._---

WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date: __________ _ AGENT 

SIGNATURE _________ _ 



152

Application for Variance Page 3 of 5 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF EXISTING 
Subdivision Plat Notes, Deed Restrictions Restrictive Covenants 

and/or Zoning Conditional Use Permits 

I, the Applicant herein, have checked the subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, 
restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional use pennits prohibiting certain uses and/or 
requiring certain development restrictions (for example, height, access, screening) on the 
property for which a variance is now being considered on my behalf. 

If a conflict should r~sult with the request I am submitting to the City of Wimberley due 
to subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or which do not confonn 
with the City ordinances, it will be my responsibility to resolve it. I also acknowledge that I 
understand the impJications of use and/or development restrictions that are a result of subdivision 
plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or zoning ordinances. 

I understand that if requested, I must provide copies of any and all subdivision plat 
notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional use pennit information, 
which may apply to this property. 

Date: ·----------- APPLICANT _________ _ 

SIGNATURE _________ _ 

WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date: ·----------- AGENT 

SIGNATURE _________ _ 

SITE INSPECTION AUTHORIZATION 

Applicant/owner, or Applicant's authorized agent, hereby authorizes the City of Wimberley 
Board of Adjustment Members and City representatives to visit and inspect the property for 
which this application is being submitted. 

Date: __________ _ APPLICANT __________ _ 

SIGNATURE _________ _ 

WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date: ----------- AGENT 

SIGNATURE __________ _ 



153

Application for Variance Page 5 of S 
5. The property involved is otherwise in compliance with all other applicable City 
ordinances, rules and regulations; and 

6. The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this 
ordinance. 

Special Circumstances: 

SUBMITIAL VERJFICATION AND/OR WAIVER OF APPEARANCE 

My signature attests to the feet thnt the attached application package is complete end accurate to 
the best of my knowledge. I understand that City review of this Application is dependent upon 
the accuracy of the information provided nnd that any inaccurate or inadequate information 
provided by me, my firm, or agent, may delay the review of the Application. 

Dnte:._+7'~/4""""'~~/ .......... l"'f __ _ 

WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date: ----------

APPLICANT ?a vi L&:~-f.e 

SIGNATURE ~ ~ 

AGENT 

SIGNATURE ------------



154



155



156



City of Austin, Comal County, Texas Parks & Wildlife, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P, USGS, EPA, USDA

City of Wimberley Web Map

base zoning map 200ft

157

City Admin
Polygonal Line



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

The City was approached by residents along Rocky Springs Road to evaluate the condition of the 
pavement and drainage in their neighborhood.  Working with the Hays County Transportation 
Department, the City has put together a project for the necessary repairs. 
 
The City, if approved, will utilize its Interlocal Agreement with Hays County for this project.  
Estimated costs are $36,337.  The project includes pavement repair and the replacement of a drainage 
culvert. 
 

FY 2019 Budget  
 Maintenance Capital  
Budgeted $  80,000 $ 140,000  
Spent to Date $  40,000 $   64,871  
Balance $  40,000 $   75,129  
    

There are sufficient funds remaining in the FY 2019 Adopted Budget for this project. 
 
 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Road Repair – Rocky Springs Road 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

158



Budgeted Item ☒ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☐ 

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate: $ 36,337.00 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

The City Administrator recommends utilizing the City’s Interlocal Agreement with Hays County to 
provide road maintenance/repairs on Rocky Springs Road for an amount not to exceed $36,337.00. 

− Interlocal Agreement
− Hays County Estimate – Rocky Springs Road

FINANCIAL 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

159



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR

ROADWAY REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE

This Interlocal Agreement for Roadway Repair and Maintenance ("Agreement") is hereby entered

into by and between the Village of Wimberley, Texas, a Type A general-law municipality,
hereinafter referred to as the "City," and the County of Hays, a political subdivision of the State of

Texas, hereinafter referred to as the "County".

ARTICLE I.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, County and City desire to provide safe and well maintained roads, streets, alleys
and rights-of-way for the use and benefit of the public and future generations; and

WHEREAS, the County and the City desire to cooperate in the maintenance and repair of

certain roads, streets, alleys and rights-of-way within the County and City; and

WHEREAS, the County and the City desire to allocate by mutual agreement the responsibilities
for governmental functions and services which are or may become necessary in providing safe and well

maintained roads, streets, alleys and rights-of-way that are of consistent quality of pavement along the

whole length of roads that are part of the County or City Road System, even those County Roads

that lie within the City limits (See Texas Attorney General Opinions WW-1401, H-1018 and H-

1019); and

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act (Chapter 791, Texas Government Code) (the
Act") empowers the Parties to contract with each other in the performance of governmental
functions; and

WHEREAS, road and street maintenance are governmental functions within the meaning of the

Act; and

WHEREAS, the City and the County are "local governments" within the meaning of the Act;
and

WHEREAS, the City and the County each itself has the authority under Texas law to perform
such road and street maintenance, as required by the Act; and

WHEREAS, specifically section 791.032 permits, with the approval of the governing body
of a municipality, a county to enter into an interlocal contract with the municipality to finance Che

construction, improvement, maintenance, or repair of streets or alleys in the municipality, including
portions of the municipality's streets or alleys thaC are not an integral part of or a connecting link to

other roads or highways; and

WHEREAS, section 251.012 of the Texas Transportation Code expressly allows a

commissioners court of a county to spend county money to finance the construction, improvement,
maintenance or repair of a street or alley; and further subsection (b)(3) permits that the county work

may be done or financed by the county as an independent contractor with the municipality; and

160



WHEREAS, Hays County has budgeted funds sufficient for general maintenance of roads in the

County Road System that lie inside the City limits; and

WHEREAS, the total expenditure of municipal funds under this Agreement is expected to be

less than $50,000, exempting the City from compliance with the competitive bid procedures of

chapter 252 of the Local Government Code.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained

herein, as well as other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is

hereby acknowledged, both the City and the County agree as follows:

ARTICLE II.

MAINTENANCE SERVICES

2.1 Definition.

The "Maintenance Services" to be provided by the County to the City hereunder are services, including,
the maintenance and repair of asphalt and pavement of the streets and roads and corresponding
maintenance and repair to the subsurface and surface of roads and streets as designated herein, as

appropriate to Hays County and as specifically agreed by and between the City and the County, namely,
those services specified herein.

2.2 Term.

a. Unless terminated as provided herein, the Initial Term of this Agreement will commence on the

date of execution by the last party to sign the Agreement (hereinafter the "Effective Date"). The

Initial Term shall be for one (1) year, commensurate with the fiscal year of Che City. In the event thaC

the City and County execute this Agreement after the beginning of the City's fiscal year, the Initial Term

shall be from the Effective Date until the end of the City's fiscal year.

b. This Agreement shall automatically renew for succeeding one-year Renewal Terms,

commensurate with the City's corresponding fiscal year, unless terminated by either party as provided
for in Article N.

2.3 Current Funds.

Funding from each party for the performance of this Agreement will be provided from current revenues

available to the parties. Further, the City assures the County that funds are available (and, unless

written notice is otherwise provided by the City, will continue to be available) to reimburse the

County, as the City is obligated to do under the terms of this Agreement. After written notice from

Che City that no City funds are available or if Chis Agreement is terminated in a budget year, the City
shall not be obligated to reimburse the County for the cost of any labor or materials related to any
maintenance or repair of any County Road or City Road incurred by the County after its receipt of

the written notice from the City, unless the project was already undertaken at the time of the written

notice.

2.4 Maintenance Services.

a. County Road System Roadways. In regard to all roads within the City limits that are

identified by the County as roads that are part of or integral to the County Road System (hereinafter
County Roads"), and as more particularly identified on Exhibit "A", attached and incorporated by
reference, the Parties agree as follows:

161



1. County shall be responsible for providing the labor and equipment required for maintenance

and repair of County Roads.

2. City agrees Co pay for all actual material costs related Co the maintenance and repairs of

County Roads.

3. City may request the maintenance and repair of specific County Roads, but County shall,
with or without a request by City, (i) identify County Roads that are in need of maintenance

and repair, (ii) provide 30 days prior written notice to City of maintenance and repair that

County intends to perform on County Roads, and (iii) unless City objects to the maintenance

and repair within ten (10) days of receiving notice under this Section, maintain and repair all

County Roads in a similar fashion and to a similar quality as is customarily performed on

other county roads within Hays County.

4. 1f City desires that a specific County Road be maintained, repaired, or upgraded to a higher
quality or higher standard than is customarily performed by County on other county roads

within Hays County, City may, at no expense to County, contract with a third party for the

maintenance, repair, and/or upgrade of that specific County Road. In the alternative, the City
may request the County to perform the maintenance, repair, and/or upgrade of that specific
County Road to the specifications desired by City, if County has the resources available to

perform to those specifications.

5. If City requests that County perform the maintenance, repair, and/or upgrade of a specific
County Road trader subsection 2.4(a).3 of this Agreement, County shall provide an estimate

to City for the proposed work, and the parties shall follow the procedures set forth for City
Roads, below. County's estimate trader this section shall account for the cost of materials it

would take to maintain, repair, and/or upgrade that specific County Road to the county

standard, plus the reasonable cost of materials, labor, and equipment it would take to

maintain, repair, and/or upgrade that specific County Road to a higher quality or higher
standard than is customarily performed by County on other county roads within Hays
County.

b. City Roadways. In regard to all roads within the City limits of that are NOT identified by
County as roads that are part of or integral to the County Road System (hereinafter "City Roads"), the

parties agree as follows:

1. County shall, at the request of City, provide City with a written estimate and proposed Start

Date for the maintenance, repair, and/or upgrade of specific City Roads. The written estimate

shall include reasonable compensation for County's labor, equipment, and material costs

associated with the maintenance, repair, and/or upgrade of any specific City Road to the

standards as specified by the City.

2. City shall, within thirty (30) days' receipt of a written estimate from County, request that

County (i) perform the maintenance, repair, and/or upgrade of that specific City Road as

estimated by County, or (ii) inform the Cotmty that the City desires to wait until a later date

upon which the County can provide City with a new estimate and available start date for that

specific City Road. City may, at any time, contract with a third party for the maintenance,

3

162



repair and/or upgrade of any City Road.

3. If City requests that County perform maintenance, repairs, and/or upgrades under subsection

2.4(a).3, above, County shall commence performance of the maintenance, repair, and/or

upgrade within ten (10) days of the proposed Start Date cited in subsection 2.4(b).1, above. If

City waits for a period longer than thirty (30) days to respond to County's written estimate, or

if City requests that County acC in accordance with 2.4(a).3, above, the written estimate

provided by County shall be considered expired and void unless otherwise indicated or

extended in writing by County.

ARTICLE III.

PAYMENT

3.1 Payment.
All invoices related to Maintenance Services for County Roads and City Roads shall be provided by
County on a monthly basis for all costs that are the obligation of the City of under Chis Agreement. The

City shall pay said invoices no later than thirty (30) days after receipt.

ARTICLE IV.

TERMINATION

4.1 Termination.

This Agreement maybe terminated by either party, for any reason whatsoever, by providing sixty (60)

days' written notice to the non-terminating party. If, upon providing or receiving notice of termination

under this Section, County has begun performance of Maintenance Services or upgrade of any

roadway under this Agreement, County shall complete the work on that specific roadway and City
shall pay, as may be required by the terns of this Agreement, for the completion of work on that

specific roadway before either party is released from the terms and obligations of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V.

MISCELLANEOUS

5.1. Notice.

Any notice required or permitted to be given by either party under the terms of this Agreement shall be

deemed given, whether or not received, three (3) days after it is deposited in the United States mail,

postage prepaid, certified mail with return receipt requested, to the address for notice set forth below, or

the last address for notice which the sender has for the recipient at the time the notice is sent, with a

copy sent on the same day by facsimile, or on the date the notice is delivered if hand delivered, with a

written acknowledgment of receipt obtained.

Addresses for notice are as follows, unless expressly changed by the parties in writing:

a. Notices sent pursuant to this Agreement may be delivered or sent to the CITY at the

following address:

Mr. Don Ferguson, Village Administrator (or his successors in office)
Village of Wimberley
P.O. Box 2027

Wimberley, TX 78676

4

163



b. Notices sent pursuant to this Agreement may be delivered or sent to the COUNTY at

the following address:

Commissioner Will Conley (or his successors in office)
P.O. Box 2085

Wimberley, Texas 78676

a To be effective, a copy of any notices sent to the COUNTY shall be sent to the

Special Counsel's Office at the following address:

Mark Driscol Kennedy (or his successors in office)
A.D.A. -- Special Counsel

Hays County, Texas

111 E. San Antonio, Suite 204

San Marcos, TX 78666

d. To be effective, a copy of any notice sent to the CITY shall be sent to the CITY

Attorney at the following address:

Patty L. Akers (or her successors in office)
Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP

816 Congress Ave., Suite 1700

Austin, TX 78701

5.2 Cooperation, Reservation of Riehts•

The City and County agree to cooperate with each other, in good faith, at all times during the term

hereof in order to achieve the purposes and intent of this Agreement. The Parties agree to do all acts and

things and to execute and deliver such further written instruments, as may be from time to time

reasonably required to carry out the purposes and the provisions of this Agreement. Nothing in this

Agreement shall be constnred to interfere with the City's and County's legal right to autonomously
maintain and repair roads that have been identified as part of each entity's respective road system,

particularly if the condition of said roads, in the Party's opinion, poses a safety or mobility concern.

5.3 EntireA_ereement: Amendments.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties respecting the subject matter hereof,
and supersedes all prior understandings and agreements between the parties regarding such matters. This

Agreement may not be altered, amended, or modified except in writing signed by all parties to this

Agreement. No official, agent, employee, or representative of either the County or the City has the

authority to alter, amend, or modify the terms of this Agreement, except in accordance with express

authority as maybe respectively granted by either the County Commissioners Court or the City Council.

5.4 Interpretation.
The parties acknowledge and confirm that this Agreement has been entered into pursuant to the

authority granted under the Interlocal Cooperation Act. All terms and provisions hereof are to be

construed and interpreted consistently with that Act.

5

164



165



166



EXHIBIT "A"

Roads designated as County Roads

Located within the Village of Wimberley

Carney Lane

Cypress Creek Road

Flite Acres Road

FM 1492

Fulton Ranch Road

Green Acres Road

River Road

Saddleridge Drive

Wayside Drive

167



168



City of Wimberleymberley
f ` 

s-    

1yL t ' - ''`
221 5[ilhvatStillwater, P.O. Box 2027, Wimberley, Texas, 78676

i 1 ,   rt Phone: (512) 847-0025 - Fax: (512) 847 -0422

September 2, 2010

County Judge Elizabeth Sumter
County of Hays
111 E. San Antonio Street, Suite 300
San Marcos, Texas 78666

RE: Amendment to Roadway Repair and Maintenance Interlocal Agreement

Dear Judge Sumter:

I am writing this letter to advise you and members of the Hays County Commissioners Court that on
September 2, 2010 the Wimberley City Council voted to approve the enclosed amendment to the
City of Wimberley — Hays County Interlocal Agreement For Roadway Repair And Maintenance.

Please be advised that the above referenced amendment,  coupled with the recent City Council
action on the County's request to improve Flite Acres Road, shall serve as evidence of the City's
consent to proceed with the proposed asphalt overlay of that portion of Flite Acres Road located
within the city limits, at no cost to the City.

On behalf of the City of Wimberley,  I would like to thank you and members of the Court for
approaching the City with this project. Please let me know if you have any questions or need further
information.

Sincer

Don Fergu
City Administra or

169



FIRST AMENDMENT TO

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR ROADWAY REPAIR

tTl4s 1Q'   en ent to Interlocal Agreement for the Roadway Repair ( "Amendment ") is made this9,, 0-(1) 
day of

Let, 2and between Hays County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (hereinafter referred to
as "County"), and in the City of Wirnberley, Texas (hereinafter referred to as "City ").  The above -cited parties are
collectively referred to as "the parties to this Agreement" or "the parties."

Section 2.4 of the Agreement shall be amended as follows  (words steieleen through represent deletions and
underlined words represent additions):

County Road System Roadways.  In regard to all roads within the City limits  ... that are identified by County as
roads that are part of or integral to the County Road System... the Parties agree as follows:

1.   County shall be responsible for providing the labor and equipment required for maintenance and
repair of ... County Roads.

2.   City-agrees to pay for all actual material costs related to the maintenance and - repairs of County
Reads.  City shall. unless otherwise approved by the Hays County Commissioners Court. contribute
funding toward the materials for reconstruction and resurfacing of the portion(s) of County Roads that
lie within the corporate limits.   Whether or not City determines to contribute funding toward a
project. the City may. after request by County, consent to the County's reconstruction and resurfacing
of County Roads that lie within the corporate limits.  If City consents but does not contribute funding
toward a project.  then County shall bear the costs of materials if and when it performs the
reconstruction and resurfacing.

3.   unchanged)
4.   unchanged)
5.   If City requests that County perform the reconstruction.  resurfacing and /or upgrade of a specific  ...

County Road under ... this Agreement and the hays County Commissioners Court has not approved
its own payment of all project costs as cited in Section b, above, County shall provide an estimate to
City for the proposed reconstruction, resurfacing and /or upgrade work, and the parties shall follow the
procedures set forth for City Roads, below.  County's estimate under this section shall account for the
cost of materials it would take to reconstruct. resurface, and/or upgrade that specific ... County Road
to the county standard, plus the reasonable cost of materials, labor, and equipment it would take to
reconstruct.  resurface,  and/or upgrade that specific  ...  County Road to a higher quality or higher
standard than is customarily performed by County on other county roads within Hays County.

EXCEPT FOR TI-IE ABOVE MODIFICATIONS,  ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF TI -IE
AGREEMENT SI-IALL REMAIN UNCHANGED,  UNLESS PROPERLY MODIFIED BY SUBSEQUENT
AMENDMENT UNDER THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT.

Ii
t ,5Eat rim. d

This 1" Amendment to Interlocal Agreo for the R' adYay Repair is hereby executed this the day of
Au-prat; 2010, as is evidenced by the actilhorizedtignaturesfof the Parties, below.

5

CITY kz U-' CO

a7 dir
Tie?thItttlrY, MAYOR o ,   WimbeJrflg +!'    i rre1tt y,    i

8013 FGoCtE P LIZ UMTE

prat
sEAL 6!r'I' BAYS JUDGE

ATTEST:  (`,    Q5 k lit,a, ATTEST:   i -  I / L Q
CITY CLERK

i o  /   
DA FRITSCHE

4t  / YS COUNTY CLERK
cY

teinc 4e,
170



ROAD NAME TIME OPERATOR EXPENSES EQUIP USAGE EXPENSES MATERIALS EXPENSES
LABOR & FUEL

ROCKY SPRINGS 6 DAYS 6 MAN CREW $9,936 6 VEHICLES $13,248
300'X24' $34.50/HR/MAN HRS @ $46/HRS
RECLAIM ANND ADD BASE,PROCESS, FLEX BASE $2,446
FINISH,& PAVE 200 TONS @ $12.23/TN
REPLACE CULVERT 1 DAYS 11 MAN PAVING CREW $3,795 PAVING EQUIPMENT $2,580 100 GALS @ $3/GAL $300

$34.50/HR/MAN 4HRS @ $645/HR #3 ROCK
15 TONS @ $18/TN $270

#4ROCK
12 TONS @ $17/TN $204

PAVING OIL
700 GALS @ $3/GAL $2,100

3 DESIGN II 20' @ $15/ft $900
2 BANDS @ $28.94/pc $58 PROJECT COST

$13,731 $15,828 $6,278 $35,837

ADMINISTRATIVE COST
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSING FEE $500 $500

TOTAL COST
$36,337

171



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

As a result of the 2015 Memorial Day Flood, the City originally had ten (10) properties which qualified 
for assistance from FEMA’s Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP).  The program provided for 
buyouts or elevations of the properties.  Of the 10 qualifying properties, four (4) were to be bought 
out and six (6) were to be elevated. 
 
As the project currently stands, there are five (5) properties which still qualify.  The others have 
either been sold, already repaired, or did not meet eligibility requirements. 
 
In September 2018, Council approved spending $4,250 to have the required surveys completed.  The 
surveys have been completed, but the City is required by the HMGP project to pay the full invoice of 
$13,380.  After this has been paid the City can seek reimbursement for 75% of the costs ($10,035).  
Once reimbursed, the City will have only paid $3,345, $905 less than originally thought.   
 
 
 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: HMGP Elevation Surveys 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

172



Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☒ 

Not Applicable ☐  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $    4,250.00 

Current Estimate:                 $  13,380.00 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $    9,130.00

 

 

The City Administrator recommends approval of this item. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

173



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

The City is completing the General Land Office Application for State Land Use Lease.  The filing fee for 
this application is $350.  The completion of this application is one of the conditions for a Favorable 
Finding from the TWDB’s Environmental Review.  The application is for a ten-year easement/lease 
for the installation of the wastewater line under Cypress Creek.  No money will be due until invoiced 
from the GLO. 
 
For consideration is Councils approval of an expenditure for $2,350 related to the GLO application.     
 
 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 2,350.00 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

 

 

The City Administrator recommends approval of this item. 

AGENDA ITEM: GLO Land Use Application Fees 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

174



 

 
AGENDA FORM 

 

Friends of Blue Hole has completed raising funds for the canopy over the Blue Hole Regional Park 
playscape. In July 2017, Council voted unanimously to support of this FOBH project. FOBH is asking 
for support to use their raised funds to complete the project. This support would include waiving all 
City permit fees and accepting contractor, design, and project proposal from FOBH. All contractors 
met on site with FOBH Executive Director Susan Nenney and Parks Director Rebecca Manning. 
Completion of this project will be done with City staff oversight. 

 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $  

Current Estimate:                 $  

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

     

 

Staff recommends to approve this item. 

AGENDA ITEM: Friends of Blue Hole’s Playscape Shade 
Canopy Project 

SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca Manning 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

175



176



177



178



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

The property owner at 801 Wayside Drive, Carl Leinnewebber, has requested that his property of 
approximately 90 acres be disannexed under Sec. 43.144 of the Texas Local Government Code.  Sec. 
43.144 reads as follows: 
 
Sec. 43.144.  DISANNEXATION OF SPARSELY POPULATED AREA IN GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY.   
(a) The mayor and governing body of a general-law municipality by ordinance may discontinue an 

area as a part of the municipality if: 
(1) the area consists of at least 10 acres contiguous to the municipality; and 
(2) the area: 

(A) is uninhabited; or 
(B) contains fewer than one occupied residence or business structure for every two 

acres and fewer than three occupied residences or business structures on any 
one acre. 

(b) On adoption of the ordinance, the mayor shall enter in the minutes or records of the governing 
body an order discontinuing the area.  The area ceases to be a part of the municipality on the date 
of the entry of the order. 

 
 
 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☒ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Disannexation – 801 Wayside Drive 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: April 15, 2019 

MEETING DATE: April 18, 2019 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

179



Budgeted Item ☐

Non-budgeted Item ☐

Not Applicable ☒

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

− 801 Wayside Drive Disannexation Request
− Ordinance No. 2019-10
− City Limits Map

FINANCIAL 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

180



April 3, 2019 

Mr. Shawn Cox, MPA 

City Administrator 

City of Wimberley 

PO Box 2027 

Wimberley TX 78676 

Dear Mr. Cox, 

I am requesting that my property on Wayside Dr. be de-annexed from the City of Wimberley. 

This property consist of 90 acres of farm and grazing land with 2 occupied dwellings that is contiguous 

to the City of Wimberley. It is located 2.7 miles west of Downtown Wimberley, It is the most western 

part of the city limits 

My property meets the test laid out in the Texas Local Government Code Section 43.144. 

As requested I have enclosed a survey of my land including survey field notes. 

Please let me know if there is any further information that you need 

Sincerely. 

Carl Leinneweber 

PO Box 1983 

Wimberley TX 78676 

512-748-7932

512-748-7937

nleinneweber@yahoo.com 

181



EXHIBIT 'AH

Doc Bk Vol Pg 
02024972 OPR 2063 884 

FIELP NOTES.DESCRIBJN(.3 1.95 ACRES O LAND, MORE OR LESS, OUT. OF THE 
JAMES HUGHES SURVEY No. 12, BEING A ORTiON OF THAT 318.88 ACRE 

'TRACT Of LAND DESCRIBE@ANO RECO ED IN VOLUME 169, PAGE 139, HAYS 
COUNlY DEED RECORDS. AND SAID 1.95 CRES BEING THAT SAME TRACT OF 
LAND CALLED 2.00 ACRES, AS DESCF;UB AND RECORDED lN VOLUME-448, 
PAGE 3,.HAYS COUNTY DEED RECORDS; AVE AND EXCEPT THAT 0.021 ACRE 
TRACT AS DESCRJBED AND RECORDED I VOLUME 1259 1 PAGE 537, HAYS 
COUNTY OFF1CIAL PUBLIC RECORDS AN SAID 1.95 ACRES BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES A D BOUNDS AS FOLLOW; 

BEGINNING at an iron pin with an aluminum ap found 1 on the North line of the afore 
mentioned JAMES HUGHES SURVEY No. 1 , said Iron pin beru:s N 591:1_50'-00" E,.a 
distance of 364.37 feet from the record North est comer of the afore mentioned 2.00 
acre tract, the repord Northeast comer of a 4 99 acre tract as described and recorded 
in Volume 309, Page 732, ·Hays County Deed Records, -and the record Northeast comer 
of a 50 foot wide Road Easement as describe and recorded Jn Volume 378, Page 410, 
Hays County Deed Records, sald iron pin wi an aluminum cap found being the 
Northeast comer of the herein described pafi J and the POINT OF BEGINNING for this 
description; 

' . 

THENCE, s 02°-16'-11" E, a distance of 237. 9 feet to an iron pln with an aluminum 
cap found, for the Southeast corner of the he In described parcel; 

. . . 

THENCE. s 89°-60'-00" W1 ·a distance of 364. 7 feet to an iron pin with.an aJumfnum 
cap fourn;f at the base of a wood fence post o an East line of the afore mentioned . 
49.99 acre tract, also being on the East tine o the afore mentioned 50 foot wide Road 
Easement; 

THENCE, with the East line of i.he 49.99 acre ct, the East Une of .the said 50 foot wide

Ro.ad· Easement. N 02g-16'-1111 W, a distance of 211.61 feet to a ½" Iron pin found nea·r 
the base· of a wood fence post, on the South ght-of .. way line of County Road 179., 
locally known as Wayside Drive, for the Sou west comer of ttiat 0.021 acre tract of · 
land conveyed to Hays County, as described nd recprded in Volume 1259, Pag� 537, 
Hays County Official Public Records f9r the ost Weste.._i:IY Northwest comer of the· 
herein described parcel; 

. . 

THENCE with the South line of Wayside Drlv , along a curve io the left haying a central 
angle of 10"-21'-49•, a.radius of 510.00 �et, narc length of92..25 feet and a chord that 
bears N 73°-17'-0ZS E dfstani;:e of 92.15 feet a½" iron pin with a pfastlo cap set on · 
the North IIne of the afore mentloned 2.00 ac s, being the most Northerly Northwest 

. com�r of the hef!3ln describeq parcel; 

THENCE,· N 89°-50'-00" E, a distance of 274. feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING 
containing 1.95 acres of land, more or less. S rveyed November 61 2000. These field 
nqtes accompany a µ·lat, job number 001104.· The record South fine of this par�I was 
used as a bas.is for bearing and the actual be rings and measurements of this survey 
vary slightly from those of record In Volume. 8, Page 3, -Hays County DE?ed Records. 

Page one or one 
Wayslde186.5,fld 
001104 cb 

Tllle Data, Inc. HC ADl12940 HY 2002024972.012 

A

182



I • 

FIELD NOTES 
OF 

82-40
No. l�,
Q-8.0321 ac

A 48.0321 ACRID TRACT OF LAND, BEING 13.2616 ACRES OUT OF THE JOHN WARREN SURVEY NO. 3, 
8.91�12 ACRES OUT OF THE JAMES HUGHES SURVEY NO. 12, 25.8293 ACRES OUT OF THE ROBERT 
Mc COMBS SURVEY NO. 1J ·AND BEING A PORTION OF '!'HAT CERTAIN CALLED 316.88 ACRE TRACT 
AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 169, PAGE 139 Ob, 1rHE Dlt�ED RJiJCORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, .ll'F.1'<AS AND BEING 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS F'OLLOWS, TO-WIT; 

r=·-

\: I BJOC:IHNING at an iron stake found at a fence co:r.ner. for the northeasterly corne1· of satd 
I l Hughes Survey, northwesterly corner of said Mc Combs Survey, ooutheasterJ.y corner of

Leon �yg� Survey No. 4 and the southwestorly_ corner of ·the said John Warren Survey;

THENCE with the common fenced boundary line between said Dyer Survey and John Warren
Suttvey • :·Horth 00° 23 • 00" East a distance of 437. 7 feet to an iron stake set 
in the center of a public road for the northwesterly corner of the tract herein 
described; 

THENCE with said public road, North ;8° 07 • 3_7" Ea.st a distance of 98. 7 feet to an 
iron stake set for an angle_point; 

THENCE North 55
° 13' 02" East a distance of 100.0 feet to an iron stake set a·t an 

angle point; ,-. 

THENCE North 67
° 11 1 59" F,ast a distance of 100.0 fee-t to an iron stake set 

angle point, 
for Irr'

c::>

'rHENCE North 86° 
5L�• O?'' Ea.st a distance of 698.2I-,. feet to an iron stake found f� ,the northwesterly corner of a road boundary J � 

THENCE with the westerly boundary line of said road, South 02° 35' 26" East a distance, 
of 1893. 20 to a,n ir.on stake found at a fence corner for ·the most southerly 
corner of the tract herein described; 

THENCE with· a ·fence Jiine, Ndrth·'/8� •16' 1-8"· West .a distanco ,of�846.?0) :Beet to ,an .iron 
stake found a-l an angle point; 

'mENCU: .Uorth 77° J8' 12" West a .d1atu.nce o'f 680.37 feet to an iron stake found at a· 
fence corner for the southwesterly cornor of the tract herein do.scribed; 

THEHCE North 02° 20' 02° West a distance of 679.28 feet to an iron stake :found at a· fence corner for the most westerly corner of the tract herein described; 
�·\ "�·; J\ :· ':. 
THENCE with a fence line, North 89° 13' 28" East a distance of :364.Li2 feet to an iron 
.,. stake found at a f�nce corner; 

'!HENCE North 02° 51' 27'' Wes·t a distance o:f 2)?
°

.49 feet to an iron stake found at a. 
fence corner, 

TIIENCE North 88° 26' 31 '' Ea.st a distance 
of the tract heroin described, as 
Registered Public Sux.;,._veyor. 

of 1 li7 .15 feet to the point of BEGINNING 
surveyed March 23, 1989, by Woodrow Cash, 

-��
.. · .. \ ·. ' 

/,rt: uF ·1 L.1'-1\:,; 
..,.;(.,•UNTY OF HAYS 

I hereby certify thnt thf8 Instrument was FILED on · 
tho date and at Ula time stam� h�roon by rr.tl and was dUI, (\ 
rn.:�ORDED, In tho Volume end Page of tho nrunod RECOHD.., 
of h�ys Count/, Toxa:3, ns stamp3d hcroon by mo. 

SEP 2 2 1993 

EXHIBIT "A"

7 

\ 

B

183



'/ ' 
lj " )fa, • 

, ,:.•\
t

,i' . .,.,',I•,••�•;�• ,,1�,' •'4··� ::.", �1,i�;:'"•J.f\>.•· .. • .. ,,,t ,, ,,,.. ....... .,,p,' •,,,l r
0
1·1, 1._.tff",\

. 
l�••;J_•1:�•J'l•-�'t-.1 •'.'t,·:\•,'I.'' t.J� ,\ .... ,,.,

1
,,r ",·:.M,,,,\•,\,"f'\I\ :• °ia-1-•,·1•,\'< •�� ••:'.•�:•�," ,,�.,_,...,,��• •• \•il•_1",•, ,•,: 

.... �• , .•... �.... . , .... .................. 1.'1·:,":��� .. ""'"'� .. 'r' .. , � , :. A •. t_ ••"-••R&irt�T.� · ,. L ••• 

;\ .. , . . ..().I') {f : L . >) n
' ,,J t, 'I ' ,)t t 

·.,_,'» 
'• '• 

·-·-··•·•··• ... · .. ••,.. -�--·----- .. , ...... --,·-·-·· ...... ____ --... ... --........... --... ,., ...... 

,1.:i. ,, 

I} .. )I 

,,. t: 
PRO•TECH 'ENGJ!NEi:RiNli·-·-GJ!tOUP

1· H C O  R ,- O . R · A · T E D
'.,._ _________________________________ ......,..,__
.f 

• 

I 

'
'1 

p. o. box 1004 · .. un m1rcos, tex�, 78666, 
.
. · (512) 392-3391

·· EXHIBIT "All
·fl EL"D NOTE DESCRiPTION _.

OF 
A SURVEY OF 

40.16 ACRES OF LAND 
OUT OF THE 

ROBERT McCOM0S SURVEY NO. 13 
. ANO THE 

JOHN WARREN SURVEY NO. 3 
.HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS 

,, ' 

vm. 334 ,,1. 17 

BEING A PORTION OF THAT 316�88 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONV·EYED TO LLOYD C. LEINNEWEBER 
BY EMMETT E _- .COWAN BY DE-ED DATED OCTOBER lO • 1956 • AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 169 1 
PAGE 139, HAYS. COUNTY DEED RECORDS·, AND ·BEING APPROXIMATELY 23.4 ACRES OF LANO, 
MORE OR LESS, .'OUT OF THE ROBERT McCOMB.S SURVEY ·No. 13 .. ANO APPROXIMATELY 16 •. 8 ACRES 
OF LANO·, MORE OR LESS, OUT OF THE JOHN WARREN SuRVEY NO. 3, AND. BEING MORE PART!• 
CULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS.AS FOLLOWS. TO-WIT:. 

BEGINNING a:t the most Easterly Northeast corner of the said L.o1nmvweber 316.88 acre 
·tract for the Northeast corner of tho.tract here1 TI doscr1bod. samo bcing·at the
1ntcrsact1on of tho·approx1mnte contor)ino·of a County ROAd with tho projoction of 

· tho fonco lino on the Cast lino of tho ,said Loinnewebor 316.88 aero trnct. samo
being· tho Southeast ·�orner o-f th.at, 8.63 acre tract of land conveyed to Richard c.
Gibson by ·w. D. Murphy by· deed dated May 2. '1969. nnd rocordcd in Volume 177, · · 
Page 364. Hays County Deed Rocords. tho South corner of that 25,01 acra.trnct of

· land conveyed ·to J. o. Buckham by Johnnie L� McNoill Trust, by dcod dnt�d Mny 15, ·
1978,· nnd·rocordod .1n.Volume 310, Pogc 458, Hays ·county Oood Rocords, and tho most
Westerly Northwest corner of tho.t 116.48 .aero tract of ltrnd conveyed to Raymond.
L. Cz1chos by Josephine Tate by deed dated September 18 1 1967, and recorded in
Volume 220, Page 1. Hays County Deed Records. same· al so being ·on the East line of 
the·said John Warren Survey No. 3 and the West line of the George G. Blackwell 

. Survey No. 2i 

THENCE. leaving the approximate .�enterl'ine ·of the said County Road. the said 
Gibson 8.63-acre tract. and the said Beckh�m 25.0l acre tract. with the projecti-On 
of fence.line and fence� same being the West line of the said Czichos 116.48 acr� 

.. tract and the said Warrcrn-Blackwe 11 ·Survey. 11 no, the f o 11 owing courses numbered 
· · (l ) · th ru ( 3) : · . . . · · 

(l} ·S 00 ° 07' E. at 32.24 feot, joining fence,. and continuing on in, al1. 
· 300.83 feet. to •8 fence· post. · · ·. · · · · · 

(2l S 00° 17' W, 264,20 feet, to a fence post;
·(3 s· 00° 

as• w. ·at about 116 feet. passing an Overhead Power Transmis·sion ·
Line, at about 125 .feet, passing the relocated Southeast corner of the said Warren 
Survey,·same bei'ng a relocated Northeast tO\"ner of the said Mccombs Survey, �nd ..... • .· 
continuing on, with the McCombs.;.Blackwel1 Survey line. in .all 285.37 fee.t:,·to. �y',:··,.·

· corner f ence post a.t · the Southwest corner of the said Bl ackwen Survey; ·. ?\:·· · 

THENCE. leaving fence, and the sa.id.Bhckwell Survey with. the West line of the.said 
Czichos 116.48 acre tr�ct. S 00° 2l 1 w. 55.90 feet. to an iron stake found for a 
reentrant corner o� the tract herein described, same being the Southwest �orner of 

· the said �zichos 116.48 acre tract;.

THENCE, with a South line ·of the said Czichos 116.48 acre .tract. S 89 ° 03 1 E ..
46.1'7 feet, to qn 18 inch Cedar Stump found at fence corner for the most Easterly
cor�er 9f the tract herein described, same being the most Northerly Northwest corner
of that 597 acre tract conveyed. to�- J .• leach by B. D. Bell by deed dated January 19.\
1944. and recorded in Volume �29, P�ge 253, �ays County Deed Records; l 

.. THENCE, with fence. a West line of the said Leach 597 acre tract, the ro1'owing 
courses numbered (4) and (5): . . 

· · 

· (4l s 32° 45 1 w·. 219.32 feet. to an iron stake set; . . · · 
. · · (5 S·00° 03' w 1 322.01 t�et, to an iron stake set for the Southeast corner of

: i,t' •• . 

th� tract herein described; 
· · 

C

184



. '\ 

\'· '· 

•, ·:•' .... , . ' �- ' . 

\ HI.'; •I,> t .. I � 1,,-; l • .,., ,-,.· 

....... , ...... , .. .., ..............

THENCE. leaving fence. and the said Leach 597 acre tract, N 89° 56 1 w.·1343.71 feet. · CC· to an iron stake set. for the Southwest corner of the tract herein described; 
M 

· . ... _, . ',· 
� 

THENCE, N 02° 34 1 W, at about 322 feet, passing the �forementioned Overhead Power 
Transmi'ssion Line� at-about 723 feet! passir.� the r�1�cated North line of the_a ....
formentioned Mccombs Survey, same being the .. /r-elocated· South Hne of the aforemen• .. 
tioned Warren Survey, at 1343.42 feet, pas,sing an iron stake set on the South _ ·· 
side of a County Road, _and continuing on i'n all 1368.50 feet, to an iron stake· .. 
set in the approximate centerl; ne of the said County Road, · for the Northwest cor-.- · 
· ner of the tract herei.n described; . 

· • . · . ·. ·

THENCE, with the. approximate centerline of the said County Road, the following
courses numbered (6Lthru (12): :• ._. 

6 N 82° 45' E, 152.22 feet. to an iron st�ke set; 
7 S 74° 31 1 E. 644,84 feet, to an iron stake set; 

· 8 S-54° 23' E. 245.29 feet.· to an iro� stake set;·
9 S 84° 16' E," 188.55 'feet. to an iron stake set; 

1
10 N 62° 52' E, 198.80 feet. to an iron stake set; 

. 11 N 34° 35' .. ·-E,;- 151.02 feet, to an iron stake set; 
12 N 21° 35.'.'li:JSS •. 42. feet, .to. the POINT OF BEGINNING containing 40.:16 acres 

of 1and. · Surveyed :.uune., ... 1979. · · 

LLOYD C. lEINNEWEBER · 

f ••• 

l• . ·
·1 

FB 87 PG la . ·: !;� 
PLAN 2715 
EO 77 .. 13467 ... 

,,· ,, 

9 s. . I Ud 8 · nau 6l.
S�X.3l 'Altlnoo· SA \fH

0311.1 . /.l-•'."1·· 
·. (;)I_,,. 

. � 
'i";'\1. i•:1-r�J':i�••:•,'�,:::lt:.i�n:� ��·r:t: �:.l;,;, ',.�;�: .. ,} 

185



186



\ 
.-�-.... --

. ____,-----. ,--

--� 

----
'·Pain-I oF &ginm/'J.:?
48.032/ Ac.

·� ........ -- -� ----- - ·---
/4Z/l5' 

NBf/28 '3/"E 
- Jc -.l( - .,_ '( - • - ► - ., - � - ) -/ I ;_ - , -
'J ..(t 

. f __ ':, � 

_i.._. .. 

01'.f -� 
c-- -�-c,: '.'. .. 

, ' . ' 
-<;t: ·�� °' c·_'- . 

.:.· 

. 

J 

'1'.:,--

·a, - �}.: .-��:;;_, 

@ \ . ' ; . �-1�-�-i 
I 

··--. ..

� y �'� -1-a.9412, A.c�
\ H�ghes S''-lrve!:I
l.. ----- ""-_-........____---- ------

·---....

Iron Sfake riJLJnd 

_ . I.{ 1 :Iron 5fak� .::,� \J 
. ------ () - PoinloF&g. �
71.47.' < 4.0086Ac. VJ S 8�"Z340"W _152.94'

Tr�n Slake 5e./-

__ ,,... ., . �- -� .. 

- -�--

.IronSfake 
FoL.lnd 

Iron SfaKt! Se.I. .-

.Re.lo c:e;fed .....�.--
S W car Warren Sl..lr:

Trac:f ·d4
48.032_1 Ac. 

>--._ �--

_ ./  

25.8293 _ Ac. 
M�Combs SiJrvt:� 

.....__,,, 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

''"--�- � 
. -·· 1 /7 .e 1 _j oh n JA./,a r r � "1-J-- -~ ---S...u r v e y-=-=r--r----

-----No;- I- i 17 e � (<_o be r f M c C O/ni::; s S LI �y-

/ 
/ 

/ 

"-1,,. Re lo ca fed 

CAl?L LE/!VNEWFB[ R-�---·4016 AC � / .
,.IL--•--· 

-- --------:--:_
. / 

/ 
.-··-- --· ,,,.- .----

/343J7/' 

. a-1� o:3, . 1 

__ ccom.1>5 Svr. /19_ 4c!�,4cres

i 
1.,,.--

Iro,-, SfaK« Found/? l 1-'/ 2 [_�/�) _T
,.--, I I ,1·; ' 6' , .. - .... 

. --�� �-.//-,=: . ;/ (: ·- - I I 
-- I \_ . . 

·,. 

i 

- : . l

... 

\. ,/ ., 

A

B C

187



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-10 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 
DISANNEXING AN AREA OF APPROXIMATELY 90 ACRES 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY LIMITS, GENERALLY KNOWN AS 801 
WAYSIDE DRIVE, AND PROVIDING FOR THE FOLLOWING: 
FINDINGS OF FACT, SAVINGS, SEVERABILITY, REPEALER, 
EFFECTIVE DATE, AND PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING. 
 
WHEREAS, the Texas Local Government Code Chapter 43, Section 43.144 (the “Code”) 

authorizes a general law municipality to disannex a sparely populated area if (1)  the area consists 
of at least 10 acres contiguous to the municipality; and (2)  the area: (A)  is uninhabited;  or (B)  
contains fewer than one occupied residence or business structure for every two acres and fewer 
than three occupied residences or business structures on any one acre; and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners of an area of approximately 90 acres contiguous to the City 

generally known as 801 Wayside Drive (the “Area”) has requested disannexation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wimberley hereby finds and determines that 

the area consists of at least 10 acres contiguous to the municipality and contains fewer than one 
occupied residence or business structure for every two acres and fewer than three occupied 
residences or business structures on any one acre; and 

 
WHEREAS, the disannexation as provided for in this ordinance is a valid exercise of the 

City’s authority under the Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the provisions of this Ordinance will serve to 
promote the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION I.  FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
 All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and factual 
findings of the City Council and are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Article 
as if copied in their entirety. 

 
SECTION II.  DISANNEXATION 

 
The City Council hereby disannexes the Area composed of the three (3) separate tracts described 
in the attached Exhibit “A”, generally known as 801 Wayside Drive, and hereby relinquishes any 
and all right, jurisdiction or control over the above-described area of land as a part of the City’s 
corporate limits, but retains its extraterritorial jurisdiction, rights and control. 
 

188



Upon adoption of this Ordinance the Mayor herby orders the discontinuance of the Area and said 
order shall be entered in the minutes of the City Council meeting minutes at which this Ordinance 
was adopted.   

SECTION III.  SAVINGS 

The repeal of any ordinance or part of ordinances effectuated by the enactment of this 
Article shall not be construed as abandoning any action now pending under or by virtue of such 
ordinance or as discontinuing, abating, modifying or altering any penalty accruing or to accrue, or 
as affecting any rights of the City under any section or provisions of any ordinances at the time of 
passage of this Article. 

SECTION IV.  SEVERABILITY 

Should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, or section of this Article be 
adjusted or held to be unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of 
this Article in whole or any part or provision thereof, other than the part so declared to be invalid, 
illegal or unconstitutional. 

SECTION V.  REPEALER 

The provisions of this Article shall be cumulative of all other ordinances or parts of 
ordinances governing or regulating the same subject matter as that covered herein; provided, 
however, that all prior ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict with any of the 
provisions of this Article are hereby expressly repealed to the extent that such inconsistency is 
apparent.  This Article shall not be construed to require or allow any act that is prohibited by any 
other ordinance. 

SECTION VI.  EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Article shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and publication as may 
be required by law. 

SECTION VII.  PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Article was 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of 
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas 
Government Code.  Notice was also provided as required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 18th day of April, 2019, by a vote of  (Ayes) to  (Nays) 
(Abstain) vote of the City Council of the City of Wimberley, Texas. 

189



Susan Jaggers, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Laura Calcote, 
City Secretary 

____________________________________ 
City Attorney 

190



WAYSIDE DR

RIVER RD

LEA LN

PI
N

IO
N

 T
R

L

C
AR

N
EY

 L
N

G
R

E
EN

 A
C

R
E

S 
D

R

RADER RANCH RD

CARNEY RANCH RD

LINK LN

TH
O

M
P

SO
N

 R
AN

C
H

 R
D

C
R

 1
49

2

LEAC
H

 LN

R
AN

C
H

O
 M

AD
R

O
N

E 
D

R

SH
AD

E 
R

D

H
IG

H
 M

ES
A 

D
R

RIVER M
EADO

W
S RD

WINN RANCH RD

RIVER BLUFF LN

O
U

TBAC
K TR

L

W
 IN

W
O

O
D

 FO
R

EST D
R E 

IN
W

O
O

D
 F

O
R

ES
T 

D
R

TEXAN BLVD

BIG
 BEND DR

MADRONE TRL

C
AM

P
FI

R
E 

W
AY

LAZY L LN

QUAIL HOLW

CINDI CIR

EDGEWATER DR

D
O

N
N

A D
R

WESTERN RD

LIN
D

I LN

LIGHTED WAY

RE
M

UD
A 

RU
N

CA
M

PF
IR

E 
CI

R

BLU
E O

A
K LN

SC
EN

IC
 C

A
N

YO
N

 LN

0 0.50.25
Miles

µ

Legend
Disannex_CityLimits

ETJ

Disannex_ETJ_Leinneweber

Roads

DISCLAIMER:  This map is not of survey quality and is not an authoritative representation of any properties located on the
ground; this should be used only as a general reference map.  The City of Wimberley assumes no liability as a result of
misuse or misinterpretation of any data represented hereon.  No warranty is expressed or implied regarding accuracy or
completeness.

City of Wimberley 
Proposed Disannexation

By: City of Wimberley, April 15, 2019

191


	Cover Page
	City Council Agenda 04-18-19 (Reg)
	Ordinance No. 2019-09
	Consent Agenda 
	City Council Minutes 03-21-19 (Reg)
	City Council Minutes 04-04-19 (Reg)

	13301 RR12 
	151 Oldham
	Ordinance No. 2019-08
	STR_newsAd 032819
	Notice of Enactment 04-18-19
	Wimberley Zoning Amendments_Short Term Rental Regulations.v.07.4 - Red-lined

	SPFI Financial Advisors
	CITY OF WIMBERLEY SPFI CONTRACT

	Tree Ordinance
	TreeDraft 041519

	Surplus Items
	Storage Product Inventory October 2018
	TFC-Surplus Inventory List-Donated Products 2019
	Surplus List


	PEC Fence Variance
	City of Wimberley Application of Variance_PEC_4-10-19
	PEC Variance Location


	Rocky Springs Road
	HC Interlocal Roadway Repair & Maintenance & 1st Amend 9-2-10
	Hays County Estimate - Rocky Springs Road

	BEFCO Payment
	GLO Application
	FOBH Playscape Shade Canopy Project
	FOBH canopy proposal

	Disannexation - 801 Wayside Drive
	Leinneweber Disannexation Request
	Ordinance No. 2019-10 - Disannexation - Leinneweber
	Disannex_Leinneweber_041519




